
-1-

CITY OF ONTARIO 
DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY BOARD 

AGENDA 

October 18, 2021

 All documents for public review are on file in the Planning Department located in
City Hall at 303 East “B” St., Ontario, CA  91764. 

MEETING WILL BE HELD AT 1:30 PM IN ONTARIO CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
LOCATED AT 303 East “B” St. 

Scott Ochoa, City Manager 
Scott Murphy, Executive Director, Community Development Agency 
Jennifer McLain Hiramoto, Economic Development Director 
James Caro, Building Official 
Rudy Zeledon, Planning Director  
Khoi Do, City Engineer 
Chief Michael Lorenz, Police Department 
Fire Marshal Mike Gerken, Fire Department 
Scott Burton, Utilities General Manager 
Angela Magana, Community Improvement Manager 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Citizens wishing to address the Development Advisory Board on any matter that is not on the agenda 
may do so at this time.  Please state your name and address clearly for the record and limit your remarks 
to five minutes. 

Please note that while the Development Advisory Board values your comments, the members cannot 
respond nor take action until such time as the matter may appear on the forthcoming agenda. 

AGENDA ITEMS 

For each of the items listed below the public will be provided an opportunity to speak. After a staff report is 
provided, the chairperson will open the public hearing. At that time the applicant will be allowed five (5) minutes 



 
 

-2- 

to make a presentation on the case. Members of the public will then be allowed five (5) minutes each to speak.  
The Development Advisory Board may ask the speakers questions relative to the case and the testimony provided.  
The question period will not count against your time limit. After all persons have spoken, the applicant will be 
allowed three minutes to summarize or rebut any public testimony. The chairperson will then close the public 
hearing portion of the hearing and deliberate the matter. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS 
 
A. MINUTES APPROVAL 
 

Development Advisory Board Minutes of September 20, 2021, approved as written. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS  

 
B. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR FILE 

NO. PDEV20-027: A Development Plan to construct a 7,200-square-foot maintenance building 
and tractor-trailer parking on 4.2 acres of land located at 2009 South Cucamonga Avenue, within 
the IG (General Industrial) zoning district. The project is categorically exempt from the 
requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15332 
(Class 32, In-Fill Development Projects) of the CEQA Guidelines. The proposed project is located 
within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport and was evaluated and found to 
be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use 
Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); (APN: 1050-501-16) submitted by NFI Industries.  

  
1. CEQA Determination    

 
No action necessary – Exempt:  CEQA Guidelines Section § 15332 

 
2. File No. PDEV20-027 (Development Plan) 

 
Motion to Approve / Deny 
 

C. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT, TENTATIVE TRACT MAP AND DEVELOPMENT 
PLAN REVIEW FOR FILE NOS. PMTT19-008 AND PDEV19-023: A Tentative Tract Map 
(File No. PMTT19-008; TTM 20281) to subdivide 4.79 acres of land into 37 numbered lots and 
one common lettered lot in conjunction with a Development Plan (File No. PDEV19-023) to 
construct 37 dwelling units and an associated recreation facility, for property located at 9510 East 
Chino Avenue, within the Neighborhood 3A land use district of the Countryside Specific Plan. The 
environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction with the 
Countryside Specific Plan (File No. PSP04-001) Environmental Impact Report (State 
Clearinghouse No. 2004071001), certified by the City Council on April 18, 2006. This application 
introduces no new significant environmental impacts. The proposed project is located within the 
Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport and was evaluated and found to be 
consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility 
Plan (ALUCP); (APN: 0218-111-56) submitted by Chino Avenue, LLC. Planning Commission 
action is required. 

 
1. CEQA Determination    

 
No action necessary – use of previous EIR  
  

2. File No. PMTT19-008 (TTM 20281)  (Tentative Tract Map)  
 

Motion to recommend Approval/Denial 



 
 

-3- 

 
3.   File No. PDEV19-023  (Development Plan)  

 
Motion to recommend Approval/Denial 

 
D. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR FILE 

NO. PDEV20-020: A Development Plan (File No. PDEV20-020) to construct a mixed-use 
development consisting of 144 residential apartment units and approximately 4,500 square feet of 
ground floor retail on 1.66 acres of land bordered by D Street to the north, Euclid Avenue to the 
west, C Street to the south, and Lemon Avenue to the east, within the C1 Block of the Downtown 
Civic Center Planned Unit Development and the MU-1 (Downtown Mixed Use) and Euclid Avenue 
Overlay zoning districts. The environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in 
conjunction with an amendment to the Ontario Downtown Civic Center PUD, File No. PUD08-
001, for which an Addendum to the Ontario Downtown Civic Center Environmental Impact Report 
(State Clearinghouse No. 200405115, certified on November 16, 2004), was adopted by the City 
Council on June 21, 2011.This application introduces no new significant environmental impacts. 
The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport 
and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario 
International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); (APNs: 1048-551-10, 1048-551-11, 
and 1048-551-12). submitted by Hutton Development. Planning Commission action is 
required. 

 
1. CEQA Determination    

 
No action necessary – Use of a previous Addendum to an EIR 
 

2. File No. PDEV20-020  (Development Plan)  
 
        Motion to recommend Approval/Denial 
 
E. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP REVIEW FOR 

FILE NO. PMTT21-006: A Tentative Parcel Map (TPM No. 20335) to subdivide 5.77 acres of 
land into two parcels located at the northeast corner of Inland Empire Boulevard and Haven 
Avenue, at 800 North Haven Avenue, within the Urban Commercial land use district of the Ontario 
Center Specific Plan. The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15315 (Class 15, Minor Land Divisions) 
of the CEQA Guidelines. The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of 
Ontario International Airport and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and 
criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); (APN: 0210-
204-03) submitted by Fuscoe Engineering. Planning Commission action is required. 

 
1. CEQA Determination    

 
No action necessary – Exempt:  CEQA Guidelines Section § 15315 
 

2. File No. PMTT21-006 (TPM 20335)  (Tentative Parcel Map)  
 
        Motion to recommend Approval/Denial 
 
If you wish to appeal a decision of the Development Advisory Board, you must do so within ten (10) days 
of the Development Advisory Board action. Please contact the Planning Department for information 
regarding the appeal process. 
 
If you challenge any action of the Development Advisory Board in court, you may be limited to raising 





CITY OF ONTARIO 
 

Development Advisory Board 
 

Minutes 
 

SEPTEMBER 20, 2021 
 
 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT  

Rudy Zeledon, Chairman, Planning Department  
Johnnie Richtmer, Building Department  
David Bucholtz, Community Improvement 
Charity Hernandez, Economic Development Agency  
Khoi Do, Engineering Department 
Michelle Starkey, Fire Department  
Dennis Mejia, Municipal Utilities Company  

BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT 

William Lee, Police Department  

STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT  

Antonio Alejos, Engineering Department 
Gwen Berendsen, Planning Department 
Raymond Lee, Engineering Department 
Chuck Mercier, Planning Department 
Lorena Mejia, Planning Department 
Edmelynne Hutter, Planning Department 
Michael Bhatanawin, Engineering Department 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
No person from the public wished to speak. 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS 

A. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  Motion to approve the minutes of the September 8, 2021 meeting 
of the Development Advisory Board was made by Mr. Do; seconded by Ms. Hernandez; and 
approved unanimously by those present (4-0). Johnnie Richtmer, David Bucholtz, and Michelle 
Starkey abstained as they were not at the September 8, 2021 meeting. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS 
 
B. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR FILE 

NO. PDEV20-033: A Development Plan to construct a 71,667 square foot addition to an existing 
105,095 square foot industrial building, on a 3.5-acre portion of a 9.02-acre property located at 
2777 East Cedar Street, within the Business Park land use district of the California Commerce 
Center South Specific Plan. The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the 
California Environmental Quality Act of 1970 (CEQA), as amended, and the Guidelines 
promulgated thereunder, pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32, In-Fill Development) of the CEQA 

Item A - 1 of 4



Development Advisory Board 
Minutes – September 20, 2021 
Page 2 
 
 

Guidelines. The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario 
International Airport, and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria 
of the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); (APN: 0211-275-03) 
submitted by KGP Telecommunications, LLC. 
 

Craig Beneke and Jeremy Eaton were present and stated they were available to answer questions.  
 
Mr. Zeledon asked if they had reviewed the Conditions of Approval and agreed to them.  
 
Mr. Beneke stated he agreed to the negotiations that were made regarding the COAs, with Scott Murphy 
and Engineering.  
 
Mr. Khoi wanted to put on record what the changes were and stated the remove and replace is a standard 
condition. 
 
Mr. Beneke stated the changes were regarding the 3 frontages and the sidewalk remove and replace 
conditions.  
 
Mr. Alejos, project engineer, stated Item 2.18 B would be removed from the Engineering conditions of 
approval, but they would be keeping A.  
 
Mr. Beneke stated this is correct.  
 
Motion to approve File No. PDEV20-033, subject to the revised conditions, was made by Mr. Mejia; 
seconded by Mr. Do; and approved unanimously by those present (7-0). 
 
C. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT, DEVELOPMENT PLAN, AND CONDITIONAL 

USE PERMIT REVIEW FOR FILE NOS. PDEV19-069 AND PCUP19-030: A Development 
Plan (File No. PDEV19-069) to construct a convenience store with fuel sales, and car wash, in 
conjunction with a Conditional Use Permit (File No. PCUP19-030) to establish alcoholic beverage 
sales for consumption off the premises, limited to beer and wine sales (Type 20 ABC license), on 
0.87-acre of land located at 2156 South Grove Avenue, within the Commercial land use district of 
the Grove Avenue Specific Plan. The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32, Infill 
Development Projects) of the CEQA Guidelines. The proposed project is located within the Airport 
Influence Area of Ontario International Airport and was evaluated and found to be consistent with 
the policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
(ALUCP); (APN: 1050-491-08) submitted by Ramila Patel. Planning Commission action is 
required. 

 
The applicant was not present. 
 
Motion to recommend approval of File Nos. PCUP19-030 and PDEV19-069, subject to the conditions, to 
the Planning Commission, was made by Mr. Do; seconded by Mr. Mejia; and approved unanimously by 
those present (7-0). 
 
D. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND TENATIVE PARCEL MAP REVIEW FOR 

FILE NO. PMTT21-002: A Tentative Parcel Map (File No. PMTT21-002/TPM 20278) to 
subdivide 15.94 acres of land into 3 parcels located on the southwest corner of the State Route 60 
Freeway and Milliken Avenue within the Light Industrial zoning district. The environmental 

Item A - 2 of 4



Development Advisory Board 
Minutes – September 20, 2021 
Page 3 
 
 

impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction with an Addendum to The Ontario 
Plan Environmental Impact Report State Clearinghouse No. 2008101140 for File Nos. PGPA19-
007, PSPA19-010 and PZC19-002. This application introduces no new significant environmental 
impacts. The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International 
Airport, and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario 
International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); (APN: 1083-361-07) submitted by 
Orbis Real Estate Partners. Planning Commission action is required. 

 
E. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND TENATIVE PARCEL MAP REVIEW FOR 

FILE NO. PMTT21-003: A Tentative Parcel Map (File No. PMTT21-003/TPM 20274) to 
subdivide 9.72 acres of land into 4 parcels located on the southwest corner of the State Route 60 
Freeway and Milliken Avenue within the Light Industrial and Community Commercial zoning 
districts. The environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction with 
an Addendum to The Ontario Plan Environmental Impact Report State Clearinghouse No. 
2008101140 for File Nos. PGPA19-007, PSPA19-010 and PZC19-002. This application introduces 
no new significant environmental impacts. The proposed project is located within the Airport 
Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, and was evaluated and found to be consistent with 
the policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
(ALUCP); (APN: 1083-361-04) submitted by Orbis Real Estate Partners. Planning 
Commission action is required. 

 
F. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR FILE 

NO. PDEV21-007: A Development Plan to construct four industrial buildings totaling 393,334 
square feet on 25.66 acres of land located on the southwest corner of the State Route 60 Freeway 
and Milliken Avenue within the Light Industrial zoning district. The environmental impacts of this 
project were previously reviewed in conjunction with an Addendum to The Ontario Plan 
Environmental Impact Report State Clearinghouse No. 2008101140 for File Nos. PGPA19-007, 
PSPA19-010 and PZC19-002. This application introduces no new significant environmental 
impacts. The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International 
Airport, and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario 
International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); (APN: 1083-361-04 and 1083-361-
07) submitted by Orbis Real Estate Partners. Planning Commission action is required. 

 
Jennifer Dorgan and Grant Ross with Orbis Real Estate Partners were present.  
 
Mr. Zeledon asked if they had reviewed and agreed with the Conditions of Approval.  
 
Mr. Ross thanked staff and stated they had two comments regarding the Conditions of Approval. He stated 
one was associated with Caltrans approval and the landscape timing, and the other was the Engineering 
condition tied to the northern parcel map. 
 
Ms. Mejia stated they would work with them on the Caltrans issue. 
 
Mr. Zeledon stated this issue won’t hold them up with occupancies.  
 
There was discussion between Mr. Ross, Mr. Do, City Engineer, and Mr. Lee, Assistant City Engineer, 
regarding condition number 1.09 B and the improvements on Milliken and what parcel map they should be 
tied to.  
 

Item A - 3 of 4



Item A - 4 of 4



Page 1 

Development Advisory Board Decision 
October 18, 2021 

DECISION NO.: [insert #] 

FILE NO.: PDEV20-027 

DESCRIPTION: A Development Plan to construct a 7,200-square-foot truck maintenance building 
and tractor-trailer parking on 4.2 acres of land located at the southeast corner of Cedar Street and 
Cucamonga Avenue, within the IG (General Industrial) zoning district. APNs: 1050-501-16 and 1050-501-
15; submitted by NFI Industries. 

Part I—BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS 

NFI INDUSTRIES, (herein after referred to as “Applicant”) has filed an application requesting 
Development Plan approval, File No. PDEV20-027, as described in the subject of this Decision (herein after 
referred to as "Application" or "Project"). 

(1) Project Setting: The project site is comprised of 4.2 acres of land located at the southeast
corner of Cedar Street and Cucamonga Avenue, at 2009 and 2011 South Cucamonga Avenue, and is 
depicted in Exhibit A—Project Location Map, attached. The Project site is comprised of two rectangular 
shaped parcels. The northern parcel was developed in 1954, with a 1,000 square foot single-family 
residence that was later converted into an office for a contractor’s yard. The lot is presently used for 
recreational vehicle storage in conjunction with the easterly two-thirds of the southerly parcel. The westerly 
one-third of the southerly parcel is utilized for equipment and vehicle storage. Existing land uses, General 
Plan and zoning designations, and specific plan land uses on and surrounding the project site are as follows: 

Existing Land Use General Plan 
Designation Zoning Designation Specific Plan 

Land Use 

Site: Recreational Vehicle 
Storage Industrial IG – General Industrial N/A 

North: Warehouse Industrial IG – General Industrial N/A 

South: Self-Storage Facility Industrial IG – General Industrial N/A 

East: Industrial Business 
Park Business Park Grove Avenue Specific 

Plan Business Park 

West: Manufacturing Industrial IG – General Industrial N/A 

(2) Project Description:

(a) Background — On December 7, 2020, the Applicant submitted a Development
Plan to raise the existing structures on the Project site, vacate Cedar Street to the north, and develop the 
site with a 7,200-square-foot truck maintenance building and tractor-trailer parking yard. The Development 
Plan was submitted in conjunction with a Lot Line Adjustment (Filer No. LLA20-018) that will consolidate 
the two lots comprising Project site with the abutting 8.56-acres to the north, which is fully developed with 
a 180,341-square-foot industrial warehouse building. Once consolidated, the 12.76-acre property will have 
an overall floor area ratio (“FAR”) of 0.34. 

Item B - 1 of 37



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV20-027 
October 18, 2021 
 
 

Page 2 

(b) Site Design/Building Layout —The proposed maintenance building is located near 
the northwest corner of the Project site, setback approximately 32 feet from the north property line, 
approximately 160 feet from the west property line (Cucamonga Avenue), approximately 360 feet from the 
east property line and 175 feet from the south property line. Parking will be provided to the west, east, and 
south sides of the maintenance building (see Exhibit B—Site Plan, attached). The building’s main entrance 
is oriented to the west, facing Cucamonga Avenue.  
 
The maintenance building and yard area, designed for tractor-trailer parking, truck maneuvering, loading 
activities, and outdoor staging, will be screened by a 14-foot-high decorative screen wall. The screen wall 
will screen the yard area and portions of the building from the public right-of-way and has been conditioned 
to match the architecture of the proposed building. The screen wall is proposed to be setback 64-feet from 
the west property line (Cucamonga Avenue). The area between the screen wall and the street will be fully 
landscaped.  
 

(c) Site Access/Circulation — The Project will vacate Cedar Street that currently runs 
along the northern property and the street acreage will become part of the Project area and will be reduced 
to a 27-foot-wide drive aisle that will maintain access to Cucamonga Avenue. The drive aisle will not be 
gated and will provide access to the Project site on the south side and will maintain access to the northern 
property. The Project will have two additional points of access along the west property line, to Cucamonga 
Avenue, via two 40-foot-wide driveways. 
 

(d) Parking — The Project has provided off-street parking pursuant to the “Motor 
Vehicle Repair and Maintenance” parking standards specified in the Development Code. The building 
requires a total of 18 off-street parking spaces, and 22 spaces have been provided, exceeding the minimum 
off-street parking requirements. In addition, the tractor trailer yard is providing 23 stalls for tractor truck 
parking, 36 stalls for container parking, and 40 stalls for trailer parking.  
 

(e) Architecture — The proposed building is a customized pre-engineered steel 
building that incorporates horizontal metal ribbed panels, stucco finish wall panels, split-face gray block, 
first and second-story window canopies, clear anodized aluminum window mullions with gray glazing and 
angled roof design. The building does not incorporate parapet walls since there will be no roof mounted 
mechanical equipment proposed for the building. All mechanical equipment will be located on the ground 
and screened appropriately. The building will be approximately 30 feet in height and has a grey, blue, and 
white color scheme. 
 
Staff believes that the proposed project illustrates the type of high-quality architecture that is promoted by 
the Development Code. This is exemplified through the incorporation of base and top treatments defined 
by changes in color and materials along with the incorporation of design features that ensure that the 
building’s massing and proportion, along with its colors and architectural detailing, are consistent throughout 
all four building elevations 
 

(f) Landscaping — The project provides landscaping along Cucamonga Avenue, 
Cedar Avenue, and throughout the perimeter. The Development Code requires that the project provide a 
minimum 10 percent landscape coverage, and the project has provided 16 percent coverage. Moreover, a 
combination of 24-inch box accent and shade trees will be provided throughout the project site, in addition 
to a variety of shrubs, groundcovers and grasses that are low water usage (see Exhibit D—Landscape 
Plan, attached). 
 

(g) Utilities (drainage, sewer) — Public utilities (water and sewer) are available to 
serve the project. Furthermore, the Applicant has submitted a Preliminary Water Quality Management Plan 
(“PWQMP”), which establishes the project’s compliance with storm water discharge/water quality 
requirements. The PWQMP includes site design measures that capture runoff and pollutant transport by 
minimizing impervious surfaces and maximizes low impact development (“LID”) best management 
practices (“BMPs”), such as retention and infiltration, biotreatment, and evapotranspiration. The PWQMP 

Item B - 2 of 37



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV20-027 
October 18, 2021 
 
 

Page 3 

proposes on-site run-off will be collected by a catch basin and conveyed to an underground infiltration 
system located within the southern portion of the site. Any overflow drainage will be conveyed to an existing 
storm drain located west of the project site off of Cucamonga Avenue. 
 
 

Part II—RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act, 
commencing with Public Resources Code Section 21000 (hereinafter referred to as "CEQA"); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project is exempt from CEQA pursuant to a categorical exemption (listed in CEQA 
Guidelines Article 19, commencing with Section 15300) and the application of that categorical exemption 
is not barred by one of the exceptions set forth in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and 
 

WHEREAS, Ontario Development Code Table 2.02-1 (Review Matrix) grants the Development 
Advisory Board (“DAB”) the responsibility and authority to review and act on the subject Application; and 
 

WHEREAS, all members of the DAB of the City of Ontario were provided the opportunity to review 
and comment on the Application, and no comments were received opposing the proposed development; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project has been reviewed for consistency with the Housing Element of the Policy 
Plan component of The Ontario Plan, as State Housing Element law (as prescribed in Government Code 
Sections 65580 through 65589.8) requires that development projects must be consistent with the Housing 
Element, if upon consideration of all its aspects, it is found to further the purposes, principals, goals, and 
policies of the Housing Element; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, 
which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and is 
subject to, and must be consistent with, the policies and criteria set forth in the Ontario International Airport 
Land Use Compatibility Plan (hereinafter referred to as “ALUCP”), which applies only to jurisdictions within 
San Bernardino County, and addresses the noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts of 
current and future airport activity; and 
 

WHEREAS, City of Ontario Development Code Division 2.03 (Public Hearings) prescribes the 
manner in which public notification shall be provided and hearing procedures to be followed, and all such 
notifications and procedures have been completed; and  
 

WHEREAS, on October 18, 2021, the DAB of the City of Ontario conducted a hearing on the 
Application and concluded said hearing on that date; and 
 

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Decision have occurred. 
 
 

Part III—THE DECISION 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND AND DETERMINED by the Development Advisory 
Board of the City of Ontario, as follows: 
 

SECTION 1: Environmental Determination and Findings. As the decision-making body for 
the Project, the DAB has reviewed and considered the information contained in the administrative record 
for the Project. Based upon the facts and information contained in the administrative record, including all 
written and oral evidence presented to the DAB, the DAB finds as follows: 
 

Item B - 3 of 37



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV20-027 
October 18, 2021 
 
 

Page 4 

(1) The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32, In-Fill Development Projects) of the CEQA 
Guidelines of the CEQA Guidelines, which consists of the following: (a) the Project is consistent with the 
applicable general plan designation and all applicable general plan policies, as well as the applicable zoning 
designation and regulations, as conditioned; (b) the proposed development occurs within city limits, on a 
project site of no more than five acres, and is substantially surrounded by urban uses; (c) the Project site 
has no value as habitat for endangered, rare, or threatened species; (d) approval of the Project will not 
result in any significant effects relating to traffic, noise, air quality, or water quality; and (e) the Project site 
is located on a site that can be adequately served by all required utilities and public services. 
 

(2) The application of the categorical exemption is not barred by one of the exceptions set 
forth in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and 
 

(3) The determination of CEQA exemption reflects the independent judgment of the DAB. 
 

SECTION 2: Housing Element Compliance. Pursuant to the requirements of California 
Government Code Chapter 3, Article 10.6, commencing with Section 65580, as the decision-making body 
for the Project, the DAB finds that based on the facts and information contained in the Application and 
supporting documentation, at the time of Project implementation, the project is consistent with the Housing 
Element of the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan, as the project site is not one of 
the properties in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3 (Available Land by Planning Area) of 
the Housing Element Technical Report Appendix. 
 

SECTION 3: ALUCP Compliance. The California State Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code 
Section 21670 et seq.) requires that an Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan be prepared for all public use 
airports in the State; and requires that local land use plans and individual development proposals must be 
consistent with the policies set forth in the adopted Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. On April 19, 2011, 
the City Council of the City of Ontario approved and adopted the Ontario International Airport Land use 
Compatibility Plan, establishing the Airport Influence Area for Ontario International Airport, which 
encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and limits future 
land uses and development within the Airport Influence Area, as they relate to noise, safety, airspace 
protection, and overflight impacts of current and future airport activity. As the decision-making body for the 
Project, the DAB has reviewed and considered the facts and information contained in the Application and 
supporting documentation against the ALUCP compatibility factors, including [1] Safety Criteria (ALUCP 
Table 2-2) and Safety Zones (ALUCP Map 2-2), [2] Noise Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-3) and Noise Impact 
Zones (ALUCP Map 2-3), [3] Airspace protection Zones (ALUCP Map 2-4), and [4] Overflight Notification 
Zones (ALUCP Map 2-5). As a result, the DAB, therefore, finds and determines that the Project, when 
implemented in conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be consistent with the policies and criteria 
set forth within the ALUCP. 
 

SECTION 4: Concluding Facts and Reasons. Based upon the substantial evidence presented 
to the DAB during the above-referenced hearing and upon the facts and information set forth in Parts I 
(Background and Analysis) and II (Recitals), above, and the specific findings set forth in Sections 1 through 
3, above, the DAB hereby concludes as follows: 
 

(1) The proposed development at the proposed location is consistent with the goals, 
policies, plans and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities 
components of The Ontario Plan. The proposed Project is located within the Industrial land use district 
of the Policy Plan Land Use Map, and the IG (General Industrial) zoning district. The development 
standards and conditions under which the proposed Project will be constructed and maintained, is 
consistent with the goals, policies, plans, and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City 
Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan; and 
 

Item B - 4 of 37



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV20-027 
October 18, 2021 
 
 

Page 5 

(2) The proposed development is compatible with those on adjoining sites in relation to 
location of buildings, with particular attention to privacy, views, any physical constraint identified 
on the site and the characteristics of the area in which the site is located. The Project has been 
designed consistent with the requirements of the City of Ontario Development Code and the IG (General 
Industrial) zoning district, including standards relative to the particular land use proposed (maintenance 
building and tractor-trailer parking), as-well-as building intensity, building and parking setbacks, building 
height, number of off-street parking and loading spaces, on-site and off-site landscaping, and fences, walls 
and obstructions; and 
 

(3) The proposed development will complement and/or improve upon the quality of 
existing development in the vicinity of the project and the minimum safeguards necessary to protect 
the public health, safety and general welfare have been required of the proposed project. The 
Development Advisory Board has required certain safeguards, and impose certain conditions of approval, 
which have been established to ensure that: [i] the purposes of the Development Code are maintained; [ii] 
the Project will not endanger the public health, safety or general welfare; [iii] the Project will not result in 
any significant environmental impacts; [iv] the Project will be in harmony with the area in which it is located; 
and [v] the Project will be in full conformity with the Vision, City Council Priorities and Policy Plan 
components of The Ontario Plan; and 
 

(4) The proposed development is consistent with the development standards and 
design guidelines set forth in the Development Code, or applicable specific plan or planned unit 
development. The proposed Project has been reviewed for consistency with the general development 
standards and guidelines of the Development Code that are applicable to the proposed Project, including 
building intensity, building and parking setbacks, building height, amount of off-street parking and loading 
spaces, parking lot dimensions, design and landscaping, bicycle parking, on-site landscaping, and fences 
and walls, as-well-as those development standards and guidelines specifically related to the particular land 
use being proposed (maintenance building and tractor-trailer parking). As a result of this review, the 
Development Advisory Board has determined that the Project, when implemented in conjunction with the 
conditions of approval, will be consistent with the development standards and guidelines described in the 
Development Code. 
 

SECTION 5: Development Advisory Board Action. Based on the findings and conclusions 
set forth in Sections 1 through 4, above, the DAB hereby APPROVES the Application subject to each and 
every condition set forth in the Department reports included as Attachment A of this Decision and 
incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

SECTION 6: Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding 
against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul this 
approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, 
and the City of Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

SECTION 7: Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that constitute the record 
of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located at the City of Ontario City Hall, 303 
East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The custodian for these records is the City Clerk of the City of 
Ontario. The records are available for inspection by any interested person, upon request. 
 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Item B - 5 of 37



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV20-027 
October 18, 2021 
 
 

Page 6 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 18th day of October 2021. 
 
 
 
 

Development Advisory Board Chairman 
 
 

Item B - 6 of 37



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV20-027 
October 18, 2021 
 
 

Page 7 

Exhibit A—PROJECT LOCATION MAP 
 

 

Item B - 7 of 37



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV20-027 
October 18, 2021 
 
 

Page 8 

Exhibit B—SITE PLAN 
 

 
 
  

Item B - 8 of 37



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV20-027 
October 18, 2021 
 
 

Page 9 

Exhibit C—ELEVATIONS 
 

 

Item B - 9 of 37



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV20-027 
October 18, 2021 
 
 

Page 10 

Exhibit D—LANDSCAPE PLAN 
 

 

Item B - 10 of 37



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV20-027 
October 18, 2021 
 
 

Page 11 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment A—Departmental Conditions of Approval 
 

(Departmental conditions of approval follow this page) 

Item B - 11 of 37



 

Page 1 of 5 

303 East B Street, Ontario, California 91764 Phone: 909.395.2036 / Fax: 909.395.2420 

LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

 
Date Prepared: 10/18/2021 
 
File No: PDEV20-027 
 
Related Files: N/A 
 
Project Description: A Development Plan to construct a 7,200-square-foot truck maintenance 
building and tractor-trailer parking on 4.2 acres of land located at the southeast corner of Cedar 
Street and Cucamonga Avenue, within the IG (General Industrial) zoning district. APNs: 1050-501-
16 and 1050-501-15; submitted by NFI Industries.  
 
Prepared By: Lorena Mejia, Senior Planner 

Phone: 909.395.2276 (direct) 
Email: lmejia@ontarioca.gov 

 
 

The Planning Department, Land Development Section, conditions of approval applicable 
to the above-described Project, are listed below. The Project shall comply with each condition of 
approval listed below: 
 
1.0 Standard Conditions of Approval. The project shall comply with the Standard Conditions 
for New Development, adopted by City Council Resolution No. 2017-027 on April 18, 2017. A copy 
of the Standard Conditions for New Development may be obtained from the Planning 
Department or City Clerk/Records Management Department. 
 
2.0 Special Conditions of Approval. In addition to the Standard Conditions for New 
Development identified in condition no. 1.0, above, the project shall comply with the following 
special conditions of approval: 
 

2.1 Time Limits. 
 

(a) Development Plan approval shall become null and void 2 years following 
the effective date of application approval, unless a building permit is issued and construction is 
commenced, and diligently pursued toward completion, or a time extension has been approved 
by the Planning Director. This condition does not supersede any individual time limits specified 
herein, or any other departmental conditions of approval applicable to the Project, for the 
performance of specific conditions or improvements. 
 

2.2 General Requirements. The Project shall comply with the following general 
requirements: 

 
(a) All construction documentation shall be coordinated for consistency, 

including, but not limited to, architectural, structural, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, landscape 
and irrigation, grading, utility and street improvement plans. All such plans shall be consistent with 
the approved entitlement plans on file with the Planning Department. 

Item B - 12 of 37



Planning Department – Land Development Division 
Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV20-027 
 
 

Page 2 of 5 

 
(b) The project site shall be developed in conformance with the approved 

plans on file with the City. Any variation from the approved plans must be reviewed and approved 
by the Planning Department prior to building permit issuance. 
 

(c) The herein-listed conditions of approval from all City departments shall be 
included in the construction plan set for project, which shall be maintained on site during project 
construction. 
 

2.3 Landscaping.  
 

(a) The Project shall provide and continuously maintain landscaping and 
irrigation systems in compliance with the provisions of Ontario Development Code Division 6.05 
(Landscaping). 
 

(b) Comply with the conditions of approval of the Planning Department; 
Landscape Planning Division. 
 

(c) Landscaping shall not be installed until the Landscape and Irrigation 
Construction Documentation Plans required by Ontario Development Code Division 6.05 
(Landscaping) have been approved by the Landscape Planning Division. 
 

(d) Changes to approved Landscape and Irrigation Construction 
Documentation Plans, which affect the character or quantity of the plant material or irrigation 
system design, shall be resubmitted for approval of the revision by the Landscape Planning 
Division, prior to the commencement of the changes. 
 

2.4 Walls and Fences. All Project walls and fences shall comply with the requirements 
of Ontario Development Code Division 6.02 (Walls, Fences and Obstructions). The proposed 
screen wall shall incorporate decorative pilasters along its length and shall be architecturally 
designed to prevent monotony and complement the proposed building. 
 

2.5 Parking, Circulation and Access. 
 

(a) The Project shall comply with the applicable off-street parking, loading and 
lighting requirements of City of Ontario Development Code Division 6.03 (Off-Street Parking and 
Loading). 
 

(b) All drive approaches shall be provided with an enhanced pavement 
treatment. The enhanced paving shall extend from the back of the approach apron, into the site, 
to the first intersecting drive aisle or parking space. 

 
(c) Areas provided to meet the City’s parking requirements, including off-street 

parking and loading spaces, access drives, and maneuvering areas, shall not be used for the 
outdoor storage of materials and equipment, nor shall it be used for any other purpose than 
parking. 

 
(d) The required number of off-street parking spaces and/or loading spaces 

shall be provided at the time of site and/or building occupancy. All parking and loading spaces 
shall be maintained in good condition for the duration of the building or use. 

Item B - 13 of 37



Planning Department – Land Development Division 
Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV20-027 
 
 

Page 3 of 5 

 
(e) Parking spaces specifically designated and conveniently located for use 

by the physically disabled shall be provided pursuant to current accessibility regulations 
contained in State law (CCR Title 24, Part 2, Chapters 2B71, and CVC Section 22507.8). 

 
(f) Bicycle parking facilities, including bicycle racks, lockers, and other secure 

facilities, shall be provided in conjunction with development projects pursuant to current 
regulations contained in CALGreen (CAC Title 24, Part 11). 
 

2.6 Outdoor Loading and Storage Areas. 
 

(a) Loading facilities shall be designed and constructed pursuant to 
Development Code Division 6.03 (Off-Street Parking and Loading). 
 

(b) Areas designated for off-street parking, loading, and vehicular circulation 
and maneuvering, shall not be used for the outdoor storage of materials or equipment. 
 

(c) Outdoor loading and storage areas, and loading doors, shall be screened 
from public view pursuant to the requirements of Development Code Paragraph 6.02.025.A.2 
(Screening of Outdoor Loading and Storage Areas, and Loading Doors) Et Seq. 
 

(d) Outdoor loading and storage areas shall be provided with gates that are 
view-obstructing by one of the following methods: 
 

(i) Construct gates with a perforated metal sheet affixed to the inside 
of the gate surface (50 percent screen); or 

(ii) Construct gates with minimum one-inch square tube steel pickets 
spaced at maximum 2-inches apart. 
 

(e) The minimum gate height for screen wall openings shall be established 
based upon the corresponding wall height, as follows: 
 

Screen Wall Height Minimum Gate Height 

14 feet: 10 feet 

12 feet: 9 feet 

10 feet: 8 feet 

8 feet: 8 feet 

6 feet: 6 feet 
 

2.7 Site Lighting. 
 

(a) All off-street parking facilities shall be provided with nighttime security 
lighting pursuant to Ontario Municipal Code Section 4-11.08 (Special Residential Building 
Provisions) and Section 4-11.09 (Special Commercial/Industrial Building Provisions), designed to 
confine emitted light to the parking areas. Parking facilities shall be lighted from sunset until sunrise, 
daily, and shall be operated by a photocell switch. 
 

Item B - 14 of 37



Planning Department – Land Development Division 
Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV20-027 
 
 

Page 4 of 5 

(b) Unless intended as part of a master lighting program, no operation, activity, 
or lighting fixture shall create illumination on any adjacent property. 
 

2.8 Mechanical and Rooftop Equipment. 
 

(a) All exterior roof-mounted mechanical, heating and air conditioning 
equipment, and all appurtenances thereto, shall be completely screened from public view by 
parapet walls or roof screens that are architecturally treated so as to be consistent with the 
building architecture. 
 

(b) All ground-mounted utility equipment and structures, such as tanks, 
transformers, HVAC equipment, and backflow prevention devices, shall be located out of view 
from a public street, or adequately screened through the use of landscaping and/or decorative 
low garden walls. 
 

2.9 Security Standards. The Project shall comply with all applicable requirements of 
Ontario Municipal Code Title 4 (Public Safety), Chapter 11 (Security Standards for Buildings). 
 

2.10 Signs. All Project signage shall comply with the requirements of Ontario 
Development Code Division 8.1 (Sign Regulations). 
 

2.11 Sound Attenuation. The Project shall be constructed and operated in a manner so 
as not to exceed the maximum interior and exterior noised levels set forth in Ontario Municipal 
Code Title 5 (Public Welfare, Morals, and Conduct), Chapter 29 (Noise). 
 

2.12 Environmental Review.  
 

(a) The proposed project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the 
California Environmental Quality Act of 1970 (CEQA), as amended, and the Guidelines 
promulgated thereunder, pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32, In-Fill Development Projects) of the 
CEQA Guidelines, meeting the following conditions: 
 

(i) The Project is consistent with the applicable general plan 
designation and all applicable general plan policies, as well as the applicable zoning designation 
and regulations; 

(ii) The proposed development occurs within city limits, on a project 
site of no more than five acres, and is substantially surrounded by urban uses; 

(iii) The project site has no value as habitat for endangered, rare, or 
threatened species; 

(iv) Approval of the Project will not result in any significant effects 
relating to traffic, noise, air quality, or water quality; and 

(v) The Project site can be adequately served by all required utilities 
and public services. 
 

(b) If human remains are found during project 
grading/excavation/construction activities, the area shall not be disturbed until any required 
investigation is completed by the County Coroner and Native American consultation has been 
completed (if deemed applicable). 
 

Item B - 15 of 37



Planning Department – Land Development Division 
Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV20-027 
 
 

Page 5 of 5 

(c) If any archeological or paleontological resources are found during project 
grading/excavation/construction, the area shall not be disturbed until the significance of the 
resource is determined. If determined to be significant, the resource shall be recovered by a 
qualified archeologist or paleontologist consistent with current standards and guidelines, or other 
appropriate measures implemented. 
 

2.13 Indemnification. The applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold harmless, 
the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding 
against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul 
any approval of the City of Ontario, whether by its City Council, Planning Commission or other 
authorized board or officer. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such 
claim, action or proceeding, and the City of Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

2.14 Additional Fees. 
 

(a) Within 5 days following final application approval, the Notice of 
Determination (“NOD”) filing fee shall be provided to the Planning Department. The fee shall be 
paid by check, made payable to the "Clerk of the Board of Supervisors", which shall be forwarded 
to the San Bernardino County Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, along with all applicable 
environmental forms/notices, pursuant to the requirements of the California Environmental Quality 
Act (“CEQA”). Failure to provide said fee within the time specified may result in a 180-day 
extension to the statute of limitations for the filing of a CEQA lawsuit. 
 

(b) After the Project’s entitlement approval, and prior to issuance of final 
building permits, the Planning Department’s Plan Check and Inspection fees shall be paid at the 
rate established by resolution of the City Council. 
 

Item B - 16 of 37



Item B - 17 of 37



Item B - 18 of 37



Item B - 19 of 37



Item B - 20 of 37



Item B - 21 of 37



Item B - 22 of 37



Item B - 23 of 37



Item B - 24 of 37



Item B - 25 of 37



Item B - 26 of 37



Item B - 27 of 37



Item B - 28 of 37



Item B - 29 of 37



Item B - 30 of 37



CITY OF ONTARIO 
LANDSCAPE PLANNING DIVISION 

303 East “B” Street, Ontario, CA 91764 

DAB CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
Sign Off 

 08/06/21 
Jamie Richardson, Sr. Landscape Planner Date 

Reviewer’s Name:  
Jamie Richardson, Sr. Landscape Planner 

Phone: 
(909) 395-2615 

 D.A.B. File No.:                                           
PDEV20-027 

Case Planner: 
Denny Chen 

Project Name and Location:  
Truck maintenance Industrial Bldgs 
2009 S Cucamonga 
Applicant/Representative: 
NFI Industries – Ware Malcomb/Noah Ramos nramos@waremalcomb.com  
TRIAD1828 CENTRE, 2 Cooper Street 
Camden, NJ 08102 
 
 
 

 
 
Preliminary Plans (dated 7/12/21) meets the Standard Conditions for New Development 
and has been approved with the consideration that the following conditions below be met 
upon submittal of the landscape construction documents. 

 
 
Preliminary Plans (dated) has not been approved. Corrections noted below are required 
prior to Preliminary Landscape Plan approval. 

A RESPONSE SHEET IS REQUIRED WITH RESUBMITTAL OR PLANS WILL BE RETURNED AS INCOMPLETE. 
Landscape construction plans with plan check number may be emailed to: landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov 
DIGITAL SUBMITTALS MUST BE 10MB OR LESS. 

 
Civil/ Site Plans 

1. Show transformers set back 5’ from paving all sides. Coordinate with landscape plans. 
2. Show backflow devices set back 4’ from paving all sides. Locate on level grade 
3. Locate utilities including light standards, fire hydrants, water, drain and sewer lines to not conflict 

with required tree locations. Coordinate civil plans with landscape plans. 
4. Revise site plan to show the landscape calculation of 10% of the site not including right of way or 

paving. 
5. Note for compaction to be no greater than 85% at landscape areas. All finished grades at 1 ½” below 

finished surfaces. Slopes to be maximum 3:1. 
6. After a project’s entitlement approval, the applicant shall pay all applicable fees for landscape plan 

check and inspections at a rate established by resolution of the City Council. 
Landscape Plans 
7. Show backflow devices with 36” high strappy leaf shrub screening and trash enclosures and 

transformers, a 4’-5’ high evergreen hedge screening. Do not encircle utility, show as masses and 
duplicate masses in other locations on regular intervals. 

8. Locate light standards, fire hydrants, water and sewer lines to not conflict with required tree 
locations. Coordinate civil plans with landscape plans 

9. Show all utilities on the landscape plans. Coordinate so utilities are clear of tree locations. 
10. Street trees for this project are: Cercis reniformis ‘Alba’ per the Master Street Tree Plan. Use 

evergreen background trees to contrast with deciduous street trees and triangularly space between 
them. 

11. Overhead spray systems shall be designed for plant material less than the height of the spray head. 

Item B - 31 of 37

mailto:nramos@waremalcomb.com
mailto:landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov


12. Replace invasive, high water using, short lived, high maintenance or poor performing plants 
Phormium (poor performer; consider Dianella),  

13. Note: 8’ diameter of mulch only at new trees. Detail irrigation dripline outside of mulched root zone. 
14. Designer or developer to provide agronomical soil testing and include report on landscape 

construction plans.  
15. Show 25% of trees as California native (Platanus racemosa, Quercus agrifolia, Quercus wislizenii, 

Quercus douglasii, Cercis occidentalis etc.) in appropriate locations. 
16. Landscape construction plans shall meet the requirements of the Landscape Development 

Guidelines. See http://www.ontarioca.gov/landscape-planning/standards 
17. After a project’s entitlement approval, the applicant shall pay all applicable fees for landscape plan 

check and inspections at a rate established by resolution of the City Council.  
  
Landscape construction plans with building permit number for plan check may be emailed to: 
landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov 

Item B - 32 of 37

http://www.ontarioca.gov/landscape-planning/standards
mailto:landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov


 

CITY OF ONTARIO 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 
 
TO:  Denny Chen, Associate Planner 
  Planning Department 
 
FROM:  Mike Gerken, Deputy Fire Chief/Fire Marshal 
  Fire Department 
 
DATE:  April 7, 2021 
 
SUBJECT: PDEV20-027 - A Development Plan to construct a 7,200 square foot truck 

maintenance building with truck parking on 3.8 acres of land located at 
2009 South Cucamonga Avenue, within the General Industrial zoning 
district (APNs: 1050-471-04, 1050-501-15, and 1050-501-16). (Revision 1).  

 
 

   The plan does adequately address Fire Department requirements at this time.  

   See previous report for Conditions. 

 

Item B - 33 of 37



 

CITY OF ONTARIO 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 
 
TO:  Danny Chen, Associate Planner 
  Planning Department 
 
FROM:  Mike Gerken, Deputy Fire Chief/Fire Marshal 
  Fire Department 
 
DATE:  December 22, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: PDEV20-027 - A Development Plan to construct one truck maintenance 

industrial buildings totaling 7,200 square feet with truck parking on 3.8 
acres of land located at 2009 South Cucamonga Avenue, within the General 
Industrial zoning district (APNs: 1050-471-04, 1050-501-15 & -16). Related 
File: None. 

 
 

   The plan does adequately address Fire Department requirements at this time.  

   Standard Conditions of Approval apply, as stated below. 

 
 
 
SITE AND BUILDING FEATURES: 
 

A. 2019 CBC Type of Construction:  Type III-B 
 

B. Type of Roof Materials:  N/A 
 

C. Ground Floor Area(s):  7,200 SF 
 

D. Number of Stories:  1 
 

E. Total Square Footage: 7,200 SF   
 

F. 2019 CBC Occupancy Classification(s): F-1 
 

 
  

 
 

Item B - 34 of 37



 
2 of 3  

 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: 
 

1.0 GENERAL 
 

  1.1 The following are the Ontario Fire Department (“Fire Department”) requirements for this 
development project, based on the current edition of the California Fire Code (CFC), and the 
current versions of the Fire Prevention Standards (“Standards.”) It is recommended that the 
applicant or developer transmit a copy of these requirements to the on-site contractor(s) and 
that all questions or concerns be directed to the Bureau of Fire Prevention, at (909) 395-2029. 
For copies of Ontario Fire Department Standards please access the City of Ontario web site at 
www.ontarioca.gov/Fire/Prevention.  

 
  1.2 These Fire Department conditions of approval are to be included on any and all construction 

drawings.  
 
2.0 FIRE DEPARTMENT ACCESS 
 

  2.1 Fire Department vehicle access roadways shall be provided to within 150 ft. of all portions of 
the exterior walls of the first story of any building, unless specifically approved. Roadways 
shall be paved with an all-weather surface and shall be a minimum of twenty-four (24) ft. wide. 
See Standard #B-004.   

 
  2.2 In order to allow for adequate turning radius for emergency fire apparatus, all turns shall be 

designed to meet the minimum twenty five feet (25’) inside and forty-five feet (45’) outside 
turning radius per Standard #B-005.   

 
  2.5 "No Parking-Fire Lane" signs and /or red painted curbs with lettering are required to be instal-

led in interior access roadways, in locations where vehicle parking would obstruct the 
minimum clear width requirement. Installation shall be per Standard #B-001.  

 
  2.6 Security gates or other barriers on fire access roadways shall be provided with a Knox brand 

key switch or padlock to allow Fire Department access.  See Standards #B-003, B-004 and H-
001. 

 
  2.7 Any time PRIOR to on-site combustible construction and/or storage, a minimum twenty-four 

(24) ft. wide circulating all weather access roads shall be provided to within 150 ft. of all 
portions of the exterior walls of the first story of any building, unless specifically approved by 
fire department and other emergency services. 
 

 
3.0 WATER SUPPLY 
 

  3.1 The required fire flow per Fire Department standards, based on the 2019 California Fire Code, 
Appendix B, is 1000  gallons per minute (g.p.m.) for 2 hours at a minimum of 20 pounds per 
square inch (p.s.i.) residual operating pressure. 

 
  3.2 Off-site (public) fire hydrants are required to be installed on all frontage streets, at a minimum 

spacing of three hundred foot (300’) apart, per Engineering Department specifications.  

Item B - 35 of 37

http://www.ontarioca.gov/Fire/Prevention


 
3 of 3  

 

  3.4 The water supply, including water mains and fire hydrants, shall be tested and approved by the 
Engineering Department and Fire Department prior to combustible construction to assure 
availability and reliability for firefighting purposes.  

 
4.0 FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEMS 
 

  4.5 Fire Department Connections (FDC) shall be located on the address side of the building within 
one hundred fifty feet (150’) of a public fire hydrant on the same side of the street.  Provide 
identification for all fire sprinkler control valves and fire department connections per Standard 
#D-007. Raised curbs adjacent to Fire Department connection(s) shall be painted red, five feet 
either side, per City standards. 

 
  4.6 A fire alarm system is required.  The system design shall be in accordance with National Fire 

Protection Association (NFPA) Standard 72. An application along with detailed plans shall be 
submitted, and a construction permit shall be issued by the Fire Department, prior to any work 
being done.  

 
  4.7 Portable fire extinguishers are required to be installed prior to occupancy per Standard #C-001.  

Please contact the Fire Prevention Bureau to determine the exact number, type and placement 
required. 
   

5.0 BUILDING CONSTRUCTION FEATURES 
 

  5.1 The developer/general contractor is to be responsible for reasonable periodic cleanup of the 
development during construction to avoid hazardous accumulations of combustible trash and 
debris both on and off the site. 

 
  5.2 Approved numbers or addresses shall be placed on all new and existing buildings in such a 

position as to be plainly visible and legible from the street or road fronting the property.  Multi-
tenant or building projects shall have addresses and/or suite numbers provided on the rear of 
the building.  Address numbers shall contrast with their background. See Section 9-1 6.06 of 
the Ontario Municipal Code and Standards #H-003 and #H-002.  
 

  5.6 Knox ® brand key-box(es) shall be installed in location(s) acceptable to the Fire Department. 
All Knox boxes shall be monitored for tamper by the building fire alarm system. See Standard 
#H-001 for specific requirements. 

 
6.0 OTHER SPECIAL USES 
 

  6.1 The storage, use, dispensing, or handling of any hazardous materials shall be approved by the 
Fire Department, and adequate fire protection features shall be required.  If hazardous materials 
are proposed, a Fire Department Hazardous Materials Information Packet, including 
Disclosure Form and Information Worksheet, shall be completed and submitted with Material 
Safety Data Sheets to the Fire Department along with building construction plans. 
 

 
 

 

Item B - 36 of 37



AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLANNING 

Project File No.:

Address:

APN:

Existing Land 
Use:

Proposed Land 
Use:

Site Acreage:

ONT-IAC Project Review:

This proposed Project is: Exempt from the ALUCP Consistent Consistent with Conditions Inconsistent

Reviewed By:

Date:

Contact Info:

Project Planner:

CD No.:

PALU No.:

The project is impacted by the following ONT ALUCP Compatibility Zones: 

Safety Noise Impact Airspace Protection

Zone 1

Zone 1A

Zone 2

Zone 3

Zone 4

Zone 5

75+ dB CNEL

70 - 75 dB CNEL

65 - 70 dB CNEL

60 - 65 dB CNEL

High Terrain Zone Avigation Easement 
Dedication

Real Estate Transaction

Zone 1 Zone 2 Zone 3 Zone 4 Zone 5

CONSISTENCY DETERMINATION

Airspace Avigation 
Easement Area

Allowable 
Height:

The project is impacted by the following Chino ALUCP Safety Zones: 

Form Updated: March 3, 2016Page 1

Zone 6

Allowable Height:

PDEV20-027

2009 South Cucamonga Avenue

1050-501-15 & 16

Truck Yard

Development Plan to construct one truck maintenance building totaling 7,200 SF

4.2

n/a

ONT

The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport (ONT) and was
evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP)
for ONT.

✔

✔ ✔

Lorena Mejia

909-395-2276

Denny Chen

1/06/2021

2020-036

n/a

28 FT

200 FT +

✔

Item B - 37 of 37



Page 1 

Development Advisory Board Decision 
October 18, 2021 

DECISION NO.: [insert #] 

DECISION NO.: [insert #] 

FILE NOS.: PMTT19-008 and PDEV19-023 

DESCRIPTION: A Tentative Tract Map (No. 20281) to subdivide 4.79 acres of land into 37 
numbered lots and one common lettered lot, and a Development Plan to construct 37 dwelling units and 
associated recreation facility on property located at 9510 East Chino Avenue, within Neighborhood 3A land 
use district of the Countryside Specific Plan; APN 0218-111-56; submitted by Chino Avenue LLC. 
Planning Commission action is required. 

Part I—BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS 

CHINO AVENUE LLC, (herein after referred to as “Applicant”) has filed an application requesting 
Tentative Tract Map (File No. PMTT19-008 (TTM 20281)) and Development Plan (File No. PDEV19-023) 
approval, as described in the subject of this Decision (herein after referred to as "Application" or "Project"). 

(1) Project Setting: The project site is comprised of 4.79 acres of land located at 9510 East
Chino Avenue, which was previously used for miscellaneous equipment storage for a local business, and 
is depicted in Exhibit A—Project Location Map, attached. Existing land uses, General Plan and zoning 
designations, and specific plan land uses on and surrounding the project site are as follows: 

Existing Land Use General Plan 
Designation Zoning Designation Specific Plan 

Land Use 

Site Vacant Low Density 
(2.1-5 du/ac) Countryside Specific Plan Neighborhood 3A 

(Cluster Court 2) -- 

North Single-family residential Low Density 
(2.1-5 du/ac) Countryside Specific Plan Neighborhood 1 

(RD-5,500) 

South Vacant Low Density 
(2.1-5 du/ac) Countryside Specific Plan Neighborhood 5 (Z-lot) 

East Single-family residential Low Density 
(2.1-5 du/ac) Countryside Specific Plan Neighborhood 4 

(RD 5,000) 

West Single-family residential Low Density 
(2.1-5 du/ac) Countryside Specific Plan Neighborhood 3 

(RD-5,000) 

(2) Project Description:

(a) Background —The Countryside Specific Plan (File No. PSP04-001) was approved,
and the related Environmental Impact Report (“EIR”; State Clearinghouse No. 2004071001) was certified 
by the City Council on April 18, 2006. The Countryside Specific Plan established the land use designations, 
development standards, and design guidelines on 178 gross acres of land, which included the potential 
development of 819 dwelling units and approximately 9.4 acres of paseos and parks throughout the Specific 
Plan area. 

Item C - 1 of 79



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File Nos. PMTT19-008 (TTM 20281) and PDEV19-023  
October 18, 2021 
 
 

Page 2 

In 2010, The Ontario Plan (“TOP”) was adopted, which set forth the land use pattern for the City, to achieve 
its Vision. With the adoption of TOP, a Low-Density Residential land use designation was assigned to the 
Project site. As the Countryside Specific Plan was established prior to the TOP, and as residential density 
is spread out across the full Specific Plan area, certain neighborhoods may exceed the density thresholds 
as established by the TOP. While the proposed Project exceeds the TOP density threshold of five dwelling 
units per acre, the Specific Plan area has an overall density of approximately 4.6 dwelling units per acre. 
 
On April 10, 2019, the Applicant submitted a Tentative Tract Map, Development Plan, and minor Specific 
Plan Amendment application to facilitate the construction of 37 single-family dwellings on the Project site.  
 

(b) Tentative Tract Map No. 20281 (File No. PMTT19-008) — The Applicant is 
proposing to subdivide the 4.79-acre Project site into 37 numbered lots and one common lettered lot (see 
Exhibit B—Site Plan and Exhibit C—Tract Map, both attached). The Tract Map will establish lots ranging in 
size from 2,735 to 3,368 square feet, with an average lot width of 44 feet and average lot depth of 75 feet, 
consistent with the minimum development standards established for Cluster Court 2 product type. 
 

(c) Development Plan (File No. PDEV19-023) 
 

(i) Site Design/Building Layout. The Applicant is proposing to construct 37 
single-family dwellings and associated recreational facility (see Exhibit B—Site Plan, attached). The 
dwellings will be sited in ten-unit clusters and common use easements will be established along the side 
yards to accommodate trashcan storage and AC condenser units. Dwellings located along Colonial Avenue 
will face the street, while the dwellings interior to the cluster will be provided with front entryways along the 
drive aisle. A recreational facility will be centrally located within the project site, and the easterly stretch of 
the project site will continue the meandering paseo extending from the tract to the north, down to Chino 
Avenue. 
 

(ii) Site Access/Circulation. Access to the site will be provided from one 
primary entrance along Chino Avenue. The project will facilitate the construction of all interior tract streets 
and drive aisles, including the extension of Colonial Avenue from the existing residential development to 
the north, down to Chino Avenue. Pedestrian connectivity will be provided by sidewalks and a meandering 
paseo along Colonial Avenue. The project is required to complete the remaining street improvements along 
the project’s Chino Avenue frontage, which includes the neighborhood edge. 
 

(iii) Parking. The Countryside Specific Plan and Ontario Development Code 
require a two-car, enclosed garage for single-family residential units. The Project has provided a two-car 
garage for each unit, in addition to a two-car driveway, two parking spaces at the recreation facility, and 22 
on-street parking spaces. As demonstrated in Table 1, below, the Project is required to provide a total of 
74 parking spaces that are within an enclosed garage. The Project proposes a total of 172 parking spaces 
(garage, driveway, recreation facility, and on-street parking), resulting in 4.65 parking spaces per unit. 
 

 
(iv) Architecture and Floor Plans. The architectural styles proposed consist 

of Bungalow, Cottage, Spanish, and Farmhouse (see Exhibit D—Architectural Renderings, attached). 
Architectural elements incorporated into the Project consist of: 

Table 1: Summary of Parking Analysis 

Product Number 
of Units 

Required 
2-Car 

Garage 
Spaces 

Garage 
Spaces 

Provided 

2-Car 
Driveway 
Spaces 

On-Street 
and Rec 
Parking 

Total 
Provided 

+/- 
Parking 

Single-Family Cluster 37 74 74 74 24 172 +98 

Per Unit Average      4.65  spaces per unit 

Item C - 2 of 79



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File Nos. PMTT19-008 (TTM 20281) and PDEV19-023  
October 18, 2021 
 
 

Page 3 

 A combination of roof pitches and styles, including hipped, gabled, and shed roofs; 
 Stucco walls with popped-out panels; 
 Wood siding, stone veneer, and tilework; 
 Front porches; 
 Decorative bracing and corbels; and 
 Enhancement for side and rear elevations where visible from public rights-of-way. 

 
The applicant has also expressed interest in providing architectural enhancements above and beyond City 
requirements for side and rear elevations not predominantly visible from public rights-of-way. 
 
The project proposes four distinct two-story floor plans. All floor plans include a two-car garage, kitchen, 
laundry nook, and a great room/living room area. Unit sizes and key features are described in Table 2: 
Floor Plan Summary, below. 
 

Table 2: Floor Plan Summary 

Plan 
Type Floor Area Key Features 

A 2,503 SF Four bedrooms, three bathrooms, one den/optional fifth bedroom 

B 2,259 SF Three bedrooms, 2.5 bathrooms, one den/optional fourth bedroom 

C 2,317 SF Four bedrooms, 2.5 bathrooms 

D 2,669 SF Four bedrooms, 2.5 bathrooms, one den/optional fifth bedroom 
 

(v) Landscaping. The Countryside Specific Plan and Ontario Development 
Code require that all areas not used for buildings or hardscape shall be fully landscaped. The Project 
provides fully landscaped front yards, park, parkways, and an approximate 50-foot-wide paseo along the 
eastern edge of the Project site. Landscape areas will utilize an assortment of decorative and shade trees, 
shrubs, groundcovers, turf, and other plantings. Plantings include, but are not limited to, Cork Oak, Water 
Gum, Strawberry Tree, Western Redbud, Bottlebrush Tree, California Pepper Tree, sage, rosemary, deer 
grass, and more. Tree box sizes range from 24 to 48 inches. 
 
The interior street, Colonial Avenue, will feature a ten-foot-wide landscaped parkway (five-foot sidewalk 
and five-foot planter). The frontage along Chino Avenue includes a 30-foot-wide landscaped neighborhood 
edge that includes a seven-foot-wide parkway, five-foot-wide sidewalk, eight-foot-wide decomposed granite 
trail, and ten-foot-wide landscape planter. 
 
The Project features a 0.2-acre park that is centrally located within the community and accessed via 
Colonial Avenue (see Exhibit E—Landscape Plan, attached). The park will include a small lawn and play 
area, as well as a pool, spa, and cabana area. The Project also features a 0.48-acre community paseo with 
open space and a trail that will provide connectivity from Chino Avenue, to the tract to the north of the 
Project site. 
 
TOP Policy Plan (Policy PR1-6) requires new developments to provide a minimum of 2 acres of private 
park per 1,000 residents. The proposed project is required to provide a 0.28-acre park to meet the minimum 
Policy Plan private park requirement. The related Tract Map No. 21281 proposes to provide 0.2-acre 
recreational facility alongside the 0.48-acre community paseo, which satisfies the Project’s minimum park 
requirements.  
 

(vi) Utilities (drainage, sewer). All major backbone improvements and 
interior site improvements will be constructed in congruence with the related Tract Map. The Applicant will 
also obtain an encroachment permit to conduct work within the public rights-of-way. Furthermore, the 
Applicant has submitted a Preliminary Water Quality Management Plan (“PWQMP”), which establishes the 

Item C - 3 of 79



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File Nos. PMTT19-008 (TTM 20281) and PDEV19-023  
October 18, 2021 
 
 

Page 4 

Project’s compliance with storm water discharge/water quality requirements. The PWQMP includes site 
design measures that capture runoff and pollutant transport by minimizing impervious surfaces and 
maximizes low impact development (“LID”) best management practices (“BMPs”), such as retention and 
infiltration, biotreatment, and evapotranspiration. 
 
 

Part II—RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (Public 
Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.) ("CEQA"); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Countryside Specific Plan Environmental Impact Report (State Clearinghouse No. 
2004071001) was certified by the City Council on April 18, 2006 (“Certified EIR”) in conjunction with File 
No. PSP04-001, in which development and use of the Project site was discussed; and 
 

WHEREAS, the environmental impacts of this project were thoroughly analyzed in the Certified 
EIR, which concluded that implementation of the Project could result in a number of significant effects on 
the environment and identified mitigation measures that would reduce each of those significant effects to a 
less-than-significant level; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City's "Local Guidelines for the Implementation of the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA)" provide for the use of a single environmental assessment in situations where the 
impacts of subsequent projects are adequately analyzed; and 
 

WHEREAS, Ontario Development Code Table 2.02-1 (Review Matrix) grants the Development 
Advisory Board (“DAB”) the responsibility and authority to review and make recommendation to the 
Planning Commission on the subject Application; and 
 

WHEREAS, all members of the DAB of the City of Ontario were provided the opportunity to review 
and comment on the Application, and no comments were received opposing the proposed development; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project has been reviewed for consistency with the Housing Element of the Policy 
Plan component of The Ontario Plan, as State Housing Element law (as prescribed in Government Code 
Sections 65580 through 65589.8) requires that development projects must be consistent with the Housing 
Element, if upon consideration of all its aspects, it is found to further the purposes, principals, goals, and 
policies of the Housing Element; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, 
which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and is 
subject to, and must be consistent with, the policies and criteria set forth in the Ontario International Airport 
Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), which applies only to jurisdictions within San Bernardino County, 
and addresses the noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts of current and future airport 
activity; and 
 

WHEREAS, City of Ontario Development Code Division 2.03 (Public Hearings) prescribes the 
manner in which public notification shall be provided and hearing procedures to be followed, and all such 
notifications and procedures have been completed; and 
 

WHEREAS, on October 18, 2021, the DAB of the City of Ontario conducted a hearing on the 
Application and concluded said hearing on that date; and 
 

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Decision have occurred. 
 

Item C - 4 of 79



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File Nos. PMTT19-008 (TTM 20281) and PDEV19-023  
October 18, 2021 
 
 

Page 5 

Part III—THE DECISION 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND AND DETERMINED by the Development Advisory 
Board of the City of Ontario, as follows: 
 

SECTION 1: Environmental Determination and Findings. As the recommending body for the 
Project, the DAB has reviewed and considered the information contained in the previous Certified EIR and 
supporting documentation. Based upon the facts and information contained in the previous Certified EIR 
and supporting documentation, the DAB finds as follows: 
 

(1) The environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction with File 
No. PSP04-001, the Countryside Specific Plan for which an Environmental Impact Report (State 
Clearinghouse No. 2004071001) was adopted by the City Council on April 18, 2006. 
 

(2) The previous Certified EIR contains a complete and accurate reporting of the 
environmental impacts associated with the Project; and 
 

(3) The previous Certified EIR was completed in compliance with CEQA and the Guidelines 
promulgated thereunder, and the City of Ontario Local CEQA Guidelines; and 
 

(4) The previous Certified EIR reflects the independent judgment of the City Council; and 
 

(5) The proposed project will introduce no new significant environmental impacts beyond those 
previously analyzed in the previous Certified EIR, and all mitigation measures previously adopted with the 
Certified EIR, are incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

SECTION 2: Subsequent or Supplemental Environmental Review Not Required. Based on 
the information presented to the DAB, and the specific findings set forth in Section 1, above, the DAB finds 
that the preparation of a subsequent or supplemental Certified EIR is not required for the Project, as the 
Project: 
 

(1) Does not constitute substantial changes to the Certified EIR that will require major revisions 
to the Certified EIR due to the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a substantial increase 
in the severity of previously identified significant effects; and 

 
(2) Does not constitute substantial changes with respect to the circumstances under which the 

Certified EIR was prepared, that will require major revisions to the Certified EIR due to the involvement of 
new significant environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of the previously identified 
significant effects; and. 

 
(3) Does not contain new information of substantial importance that was not known and could 

not have been known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the time the Certified EIR was 
certified/adopted, that shows any of the following: 
 

(a) The project will have one or more significant effects not discussed in the Certified 
EIR; or 

 
(b) Significant effects previously examined will be substantially more severe than 

shown in the Certified EIR; or 
 
(c) Mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be feasible would in 

fact be feasible and would substantially reduce one or more significant effects of the Project, but the City 
declined to adopt such measures; or  

 

Item C - 5 of 79



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File Nos. PMTT19-008 (TTM 20281) and PDEV19-023  
October 18, 2021 
 
 

Page 6 

(d) Mitigation measures or alternatives considerably different from those analyzed in 
the Certified EIR would substantially reduce one or more significant effects on the environment, but which 
the City declined to adopt. 
 

SECTION 3: Housing Element Compliance. Pursuant to the requirements of California 
Government Code Chapter 3, Article 10.6, commencing with Section 65580, as the recommending body 
for the Project, the DAB finds that based on the facts and information contained in the Application and 
supporting documentation, at the time of Project implementation, the project is consistent with the Housing 
Element of the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan. The project site is one of the 
properties listed in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3 (Available Land by Planning Area) 
of the Housing Element Technical Report Appendix, and the proposed project is consistent with the number 
of dwelling units (37 for the project site, 819 specified in the Housing Element) and density (7.7 du/ac gross 
for the project site; 5-9 du/ac specified in the Housing Element) specified in the Available Land Inventory. 
 

SECTION 4: ALUCP Compliance. The California State Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code 
Section 21670 et seq.) requires that an Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan be prepared for all public use 
airports in the State; and requires that local land use plans and individual development proposals must be 
consistent with the policies set forth in the adopted Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. On April 19, 2011, 
the City Council of the City of Ontario approved and adopted the Ontario International Airport Land use 
Compatibility Plan, establishing the Airport Influence Area for Ontario International Airport, which 
encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and limits future 
land uses and development within the Airport Influence Area, as they relate to noise, safety, airspace 
protection, and overflight impacts of current and future airport activity. As the recommending body for the 
Project, the DAB has reviewed and considered the facts and information contained in the Application and 
supporting documentation against the ALUCP compatibility factors, including [1] Safety Criteria (ALUCP 
Table 2-2) and Safety Zones (ALUCP Map 2-2), [2] Noise Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-3) and Noise Impact 
Zones (ALUCP Map 2-3), [3] Airspace protection Zones (ALUCP Map 2-4), and [4] Overflight Notification 
Zones (ALUCP Map 2-5). As a result, the DAB, therefore, finds and determines that the Project, when 
implemented in conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be consistent with the policies and criteria 
set forth within the ALUCP. 
 

SECTION 5: Concluding Facts and Reasons. Based upon the substantial evidence presented 
to the DAB during the above-referenced hearing and upon the facts and information set forth in Parts I 
(Background and Analysis) and II (Recitals), above, and the determinations set forth in Sections 1 through 
4, above, the DAB hereby concludes as follows: 
 

(1) Tentative Tract Map No. 20281 (File No. PMTT19-008) 
 

(a) The proposed Tentative Tract Map is consistent with the goals, policies, 
plans, and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities components 
of The Ontario Plan, and applicable area and specific plans, and planned unit developments. The 
proposed Tentative Tract Map is located within the Low Density (2.1-5 du/ac) land use district of the Policy 
Plan Land Use Map, and the Neighborhood 3A land use district of the Countryside Specific Plan. The 
proposed subdivision is consistent with the goals, policies, plans, and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan 
(General Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan, as the project will contribute 
to providing “a spectrum of housing types and price ranges that match the jobs in the City, and that make 
it possible for people to live and work in Ontario and maintain a quality of life” (Goal LU1). Furthermore, the 
project will promote the City’s policy to “incorporate a variety of land uses and building types that contribute 
to a complete community where residents at all stages of life, employers, workers, and visitors, have a wide 
spectrum of choices of where they can live, work, shop, and recreate within Ontario” (Policy LU1-6 
Complete Community). 
 

(b) The design or improvement of the proposed Tentative Tract Map is 
consistent with the goals, policies, plans and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and 

Item C - 6 of 79



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File Nos. PMTT19-008 (TTM 20281) and PDEV19-023  
October 18, 2021 
 
 

Page 7 

City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan, and applicable specific plans and planned 
unit developments. The proposed Tentative Tract Map is located within the Low Density (2.1-5 du/ac) 
land use district of the Policy Plan Land Use Map, and the Neighborhood 3A land use district of the 
Countryside Specific Plan. The proposed design or improvement of the subdivision is consistent with the 
goals, policies, plans, and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities 
components of The Ontario Plan, as the project will contribute to providing “[a] high level of design quality 
resulting in public spaces, streetscapes, and developments that are attractive, safe, functional and distinct” 
(Goal CD2). Furthermore, the project will promote the City’s policy to “create distinct residential 
neighborhoods that are functional, have a sense of community, emphasize livability and social interaction, 
and are uniquely identifiable places through such elements as: 
 

 A pattern of smaller, walkable blocks that promote access, activity, and safety; 
 Variable setbacks and parcel sizes to accommodate a diversity of housing types; 
 Traffic calming measures to slow traffic and promote walkability while maintaining acceptable fire 

protection and traffic flows; 
 Floor plans that encourage views onto the street and de-emphasize the visual and physical 

dominance of garages (introducing the front porch as the “outdoor living room”), as appropriate; 
and 

 Landscaped parkways, with sidewalks separated from the curb.” (Policy CD2-2 Neighborhood 
Design). 

 
(c) The site is physically suitable for the type of development proposed. The 

project site meets the minimum lot area and dimensions of the Neighborhood 3A land use district of the 
Countryside Specific Plan and is physically suitable for the type of residential development proposed in 
terms of zoning, land use, and development activity proposed, and existing and proposed site conditions. 
 

(d) The site is physically suitable for the density of development proposed. The 
project site is proposed for residential development at a density of 7.72 du/acre (gross). The project site 
meets the minimum lot area and dimensions of the Neighborhood 3A land use district of the Countryside 
Specific Plan and is physically suitable for this proposed density of development. 
 

(e) The design of the subdivision or the proposed improvements thereon, are 
not likely to cause substantial environmental damage, or substantially and avoidably injure fish or 
wildlife, or their habitat. The project site is not located in an area that has been identified as containing 
species identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special status species in local or regional plans, policies or 
regulations or by the California Department of Fish and Wildlife or the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, nor 
does the site contain any riparian habitat or other sensitive natural community, and no wetland habitat is 
present on site; therefore, the design of the subdivision, or improvements proposed thereon, are not likely 
to cause substantial environmental damage, or substantially and avoidably injure fish or wildlife, or their 
habitat. 
 

(f) The design of the subdivision, or the type of improvements thereon, are not 
likely to cause serious public health problems. The design of the proposed subdivision, and the 
residential improvements proposed on the project site, are not likely to cause serious public health 
problems, as The project is not anticipated to involve the transport, use, or disposal of hazardous materials 
during either construction or project implementation, include the use of hazardous materials or volatile fuels, 
nor are there any known stationary commercial or industrial land uses within close proximity to the subject 
site that use/store hazardous materials to the extent that they would pose a significant hazard to visitors or 
occupants to the project site. 
 

(g) The design of the subdivision, or the type of improvements thereon, will not 
conflict with easements acquired by the public at large for access through, or use of property within, 
the proposed subdivision. The proposed subdivision has provided for all necessary public easements 
and dedications for access through, or use of property within, the proposed subdivision. Furthermore, all 

Item C - 7 of 79



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File Nos. PMTT19-008 (TTM 20281) and PDEV19-023  
October 18, 2021 
 
 

Page 8 

such public easements and dedications have been designed pursuant to: (a) the requirements of the Policy 
Plan component of The Ontario Plan and applicable area plans; (b) applicable specific plans or planned 
unit developments; (c) applicable provisions of the City of Ontario Development Code; (d) applicable master 
plans and design guidelines of the City; and (e) applicable Standard Drawings of the City. 
 

(2) Development Plan (File No. PDEV19-023) 
 

(a) The proposed development at the proposed location is consistent with the 
goals, policies, plans and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council 
Priorities components of The Ontario Plan. The proposed Project is located within the Low Density (2.1-
5 du/ac) land use district of the Policy Plan Land Use Map, and the Neighborhood 3A land use district of 
the Countryside Specific Plan. The development standards and conditions under which the proposed 
Project will be constructed and maintained, is consistent with the goals, policies, plans, and exhibits of the 
Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan. 
Construction of the Project will complete the residential neighborhood north of Chino Avenue and eliminate 
an unsightly vacant lot; and 
 

(b) The proposed development is compatible with those on adjoining sites in 
relation to location of buildings, with particular attention to privacy, views, any physical constraint 
identified on the site and the characteristics of the area in which the site is located. The Project has 
been designed consistent with the requirements of the City of Ontario Development Code and the 
Neighborhood 3A land use district of the Countryside Specific Plan, including standards relative to the 
particular land use proposed (residential), as well as building intensity, building and parking setbacks, 
building height, number of off-street parking and loading spaces, on-site and off-site landscaping, and 
fences, walls and obstructions. Construction of the Project will complete the residential neighborhood north 
of Chino Avenue and eliminate an unsightly vacant lot; and 
 

(c) The proposed development will complement and/or improve upon the quality 
of existing development in the vicinity of the project and the minimum safeguards necessary to 
protect the public health, safety and general welfare have been required of the proposed project. 
The Development Advisory Board has required certain safeguards, and impose certain conditions of 
approval, which have been established to ensure that: [i] the purposes of the Countryside Specific Plan are 
maintained; [ii] the project will not endanger the public health, safety or general welfare; [iii] the project will 
not result in any significant environmental impacts; [iv] the project will be in harmony with the area in which 
it is located; and [v] the project will be in full conformity with the Vision, City Council Priorities and Policy 
Plan components of The Ontario Plan, and the Countryside Specific Plan. Construction of the Project will 
complete the residential neighborhood north of Chino Avenue and eliminate an unsightly vacant lot; and 
 

(d) The proposed development is consistent with the development standards 
and design guidelines set forth in the Development Code, or applicable specific plan or planned 
unit development. The proposed Project has been reviewed for consistency with the general development 
standards and guidelines of the Countryside Specific Plan that are applicable to the proposed Project, 
including building intensity, building and parking setbacks, building height, amount of off-street parking and 
loading spaces, parking lot dimensions, design and landscaping, bicycle parking, on-site landscaping, and 
fences and walls, as-well-as those development standards and guidelines specifically related to the 
particular land use being proposed (residential). As a result of this review, the Development Advisory Board 
has determined that the Project, when implemented in conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be 
consistent with the development standards and guidelines described in the Countryside Specific Plan. 
 

SECTION 6: Development Advisory Board Action. Based on the findings and conclusions 
set forth in Sections 1 through 5, above, the DAB hereby recommends the Planning Commission APPROVE 
the Applications subject to each and every condition set forth in the Department reports included as 
Attachment A of this Decision and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

Item C - 8 of 79



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File Nos. PMTT19-008 (TTM 20281) and PDEV19-023  
October 18, 2021 
 
 

Page 9 

SECTION 7: Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify, and hold 
harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding 
against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul this 
approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, 
and the City of Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

SECTION 8: Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that constitute the record 
of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located at the City of Ontario City Hall, 303 
East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The custodian for these records is the City Clerk of the City of 
Ontario. The records are available for inspection by any interested person, upon request. 
 
 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - 
 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 18th day of October 2021. 
 
 
 
 
 

Development Advisory Board Chairman 
 
 

Item C - 9 of 79



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File Nos. PMTT19-008 (TTM 20281) and PDEV19-023 
October 18, 2021 
 
 

Page 10 

Exhibit A—PROJECT LOCATION MAP 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item C - 10 of 79



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File Nos. PMTT19-008 (TTM 20281) and PDEV19-023 
October 18, 2021 
 
 

Page 11 

Exhibit B—SITE PLAN  

Item C - 11 of 79



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File Nos. PMTT19-008 (TTM 20281) and PDEV19-023  
October 18, 2021 
 
 

Page 12 

Exhibit C—TRACT MAP 

Item C - 12 of 79



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File Nos. PMTT19-008 (TTM 20281) and PDEV19-023 
October 18, 2021 
 
 

Page 13 

Exhibit D—ARCHITECTURAL RENDERINGS 
 

  
Bungalow Plan C-1 Bungalow Plan A-1 

  
Cottage Plan B-II Cottage Plan A-II 

Item C - 13 of 79



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File Nos. PMTT19-008 (TTM 20281) and PDEV19-023  
October 18, 2021 
 
 

Page 14 

 
 

Farmhouse Plan A-I Farmhouse Plan B-I 

 

 

Spanish Plan B-III Spanish Plan D-III 

Item C - 14 of 79



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File Nos. PMTT19-008 (TTM 20281) and PDEV19-023  
October 18, 2021 
 
 

Page 15 

 
 

Bungalow Plan B-I Cottage Plan C-II 

 
 

Farmhouse Plan D-IV Spanish Plan A-II 

Item C - 15 of 79



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File Nos. PMTT19-008 (TTM 20281) and PDEV19-023  
October 18, 2021 
 
 

Page 16 

 
Aerial Street View Rendering 

  

Item C - 16 of 79



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File Nos. PMTT19-008 (TTM 20281) and PDEV19-023  
October 18, 2021 
 
 

Page 17 

 
Exhibit E—LANDSCAPE PLAN 

 

 
 

 

Item C - 17 of 79



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File Nos. PMTT19-008 (TTM 20281) and PDEV19-023 
October 18, 2021 
 
 

Page 18 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment A—Departmental Conditions of Approval 
 

(Departmental conditions of approval follow this page) 

Item C - 18 of 79



 

Page 1 of 5 

303 East B Street, Ontario, California 91764 Phone: 909.395.2036 / Fax: 909.395.2420 

LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

 
Date Prepared: 9/27/2021 
 
File No: PMTT19-008 
 
Related Files: PDEV19-023, PDA21-003 
 
Project Description: A Tentative Tract Map (TTM 20281) to subdivide 4.79 acres of land into 37 
numbered lots and one common lettered lot, for property located at 9510 East Chino Avenue, 
within the proposed Neighborhood 3A land use district of the Countryside Specific Plan; (APN 
0218-111-56); submitted by Chino Avenue, LLC. 
 
Prepared By: Alexis Vaughn, Assistant Planner 

Phone: 909.395.2416 (direct) 
Email: avaughn@ontarioca.gov 

 
 

The Planning Department, Land Development Section, conditions of approval applicable 
to the above-described Project, are listed below. The Project shall comply with each condition of 
approval listed below: 
 
1.0 Standard Conditions of Approval. The project shall comply with the Standard Conditions 
for New Development, adopted by City Council Resolution No. 2017-027 on April 18, 2017. A copy 
of the Standard Conditions for New Development may be obtained from the Planning 
Department or City Clerk/Records Management Department. 
 
2.0 Special Conditions of Approval. In addition to the Standard Conditions for New 
Development identified in condition no. 1.0, above, the project shall comply with the following 
special conditions of approval: 
 

2.1 Time Limits. 
 

(a) Tentative Tract Map approval shall become null and void 2 years following 
the effective date of application approval, unless the final tract map has been recorded, or a 
time extension has been approved by the Planning Commission pursuant to Development Code 
Section 2.02.025 (Time Limits and Extensions). This Permit does not supersede any individual time 
limits specified herein for performance of specific conditions or improvements. 
 

2.2 Subdivision Map. 
 

(a) The Final Tract Map shall be in conformance with the approved Tentative 
Tract Map on file with the City. Variations rom the approved Tentative Tract Map may be reviewed 
and approved by the Planning Department. A substantial variation from the approved Tentative 
Tract Map may require review and approval by the Planning Commission, as determined by the 
Planning Director. 
 

Item C - 19 of 79



Planning Department – Land Development Division 
Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PMTT19-008 
 
 

Page 2 of 5 

(b) Tentative Tract Map approval shall be subject to all conditions, 
requirements and recommendations from all other departments/agencies provided on the 
attached reports/memorandums. 
 

(c) The subject Tentative Tract Map for condominium purposes shall require the 
recordation of a condominium plan concurrent with the recordation of the Final Tract Map and 
CC&Rs. 
 

(d) Pursuant to California Government Section 66474.9, the subdivider agrees 
that it will defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the City of Ontario or its agents, officers and 
employees from any claim, action or proceeding against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers 
or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul any approval of the City of Ontario, whether by 
its City Council, Planning Commission or other authorized board or officer of this subdivision, which 
action is brought within the time period provided for in Government Code Section 66499.37. The 
City of Ontario shall promptly notify the subdivider of any such claim, action or proceeding and 
the City of Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

2.3 General Requirements. The Project shall comply with the following general 
requirements: 

 
(a) The final entitlement files shall be submitted to the City within 30 days of 

project approval and shall accommodate the items listed below. No grading or construction 
permits shall be released without satisfactory provision of the required modifications to the 
entitlement plans: 

(i) All plan sets, including but not limited to the architectural site plan, 
landscape plans, wall and fence plans, conceptual grading plans, tentative tract map and 
Development Agreement plans, shall be coordinated for consistency across all documents. 

 
(b) All construction documentation shall be coordinated for consistency, 

including, but not limited to, architectural, structural, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, landscape 
and irrigation, grading, utility, and street improvement plans. All such plans shall be consistent with 
the approved entitlement plans on file with the Planning Department. 
 

(c) The project site shall be developed in conformance with the approved 
plans on file with the City. Any variation from the approved plans must be reviewed and approved 
by the Planning Department prior to building permit issuance. 
 

(d) The herein-listed conditions of approval from all City departments shall be 
included in the construction plan set for the Project, which shall be maintained on site during 
project construction. 
 

2.4 Sound Attenuation. The Project shall be constructed and operated in a manner so 
as not to exceed the maximum interior and exterior noised levels set forth in Ontario Municipal 
Code Title 5 (Public Welfare, Morals, and Conduct), Chapter 29 (Noise). 
 

2.5 Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (CC&Rs)/Mutual Access and Maintenance 
Agreements. 
 

(a) CC&Rs shall be prepared for the Project and shall be recorded prior to the 
issuance of a building permit. 

Item C - 20 of 79



Planning Department – Land Development Division 
Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PMTT19-008 
 
 

Page 3 of 5 

 
(b) The CC&Rs shall be in a form and contain provisions satisfactory to the City. 

The articles of incorporation for the homeowners association and the CC&Rs shall be reviewed 
and approved by the City. 
 

(c) CC&Rs shall ensure reciprocal parking and access between parcels, and 
common maintenance of: 
 

(i) Landscaping and irrigation systems within common areas; 
(ii) Landscaping and irrigation systems within parkways adjacent to the 

project site, including that portion of any public highway right-of-way between the property line 
or right-of-way boundary line and the curb line and also the area enclosed within the curb lines 
of a median divider (Ontario Municipal Code Section 7-3.03), pursuant to Ontario Municipal Code 
Section 5-22-02; 

(iii) Shared parking facilities and access drives; and 
(iv) Utility and drainage easements. 

 
(d) CC&Rs shall specify that all garages shall be permanently maintained for 

off-street parking purposes, accommodating two motor vehicle parking spaces, each measuring 
10 feet wide by 20 feet long. 
 

(e) CC&Rs shall include authorization for the City’s local law enforcement 
officers to enforce City and State traffic and penal codes within the project area. 
 

(f) The CC&Rs shall grant the City of Ontario the right of enforcement of the 
CC&R provisions. 
 

(g) A specific methodology/procedure shall be established within the CC&Rs 
for enforcement of its provisions by the City of Ontario, if adequate maintenance of the 
development does not occur, such as, but not limited to, provisions that would grant the City the 
right of access to correct maintenance issues and assess the property owners association for all 
costs incurred. 
 

2.6 Disclosure Statements. 
 

(a) A copy of the Public Report from the Department of Real Estate, prepared 
for the subdivision pursuant to Business and Professions Code Section 11000 et seq., shall be 
provided to each prospective buyer of the residential units and shall include a statement to the 
effect that: 
 

(i) This tract is subject to noise from the Ontario International Airport 
and may be more severely impacted in the future. 

(ii) Some of the property adjacent to this tract is zoned for agricultural 
uses and there could be fly, odor, or related problems due to the proximity of animals. 

(iii) The area south of Riverside Drive lies within the San Bernardino 
County Agricultural Preserve. Dairies currently existing in that area are likely to remain for the 
foreseeable future. 

(iv) This tract is part of a Landscape Maintenance District. The 
homeowner(s) will be assessed through their property taxes for the continuing maintenance of the 
district. 

Item C - 21 of 79



Planning Department – Land Development Division 
Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PMTT19-008 
 
 

Page 4 of 5 

 
2.7 Environmental Review.  
 

(a) The environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in 
conjunction with File No. PSP04-001, the Countryside Specific Plan for which an Environmental 
Impact Report (State Clearinghouse No. 2004071001) was previously adopted by the City Council 
on April 18, 2006. This application introduces no new significant environmental impacts. The City's 
"Guidelines for the Implementation of the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”)" provide 
for the use of a single environmental assessment in situations where the impacts of subsequent 
projects are adequately analyzed. The previously adopted mitigation measures shall be a 
condition of project approval and are incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

(b) If human remains are found during project 
grading/excavation/construction activities, the area shall not be disturbed until any required 
investigation is completed by the County Coroner and Native American consultation has been 
completed (if deemed applicable). 
 

(c) If any archeological or paleontological resources are found during project 
grading/excavation/construction, the area shall not be disturbed until the significance of the 
resource is determined. If determined to be significant, the resource shall be recovered by a 
qualified archeologist or paleontologist consistent with current standards and guidelines, or other 
appropriate measures implemented. 
 

2.8 Indemnification. The applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold harmless, 
the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding 
against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul 
any approval of the City of Ontario, whether by its City Council, Planning Commission or other 
authorized board or officer. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such 
claim, action or proceeding, and the City of Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

2.9 Additional Fees. 
 

(a) Within 5 days following final application approval, the Notice of 
Determination (“NOD”) filing fee shall be provided to the Planning Department. The fee shall be 
paid by check, made payable to the "Clerk of the Board of Supervisors", which shall be forwarded 
to the San Bernardino County Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, along with all applicable 
environmental forms/notices, pursuant to the requirements of the California Environmental Quality 
Act (“CEQA”). Failure to provide said fee within the time specified may result in a 180-day 
extension to the statute of limitations for the filing of a CEQA lawsuit. 
 

(b) After the Project’s entitlement approval, and prior to issuance of final 
building permits, the Planning Department’s Plan Check and Inspection fees shall be paid at the 
rate established by resolution of the City Council. 
 

(c) At the time of CC&R submittal for review and approval, the CC&R fee shall 
be paid at the rate established by resolution of the City Council.  
 
  

Item C - 22 of 79



Planning Department – Land Development Division 
Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PMTT19-008 
 
 

Page 5 of 5 

2.10 Additional Requirements. 
 

(a) Approval of the Tentative Tract Map (PMTT19-008) is contingent on 
approval of related files PDEV19-023, PSPA19-001, and PDA21-003. 
 

(b) Final sets of plans shall be provided after project approval per the directions 
to be provided by the Planning Department. 
 

(c) All conditions of approval from all other City agencies and departments 
shall be complied with. 

Item C - 23 of 79



 

CITY OF ONTARIO 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 
 
TO:  Henry Noh, Senior Planner 
  Planning Department 
 
FROM:  Paul Ehrman, Deputy Fire Chief/Fire Marshal 
  Fire Department 
 
DATE:  May 8, 2019 
 
SUBJECT: PDEV19-023 - A Development Plan to construct 37 single-family dwellings 

on 4.79 acres of land located at 9510 East Chino Avenue, within the 
Neighborhood 3 land use district of the Countryside Specific Plan (APN: 
0218-111-56). Related Files: PSPA19-001 and PMTT19-008 

 
 

   The plan does adequately address Fire Department requirements at this time.  

   Standard Conditions of Approval apply, as stated below. 

 
 
SITE AND BUILDING FEATURES: 
 

A. 2016 CBC Type of Construction:  Type V 
 

B. Type of Roof Materials:  Ordinary 
 

C. Ground Floor Area(s):  Varies 
 

D. Number of Stories:  2 
 

E. Total Square Footage:  Varies 2,502 to 2,669 Sq. Ft. 
 

F. 2016 CBC Occupancy Classification(s):  R 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item C - 24 of 79



 
2 of 4  

 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: 
 

1.0 GENERAL 
 

  1.1 The following are the Ontario Fire Department (“Fire Department”) requirements for this 
development project, based on the current edition of the California Fire Code (CFC), and the 
current versions of the Fire Prevention Standards (“Standards.”) It is recommended that the 
applicant or developer transmit a copy of these requirements to the on-site contractor(s) and 
that all questions or concerns be directed to the Bureau of Fire Prevention, at (909) 395-2029. 
For copies of Ontario Fire Department Standards please access the City of Ontario web site at 
www.ontarioca.gov, click on “Fire Department” and then on “Standards and Forms.” 

 
  1.2 These Fire Department conditions of approval are to be included on any and all construction 

drawings.  
 
2.0 FIRE DEPARTMENT ACCESS 
 

  2.1 Fire Department vehicle access roadways shall be provided to within 150 ft. of all portions of 
the exterior walls of the first story of any building, unless specifically approved. Roadways 
shall be paved with an all-weather surface and shall be a minimum of twenty-four (24) ft. wide. 
See Standard #B-004.   

 
  2.2 In order to allow for adequate turning radius for emergency fire apparatus, all turns shall be 

designed to meet the minimum twenty five feet (25’) inside and forty-five feet (45’) outside 
turning radius per Standard #B-005.   

 
  2.3 Fire Department access roadways that exceed one hundred and fifty feet (150’) in length shall 

have an approved turn-around per Standard #B-002.   
 

  2.4 Access drive aisles which cross property lines shall be provided with CC&Rs, access 
easements, or reciprocating agreements, and shall be recorded on the titles of affected 
properties, and copies of same shall be provided at the time of building plan check. 

 
  2.5 "No Parking-Fire Lane" signs and /or red painted curbs with lettering are required to be instal-

led in interior access roadways, in locations where vehicle parking would obstruct the 
minimum clear width requirement. Installation shall be per Standard #B-001.  

 
  2.6 Security gates or other barriers on fire access roadways shall be provided with a Knox brand 

key switch or padlock to allow Fire Department access.  See Standards #B-003, B-004 and H-
001. 

 
  2.7 Any time PRIOR to on-site combustible construction and/or storage, a minimum twenty-six 

(26) ft. wide circulating all weather access roads shall be provided to within 150 ft. of all 
portions of the exterior walls of the first story of any building, unless specifically approved by 
fire department and other emergency services.. 
 
 
 

Item C - 25 of 79

file://ont-chfs02/Shared/Fire/Fire%20Prevention/Development/DAB%20Comments/www.ontarioca.gov


 
3 of 4  

 

3.0 WATER SUPPLY 
 

  3.1 The required fire flow per Fire Department standards, based on the 2016 California Fire Code, 
Appendix B, is 1500  gallons per minute (g.p.m.) for 2 hours at a minimum of 20 pounds per 
square inch (p.s.i.) residual operating pressure. 

 
  3.2 Off-site (public) fire hydrants are required to be installed on all frontage streets, at a minimum 

spacing of three hundred foot (300’) apart, per Engineering Department specifications. 
 

  3.4 The water supply, including water mains and fire hydrants, shall be tested and approved by the 
Engineering Department and Fire Department prior to combustible construction to assure 
availability and reliability for firefighting purposes.  

 
4.0 FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEMS 
 

  4.2 Underground fire mains which cross property lines shall be provided with CC & R, easements, 
or reciprocating agreements, and shall be recorded on the titles of affected properties, and 
copies of same shall be provided at the time of fire department plan check. The shared use of 
private fire mains or fire pumps is allowable only between immediately adjacent properties 
and shall not cross any public street. 

 
  4.3 An automatic fire sprinkler system is required.  The system design shall be in accordance with 

National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) Standard Choose an item.. All new fire sprinkler 
systems, except those in single family dwellings, which contain twenty (20) sprinkler heads or 
more shall be monitored by an approved listed supervising station. An application along with 
detailed plans shall be submitted, and a construction permit shall be issued by the Fire 
Department, prior to any work being done.   

 
  4.4 Wood frame buildings that are to be sprinkled shall have these systems in service (but not 

necessarily finaled) before the building is enclosed. 
 
    
5.0 BUILDING CONSTRUCTION FEATURES 
 

  5.1 The developer/general contractor is to be responsible for reasonable periodic cleanup of the 
development during construction to avoid hazardous accumulations of combustible trash and 
debris both on and off the site. 

 
  5.2 Approved numbers or addresses shall be placed on all new and existing buildings in such a 

position as to be plainly visible and legible from the street or road fronting the property.  Multi-
tenant or building projects shall have addresses and/or suite numbers provided on the rear of 
the building.  Address numbers shall contrast with their background. See Section 9-1 6.06 of 
the Ontario Municipal Code and Standards #H-003 and #H-002.  
 

  5.3 Single station smoke alarms and carbon monoxide alarms are required to be installed per the 
California Building Code and the California Fire Code. 

 

Item C - 26 of 79



 
4 of 4  

 

  5.4 Multiple unit building complexes shall have building directories provided at the main 
entrances.  The directories shall be designed to the requirements of the Fire Department, see 
Section 9-1 6.06 of the Ontario Municipal Code and Standard #H-003. 
 

  5.5  All residential chimneys shall be equipped with an approved spark arrester meeting the 
requirements of the California Building Code. 

 
 

Item C - 27 of 79



    

           TO:                  PLANNING DEPARTMENT, Henry Noh 

     FROM:                 BUILDING DEPARTMENT, Kevin Shear 

 DATE: April 22, 2019 

 SUBJECT: PDEV19-023 

      

   The plan does adequately address the departmental concerns at this time. 

   No comments 

   Report below. 

               

Conditions of Approval 

 
1. Standard Conditions of Approval apply. 
 

 
 

KS:lr 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                  CITY OF ONTARIO 
                                             MEMORANDUM 

Item C - 28 of 79



 

CITY OF ONTARIO 
MEMORANDUM 

 

 

TO:  Henry Noh, Planning Department 

 

FROM:  Douglas Sorel, Police Department 

 

DATE:  May 8, 2019  

 

SUBJECT: PDEV19-023 – A DEVELOPMENT PLAN TO CONSTRUCT 37 SINGLE 

FAMILY DWELLINGS AT 4.79 ACRES OF LAND AT 9510 CHINO AVE.  

 

 

The “Standard Conditions of Approval” contained in Resolution No. 2017-027 for “Ontario 

Ranch Projects” apply. The applicant shall read and be thoroughly familiar with these conditions, 

including but not limited to, the requirements listed below. 

 

 Required lighting for all walkways, driveways, doorways, parking areas, and other areas 

used by the public shall be provided and operate on photosensor at the prescribed foot-

candle levels. Photometrics shall be provided to the Police Department. Photometrics 

shall include the types of fixtures proposed and demonstrate that such fixtures meet the 

vandal-resistant requirement. Planned landscaping shall not obstruct lighting. 

 The Applicant shall comply with all construction site security requirements as stated in 

the Standard Conditions. This includes the provisions for perimeter lighting, site lighting, 

fencing and/or uniformed security.   

 

The Applicant is invited to call Douglas Sorel at (909) 408-1873 regarding any questions or 

concerns. 

Item C - 29 of 79



CITY OF ONTARIO 
LANDSCAPE PLANNING DIVISION 

303 East “B” Street, Ontario, CA 91764 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
Sign Off 

 04/19/2021 
Jamie Richardson, Sr. Landscape Planner Date 

Reviewer’s Name:  
Jamie Richardson, Sr. Landscape Planner 

Phone: 
(909) 395-2615 

 D.A.B. File No.:                                           
PDEV19-023 Rev3 

Case Planner: 
Alexis Vaughn 

Project Name and Location:  
Countryside Clusters SFD Neighborhood 3 
9510 East Chino Ave 
Applicant/Representative: 
Chino Ave LLC, 122 Westdesign/ KWC Engineers 
12223 Highland Ave ste 106-553 
Rancho Cucamonga 
 
 
 

 
 
Preliminary Plans (dated 4/6/21) meets the Standard Conditions for New Development 
and has been approved with the consideration that the following conditions below be 
met upon submittal of the landscape construction documents. 

 
 
Preliminary Plans (dated) has not been approved. Corrections noted below are required 
prior to Preliminary Landscape Plan approval. 

A RESPONSE SHEET IS REQUIRED WITH RESUBMITTAL OR PLANS WILL BE RETURNED AS INCOMPLETE. 
Landscape construction plans with plan check number may be emailed to: 
landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov 
  
Civil/ Site Plans (civil plans were not submitted) 

1. Lot C; provide detail for the stormwater system that is proposed.  
2. Storm water infiltration devices located in landscape areas shall be reviewed and plans approved by 

the Landscape Planning Division prior to permit issuance. Any storm water devices in parkway areas 
shall not displace street trees. 

3. Show backflow devices set back 4’ from paving all sides. Locate on level grade. 
4. Provide appropriate space for landscape screening for the transformer on Chino Avenue.  
5. Note for compaction to be no greater than 85% at landscape areas. All finished grades at 1 ½” below 

finished surfaces. Slopes to be maximum 3:1. 
6. Typical lot drainage shall include a catch basin with gravel sump below each before exiting property.  
7. Add Note to Grading Plans: Landscape areas where compaction has occurred due to grading 

activities and where trees or storm water infiltration areas are located shall be loosened by soil 
fracturing. For trees a 12’x12’x18” deep area; for storm water infiltration the entire area shall be 
loosened. Add the following information on the plans: The back hoe method of soil fracturing shall be 
used to break up compaction. A 4” layer of Compost is spread over the soil surface before fracturing 
is begun. The back hoe shall dig into the soil lifting and then drop the soil immediately back into the 
hole. The bucket then moves to the adjacent soil and repeats. The Compost falls into the spaces 
between the soil chunks created. Fracturing shall leave the soil surface quite rough with large soil 
clods. These must be broken by additional tilling. Tilling in more Compost to the surface after 
fracturing per the soil report will help create an A horizon soil. Imported or reused Topsoil can be 
added on top of the fractured soil as needed for grading. The Landscape Architect shall be present 
during this process and provide certification of the soil fracturing. For additional reference see Urban 
Tree Foundation – Planting Soil Specifications. 
 

Item C - 30 of 79

mailto:landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov


Landscape Plans 
8. Note decorative paving for all motor courts including the lots facing the parking rows aisles. 
9. Corners; verify dimension and grade for required monumentation (see Specific Plan for detail). 

Adjacent walls shall not interfere with required monumentation. 
10. DG trails and parkways at corners (Colonial and Riverside) shall have the trail curve into the 

sidewalk rather than out to the corner ramp; OK to end parkway landscape before corner utilities.  
11. Provide appropriate screening for the transformer on Chino Avenue. Transformers shall be screened 

on 3 sides with 3’ high screening shrubs and 18” groundcover in fronts. If transformer is existing; ok 
to end the multipurpose trail right before the transformer to allow for appropriate screening. 

12. Shrubs shall be five-gallon container size min. and are to be spaced max. 2/3 of mature size. 
One-gallon containers may be used for perennials and groundcovers. 

13. Replace invasive, high water using, short lived, high maintenance or poor performing plants: Cistus 
(has not been performing well in Ontario Ranch; consider Salvia. Use Geranium as an accent at 
corners only. 

14. CD plans shall include a stub-out for future back yard irrigation systems. 
15. Landscape construction plans shall meet the requirements of the Landscape Development 

Guidelines. See http://www.ontarioca.gov/landscape-planning/standards 
16. Provide phasing map for multi-phase projects. 
17. After a project’s entitlement approval, the applicant shall pay all applicable fees for landscape plan 

check and inspections at a rate established by resolution of the City Council. Landscape construction 
plans with building permit number for plan check may be emailed to: 
landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov 

Item C - 31 of 79

http://www.ontarioca.gov/landscape-planning/standards
mailto:landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov


AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLANNING 

Project File No.:

Address:

APN:

Existing Land 
Use:

Proposed Land 
Use:

Site Acreage:

ONT-IAC Project Review:

This proposed Project is: Exempt from the ALUCP Consistent Consistent with Conditions Inconsistent

Reviewed By:

Date:

Contact Info:

Project Planner:

CD No.:

PALU No.:

The project is impacted by the following ONT ALUCP Compatibility Zones: 

Safety Noise Impact Airspace Protection

Zone 1

Zone 1A

Zone 2

Zone 3

Zone 4

Zone 5

75+ dB CNEL

70 - 75 dB CNEL

65 - 70 dB CNEL

60 - 65 dB CNEL

High Terrain Zone Avigation Easement 
Dedication

Real Estate Transaction

Zone 1 Zone 2 Zone 3 Zone 4 Zone 5

CONSISTENCY DETERMINATION

Airspace Avigation 
Easement Area

Allowable 
Height:

The project is impacted by the following Chino ALUCP Safety Zones: 

Form Updated: March 3, 2016Page 1

Zone 6

Allowable Height:

PDEV19-022

1650 South Vineyard Ave

0113-394-31

Vacant

Development Plan to construct 37 SF homes; TTM to subdivide 4.79 acres into 37 no.
lots an 1 lettered lot; Countryside SPA to establish LU & development standards

4.79 acres

Yes

ONT

The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport (ONT) and was
evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP)
for ONT.

Lorena Mejia

909-395-2276

Henry Noh

7/25/19

2019-033
30 FT

200 ft +

Item C - 32 of 79



CD No.:

PALU No.:

PROJECT CONDITIONS

AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLANNING 

Form Updated: March 3, 2016Page 2

The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport (ONT) and was
evaluated and found to be consistent with the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP) for ONT. The applicant
is required to meet the Real Estate Transaction Disclosure in accordance with California Codes (Business and
Professions Code Section 11010-11024). New residential subdivisions within an Airport Influence Area are required to
file an application for a Public Report consisting of a Notice of Intention (NOI) and a completed questionnaire with the
Department of Real Estate and include the following language within the NOI:

NOTICE OF AIRPORT IN VICINITY: This property is presently located in the vicinity of an airport, within what is
known as an airport influence area. For that reason, the property may be subject to some of the annoyances or
inconveniences associated with proximity to airport operations (for example: noise, vibration, or odors). Individual
sensitivities to those annoyances can vary from person to person. You may wish to consider what airport annoyances,
if any, are associated with the property before you complete your purchase and determine whether they are acceptable
to you.

2019-033

Item C - 33 of 79



Item C - 34 of 79



Item C - 35 of 79



Item C - 36 of 79



Item C - 37 of 79



Item C - 38 of 79



Item C - 39 of 79



Item C - 40 of 79



Item C - 41 of 79



Item C - 42 of 79



Item C - 43 of 79



Item C - 44 of 79



Item C - 45 of 79



Item C - 46 of 79



Item C - 47 of 79



Item C - 48 of 79



 

Page 1 of 6 

303 East B Street, Ontario, California 91764 Phone: 909.395.2036 / Fax: 909.395.2420 

LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

 
Date Prepared: 9/27/2021 
 
File No: PDEV19-023 
 
Related Files: PMTT19-008, PDA21-003 
 
Project Description: A Development Plan to construct 37 dwelling units and an associated 
recreation facility, for property located at 9510 East Chino Avenue, within the proposed 
Neighborhood 3A land use district of the Countryside Specific Plan; (APN 0218-111-56:); submitted 
by Chino Avenue, LLC. 
 
Prepared By: Alexis Vaughn, Assistant Planner 

Phone: 909.395.2416 (direct) 
Email: avaughn@ontarioca.gov 

 
 

The Planning Department, Land Development Section, conditions of approval applicable 
to the above-described Project, are listed below. The Project shall comply with each condition of 
approval listed below: 
 
1.0 Standard Conditions of Approval. The project shall comply with the Standard Conditions 
for New Development, adopted by City Council Resolution No. 2017-027 on April 18, 2017. A copy 
of the Standard Conditions for New Development may be obtained from the Planning 
Department or City Clerk/Records Management Department. 
 
2.0 Special Conditions of Approval. In addition to the Standard Conditions for New 
Development identified in condition no. 1.0, above, the project shall comply with the following 
special conditions of approval: 
 

2.1 Time Limits. 
 

(a) Development Plan approval shall become null and void 2 years following 
the effective date of application approval, unless a building permit is issued and construction is 
commenced, and diligently pursued toward completion, or a time extension has been approved 
by the Planning Director. This condition does not supersede any individual time limits specified 
herein, or any other departmental conditions of approval applicable to the Project, for the 
performance of specific conditions or improvements. 
 

2.2 General Requirements. The Project shall comply with the following general 
requirements: 

 
(a) The final entitlement files shall be submitted to the City within 30 days of 

project approval and shall accommodate the items listed below. No grading or construction 
permits shall be released without satisfactory provision of the required modifications to the 
entitlement plans: 

Item C - 49 of 79



Planning Department – Land Development Division 
Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV19-023 
 
 

Page 2 of 6 

(i) All plan sets, including but not limited to the architectural site plan, 
landscape plans, wall and fence plans, conceptual grading plans, tentative tract map and 
Development Agreement plans, shall be coordinated for consistency across all documents. 

 
(ii) The landscape plans shall call out decorative paving at the drive 

aisles, not asphalt. Colors and materials shall be provided (note, natural gray is not permitted). All 
other documents shall be coordinated for consistency as needed. 

 
(iii) A site plan showing HOA versus private maintenance of yards, 

landscape, hardscape, and public areas shall be provided within the landscape plan set. 
 

(iv) Wall heights in the details tables as well as in the call-outs and 
sections shall be updated across all documents to reflect the standards listed in the Walls and 
Fences section below. 

 
(v) Call out the difference between the regular and enhanced rear 

elevations for Plan B-III, and anywhere else that applies. 
 

(b) All construction documentation shall be coordinated for consistency, 
including, but not limited to, architectural, structural, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, landscape 
and irrigation, grading, utility and street improvement plans. All such plans shall be consistent with 
the approved entitlement plans on file with the Planning Department. 
 

(c) The project site shall be developed in conformance with the approved 
plans on file with the City. Any variation from the approved plans must be reviewed and approved 
by the Planning Department prior to building permit issuance. 
 

(d) The herein-listed conditions of approval from all City departments shall be 
included in the construction plan set for project, which shall be maintained on site during project 
construction. 
 

2.3 Landscaping.  
 

(a) The Project shall provide and continuously maintain landscaping and 
irrigation systems in compliance with the provisions of Ontario Development Code Division 6.05 
(Landscaping). 
 

(b) Comply with the conditions of approval of the Planning Department; 
Landscape Planning Division. 
 

(c) Landscaping shall not be installed until the Landscape and Irrigation 
Construction Documentation Plans required by Ontario Development Code Division 6.05 
(Landscaping) have been approved by the Landscape Planning Division. 
 

(d) Changes to approved Landscape and Irrigation Construction 
Documentation Plans, which affect the character or quantity of the plant material or irrigation 
system design, shall be resubmitted for approval of the revision by the Landscape Planning 
Division, prior to the commencement of the changes. 
 

Item C - 50 of 79



Planning Department – Land Development Division 
Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV19-023 
 
 

Page 3 of 6 

2.4 Walls and Fences. All Project walls and fences shall comply with the requirements 
of Ontario Development Code Division 6.02 (Walls, Fences and Obstructions) and the Countryside 
Specific Plan.  

 
(a) All tract walls shall be six feet in height and constructed of decorative 

material on the public side to match those of adjacent tracts, with a decorative cap. Interior walls 
(privacy walls) not visible from the public may be 5’-6” in height and may be constructed of 
precision block, with a decorative cap. 

 
(b) Decorative pilasters shall be provided at the southwest corner of the 

property, between homes along Colonial Avenue, and along Chino Avenue, and shall match the 
adjacent tracts’ walls and pilasters. 
 

2.5 Parking, Circulation and Access. 
 

(a) The Project shall comply with the applicable off-street parking, loading and 
lighting requirements of City of Ontario Development Code Division 6.03 (Off-Street Parking and 
Loading). 
 

(b) All drive approaches shall be provided with an enhanced pavement 
treatment. The enhanced paving shall extend from the back of the approach apron, into the site, 
to the first intersecting drive aisle or parking space. 

 
(c) Areas provided to meet the City’s parking requirements, including off-street 

parking and loading spaces, access drives, and maneuvering areas, shall not be used for the 
outdoor storage of materials and equipment, nor shall it be used for any other purpose than 
parking. 

 
(d) The required number of off-street parking spaces and/or loading spaces 

shall be provided at the time of site and/or building occupancy. All parking and loading spaces 
shall be maintained in good condition for the duration of the building or use. 

 
(e) Parking spaces specifically designated and conveniently located for use 

by the physically disabled shall be provided pursuant to current accessibility regulations 
contained in State law (CCR Title 24, Part 2, Chapters 2B71, and CVC Section 22507.8). 

 
(f) Bicycle parking facilities, including bicycle racks, lockers, and other secure 

facilities, shall be provided in conjunction with development projects pursuant to current 
regulations contained in CALGreen (CAC Title 24, Part 11). 
 

2.6 Site Lighting. 
 

(a) Lighting shall be provided throughout the site to allow for safe pedestrian 
and vehicular navigation. 
 

(b) Unless intended as part of a master lighting program, no operation, activity, 
or lighting fixture shall create illumination on any adjacent property. 
 

2.7 Security Standards. The Project shall comply with all applicable requirements of 
Ontario Municipal Code Title 4 (Public Safety), Chapter 11 (Security Standards for Buildings). 

Item C - 51 of 79



Planning Department – Land Development Division 
Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV19-023 
 
 

Page 4 of 6 

 
2.8 Signs. All Project signage shall comply with the requirements of Ontario 

Development Code Division 8.1 (Sign Regulations) and the Countryside Specific Plan. Per Exhibit 
11 of the Countryside Specific Plan (page 3.24), neighborhood entry monumentation shall be 
provided. Signs shall be reviewed through the Sign Plan Application and Building Department plan 
check processes. 
 

2.9 Sound Attenuation. The Project shall be constructed and operated in a manner so 
as not to exceed the maximum interior and exterior noised levels set forth in Ontario Municipal 
Code Title 5 (Public Welfare, Morals, and Conduct), Chapter 29 (Noise). 
 

2.10 Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (CC&Rs)/Mutual Access and Maintenance 
Agreements. 
 

(a) CC&Rs shall be prepared for the Project and shall be recorded prior to the 
issuance of a building permit. 
 

(b) The CC&Rs shall be in a form and contain provisions satisfactory to the City. 
The articles of incorporation for the homeowners association and the CC&Rs shall be reviewed 
and approved by the City. 
 

(c) CC&Rs shall ensure reciprocal parking and access between parcels, and 
common maintenance of: 
 

(i) Landscaping and irrigation systems within common areas; 
(ii) Landscaping and irrigation systems within parkways adjacent to the 

project site, including that portion of any public highway right-of-way between the property line 
or right-of-way boundary line and the curb line and also the area enclosed within the curb lines 
of a median divider (Ontario Municipal Code Section 7-3.03), pursuant to Ontario Municipal Code 
Section 5-22-02; 

(iii) Shared parking facilities and access drives; and 
(iv) Utility and drainage easements. 

 
(d) CC&Rs shall specify that all garages shall be permanently maintained for 

off-street parking purposes, accommodating two motor vehicle parking spaces, each measuring 
10 feet wide by 20 feet long. 
 

(e) CC&Rs shall include authorization for the City’s local law enforcement 
officers to enforce City and State traffic and penal codes within the project area. 
 

(f) The CC&Rs shall grant the City of Ontario the right of enforcement of the 
CC&R provisions. 
 

(g) A specific methodology/procedure shall be established within the CC&Rs 
for enforcement of its provisions by the City of Ontario, if adequate maintenance of the 
development does not occur, such as, but not limited to, provisions that would grant the City the 
right of access to correct maintenance issues and assess the property owners association for all 
costs incurred. 
 
  

Item C - 52 of 79



Planning Department – Land Development Division 
Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV19-023 
 
 

Page 5 of 6 

2.11 Disclosure Statements. 
 

(a) A copy of the Public Report from the Department of Real Estate, prepared 
for the subdivision pursuant to Business and Professions Code Section 11000 et seq., shall be 
provided to each prospective buyer of the residential units and shall include a statement to the 
effect that: 
 

(i) This tract is subject to noise from the Ontario International Airport 
and may be more severely impacted in the future. 

(ii) Some of the property adjacent to this tract is zoned for agricultural 
uses and there could be fly, odor, or related problems due to the proximity of animals. 

(iii) The area south of Riverside Drive lies within the San Bernardino 
County Agricultural Preserve. Dairies currently existing in that area are likely to remain for the 
foreseeable future. 

(iv) This tract is part of a Landscape Maintenance District. The 
homeowner(s) will be assessed through their property taxes for the continuing maintenance of the 
district. 
 

2.12 Environmental Review.  
 

(a) The environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in 
conjunction with File No. PSP04-001, the Countryside Specific Plan for which an Environmental 
Impact Report (State Clearinghouse No. 2004071001) was previously adopted by the City Council 
on April 18, 2006. This application introduces no new significant environmental impacts. The City's 
"Guidelines for the Implementation of the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”)" provide 
for the use of a single environmental assessment in situations where the impacts of subsequent 
projects are adequately analyzed. The previously adopted mitigation measures shall be a 
condition of project approval and are incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

(b) If human remains are found during project grading/excavation/ 
construction activities, the area shall not be further disturbed until any required investigation is 
completed by the County Coroner and Native American consultation has been completed (if 
deemed applicable). 
 

(c) If any archeological or paleontological resources are found during project 
grading/excavation/construction activities, the area shall not be disturbed until the significance 
of the resource is determined. If determined to be significant, the resource shall be recovered by 
a qualified archeologist or paleontologist consistent with current standards and guidelines, or 
other appropriate measures implemented. 
 

2.13 Indemnification. The applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold harmless, 
the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding 
against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul 
any approval of the City of Ontario, whether by its City Council, Planning Commission or other 
authorized board or officer. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such 
claim, action or proceeding, and the City of Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 
  

Item C - 53 of 79



Planning Department – Land Development Division 
Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV19-023 
 
 

Page 6 of 6 

2.14 Additional Fees. 
 

(a) Within 5 days following final application approval, the Notice of 
Determination (“NOD”) filing fee shall be provided to the Planning Department. The fee shall be 
paid by check, made payable to the "Clerk of the Board of Supervisors", which shall be forwarded 
to the San Bernardino County Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, along with all applicable 
environmental forms/notices, pursuant to the requirements of the California Environmental Quality 
Act (“CEQA”). Failure to provide said fee within the time specified may result in a 180-day 
extension to the statute of limitations for the filing of a CEQA lawsuit. 
 

(b) After the Project’s entitlement approval, and prior to issuance of final 
building permits, the Planning Department’s Plan Check and Inspection fees shall be paid at the 
rate established by resolution of the City Council. 
 

2.15 Additional Requirements. 
 

(a) The site shall maintain hydrant placement to the satisfaction of the Fire 
Department. 
 

(b) Approval of the Development Plan (PDEV19-023) is contingent on approval 
of related files PMTT19-008, PSPA19-001, and PDA21-003. 
 

(c) The Colors and Materials package shall be updated to provide more 
contrast between the stucco trim “Mirage” and stucco field “Meadowbrook” colors, subject to 
Planning Department review and approval. As shown, the two colors are too similar, and no 
texture change has been indicated in the architectural plan set. Smooth trowel finish may be 
provided for the stucco trim as desired; however, the colors shall be updated. 

 
(d) Final sets of plans shall be provided after project approval per the directions 

to be provided by the Planning Department. 
 

(e) Final project details, including but not limited to, architecture, grading, 
landscaping, and recreation facilities shall be subject to review and approval as part of the Plan 
Check process. 

 
(f) The model sales office shall require review and approval of a Temporary 

Use Permit, to be submitted prior to Planning approval of building plan checks pertaining to model 
sales units. 

 
(g) All conditions of approval from all other City agencies and departments 

shall be complied with. 
 

Item C - 54 of 79



 

CITY OF ONTARIO 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 
 
TO:  Henry Noh, Senior Planner 
  Planning Department 
 
FROM:  Paul Ehrman, Deputy Fire Chief/Fire Marshal 
  Fire Department 
 
DATE:  May 8, 2019 
 
SUBJECT: PDEV19-023 - A Development Plan to construct 37 single-family dwellings 

on 4.79 acres of land located at 9510 East Chino Avenue, within the 
Neighborhood 3 land use district of the Countryside Specific Plan (APN: 
0218-111-56). Related Files: PSPA19-001 and PMTT19-008 

 
 

   The plan does adequately address Fire Department requirements at this time.  

   Standard Conditions of Approval apply, as stated below. 

 
 
SITE AND BUILDING FEATURES: 
 

A. 2016 CBC Type of Construction:  Type V 
 

B. Type of Roof Materials:  Ordinary 
 

C. Ground Floor Area(s):  Varies 
 

D. Number of Stories:  2 
 

E. Total Square Footage:  Varies 2,502 to 2,669 Sq. Ft. 
 

F. 2016 CBC Occupancy Classification(s):  R 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item C - 55 of 79



 
2 of 4  

 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: 
 

1.0 GENERAL 
 

  1.1 The following are the Ontario Fire Department (“Fire Department”) requirements for this 
development project, based on the current edition of the California Fire Code (CFC), and the 
current versions of the Fire Prevention Standards (“Standards.”) It is recommended that the 
applicant or developer transmit a copy of these requirements to the on-site contractor(s) and 
that all questions or concerns be directed to the Bureau of Fire Prevention, at (909) 395-2029. 
For copies of Ontario Fire Department Standards please access the City of Ontario web site at 
www.ontarioca.gov, click on “Fire Department” and then on “Standards and Forms.” 

 
  1.2 These Fire Department conditions of approval are to be included on any and all construction 

drawings.  
 
2.0 FIRE DEPARTMENT ACCESS 
 

  2.1 Fire Department vehicle access roadways shall be provided to within 150 ft. of all portions of 
the exterior walls of the first story of any building, unless specifically approved. Roadways 
shall be paved with an all-weather surface and shall be a minimum of twenty-four (24) ft. wide. 
See Standard #B-004.   

 
  2.2 In order to allow for adequate turning radius for emergency fire apparatus, all turns shall be 

designed to meet the minimum twenty five feet (25’) inside and forty-five feet (45’) outside 
turning radius per Standard #B-005.   

 
  2.3 Fire Department access roadways that exceed one hundred and fifty feet (150’) in length shall 

have an approved turn-around per Standard #B-002.   
 

  2.4 Access drive aisles which cross property lines shall be provided with CC&Rs, access 
easements, or reciprocating agreements, and shall be recorded on the titles of affected 
properties, and copies of same shall be provided at the time of building plan check. 

 
  2.5 "No Parking-Fire Lane" signs and /or red painted curbs with lettering are required to be instal-

led in interior access roadways, in locations where vehicle parking would obstruct the 
minimum clear width requirement. Installation shall be per Standard #B-001.  

 
  2.6 Security gates or other barriers on fire access roadways shall be provided with a Knox brand 

key switch or padlock to allow Fire Department access.  See Standards #B-003, B-004 and H-
001. 

 
  2.7 Any time PRIOR to on-site combustible construction and/or storage, a minimum twenty-six 

(26) ft. wide circulating all weather access roads shall be provided to within 150 ft. of all 
portions of the exterior walls of the first story of any building, unless specifically approved by 
fire department and other emergency services.. 
 
 
 

Item C - 56 of 79

file://ont-chfs02/Shared/Fire/Fire%20Prevention/Development/DAB%20Comments/www.ontarioca.gov


 
3 of 4  

 

3.0 WATER SUPPLY 
 

  3.1 The required fire flow per Fire Department standards, based on the 2016 California Fire Code, 
Appendix B, is 1500  gallons per minute (g.p.m.) for 2 hours at a minimum of 20 pounds per 
square inch (p.s.i.) residual operating pressure. 

 
  3.2 Off-site (public) fire hydrants are required to be installed on all frontage streets, at a minimum 

spacing of three hundred foot (300’) apart, per Engineering Department specifications. 
 

  3.4 The water supply, including water mains and fire hydrants, shall be tested and approved by the 
Engineering Department and Fire Department prior to combustible construction to assure 
availability and reliability for firefighting purposes.  

 
4.0 FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEMS 
 

  4.2 Underground fire mains which cross property lines shall be provided with CC & R, easements, 
or reciprocating agreements, and shall be recorded on the titles of affected properties, and 
copies of same shall be provided at the time of fire department plan check. The shared use of 
private fire mains or fire pumps is allowable only between immediately adjacent properties 
and shall not cross any public street. 

 
  4.3 An automatic fire sprinkler system is required.  The system design shall be in accordance with 

National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) Standard Choose an item.. All new fire sprinkler 
systems, except those in single family dwellings, which contain twenty (20) sprinkler heads or 
more shall be monitored by an approved listed supervising station. An application along with 
detailed plans shall be submitted, and a construction permit shall be issued by the Fire 
Department, prior to any work being done.   

 
  4.4 Wood frame buildings that are to be sprinkled shall have these systems in service (but not 

necessarily finaled) before the building is enclosed. 
 
    
5.0 BUILDING CONSTRUCTION FEATURES 
 

  5.1 The developer/general contractor is to be responsible for reasonable periodic cleanup of the 
development during construction to avoid hazardous accumulations of combustible trash and 
debris both on and off the site. 

 
  5.2 Approved numbers or addresses shall be placed on all new and existing buildings in such a 

position as to be plainly visible and legible from the street or road fronting the property.  Multi-
tenant or building projects shall have addresses and/or suite numbers provided on the rear of 
the building.  Address numbers shall contrast with their background. See Section 9-1 6.06 of 
the Ontario Municipal Code and Standards #H-003 and #H-002.  
 

  5.3 Single station smoke alarms and carbon monoxide alarms are required to be installed per the 
California Building Code and the California Fire Code. 

 

Item C - 57 of 79



 
4 of 4  

 

  5.4 Multiple unit building complexes shall have building directories provided at the main 
entrances.  The directories shall be designed to the requirements of the Fire Department, see 
Section 9-1 6.06 of the Ontario Municipal Code and Standard #H-003. 
 

  5.5  All residential chimneys shall be equipped with an approved spark arrester meeting the 
requirements of the California Building Code. 

 
 

Item C - 58 of 79



    

           TO:                  PLANNING DEPARTMENT, Henry Noh 

     FROM:                 BUILDING DEPARTMENT, Kevin Shear 

 DATE: April 22, 2019 

 SUBJECT: PDEV19-023 

      

   The plan does adequately address the departmental concerns at this time. 

   No comments 

   Report below. 

               

Conditions of Approval 

 
1. Standard Conditions of Approval apply. 
 

 
 

KS:lr 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                  CITY OF ONTARIO 
                                             MEMORANDUM 

Item C - 59 of 79



 

CITY OF ONTARIO 
MEMORANDUM 

 

 

TO:  Henry Noh, Planning Department 

 

FROM:  Douglas Sorel, Police Department 

 

DATE:  May 8, 2019  

 

SUBJECT: PDEV19-023 – A DEVELOPMENT PLAN TO CONSTRUCT 37 SINGLE 

FAMILY DWELLINGS AT 4.79 ACRES OF LAND AT 9510 CHINO AVE.  

 

 

The “Standard Conditions of Approval” contained in Resolution No. 2017-027 for “Ontario 

Ranch Projects” apply. The applicant shall read and be thoroughly familiar with these conditions, 

including but not limited to, the requirements listed below. 

 

 Required lighting for all walkways, driveways, doorways, parking areas, and other areas 

used by the public shall be provided and operate on photosensor at the prescribed foot-

candle levels. Photometrics shall be provided to the Police Department. Photometrics 

shall include the types of fixtures proposed and demonstrate that such fixtures meet the 

vandal-resistant requirement. Planned landscaping shall not obstruct lighting. 

 The Applicant shall comply with all construction site security requirements as stated in 

the Standard Conditions. This includes the provisions for perimeter lighting, site lighting, 

fencing and/or uniformed security.   

 

The Applicant is invited to call Douglas Sorel at (909) 408-1873 regarding any questions or 

concerns. 

Item C - 60 of 79



CITY OF ONTARIO 
LANDSCAPE PLANNING DIVISION 

303 East “B” Street, Ontario, CA 91764 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
Sign Off 

 04/19/2021 
Jamie Richardson, Sr. Landscape Planner Date 

Reviewer’s Name:  
Jamie Richardson, Sr. Landscape Planner 

Phone: 
(909) 395-2615 

 D.A.B. File No.:                                           
PDEV19-023 Rev3 

Case Planner: 
Alexis Vaughn 

Project Name and Location:  
Countryside Clusters SFD Neighborhood 3 
9510 East Chino Ave 
Applicant/Representative: 
Chino Ave LLC, 122 Westdesign/ KWC Engineers 
12223 Highland Ave ste 106-553 
Rancho Cucamonga 
 
 
 

 
 
Preliminary Plans (dated 4/6/21) meets the Standard Conditions for New Development 
and has been approved with the consideration that the following conditions below be 
met upon submittal of the landscape construction documents. 

 
 
Preliminary Plans (dated) has not been approved. Corrections noted below are required 
prior to Preliminary Landscape Plan approval. 

A RESPONSE SHEET IS REQUIRED WITH RESUBMITTAL OR PLANS WILL BE RETURNED AS INCOMPLETE. 
Landscape construction plans with plan check number may be emailed to: 
landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov 
  
Civil/ Site Plans (civil plans were not submitted) 

1. Lot C; provide detail for the stormwater system that is proposed.  
2. Storm water infiltration devices located in landscape areas shall be reviewed and plans approved by 

the Landscape Planning Division prior to permit issuance. Any storm water devices in parkway areas 
shall not displace street trees. 

3. Show backflow devices set back 4’ from paving all sides. Locate on level grade. 
4. Provide appropriate space for landscape screening for the transformer on Chino Avenue.  
5. Note for compaction to be no greater than 85% at landscape areas. All finished grades at 1 ½” below 

finished surfaces. Slopes to be maximum 3:1. 
6. Typical lot drainage shall include a catch basin with gravel sump below each before exiting property.  
7. Add Note to Grading Plans: Landscape areas where compaction has occurred due to grading 

activities and where trees or storm water infiltration areas are located shall be loosened by soil 
fracturing. For trees a 12’x12’x18” deep area; for storm water infiltration the entire area shall be 
loosened. Add the following information on the plans: The back hoe method of soil fracturing shall be 
used to break up compaction. A 4” layer of Compost is spread over the soil surface before fracturing 
is begun. The back hoe shall dig into the soil lifting and then drop the soil immediately back into the 
hole. The bucket then moves to the adjacent soil and repeats. The Compost falls into the spaces 
between the soil chunks created. Fracturing shall leave the soil surface quite rough with large soil 
clods. These must be broken by additional tilling. Tilling in more Compost to the surface after 
fracturing per the soil report will help create an A horizon soil. Imported or reused Topsoil can be 
added on top of the fractured soil as needed for grading. The Landscape Architect shall be present 
during this process and provide certification of the soil fracturing. For additional reference see Urban 
Tree Foundation – Planting Soil Specifications. 
 

Item C - 61 of 79

mailto:landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov


Landscape Plans 
8. Note decorative paving for all motor courts including the lots facing the parking rows aisles. 
9. Corners; verify dimension and grade for required monumentation (see Specific Plan for detail). 

Adjacent walls shall not interfere with required monumentation. 
10. DG trails and parkways at corners (Colonial and Riverside) shall have the trail curve into the 

sidewalk rather than out to the corner ramp; OK to end parkway landscape before corner utilities.  
11. Provide appropriate screening for the transformer on Chino Avenue. Transformers shall be screened 

on 3 sides with 3’ high screening shrubs and 18” groundcover in fronts. If transformer is existing; ok 
to end the multipurpose trail right before the transformer to allow for appropriate screening. 

12. Shrubs shall be five-gallon container size min. and are to be spaced max. 2/3 of mature size. 
One-gallon containers may be used for perennials and groundcovers. 

13. Replace invasive, high water using, short lived, high maintenance or poor performing plants: Cistus 
(has not been performing well in Ontario Ranch; consider Salvia. Use Geranium as an accent at 
corners only. 

14. CD plans shall include a stub-out for future back yard irrigation systems. 
15. Landscape construction plans shall meet the requirements of the Landscape Development 

Guidelines. See http://www.ontarioca.gov/landscape-planning/standards 
16. Provide phasing map for multi-phase projects. 
17. After a project’s entitlement approval, the applicant shall pay all applicable fees for landscape plan 

check and inspections at a rate established by resolution of the City Council. Landscape construction 
plans with building permit number for plan check may be emailed to: 
landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov 

Item C - 62 of 79

http://www.ontarioca.gov/landscape-planning/standards
mailto:landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov


AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLANNING 

Project File No.:

Address:

APN:

Existing Land 
Use:

Proposed Land 
Use:

Site Acreage:

ONT-IAC Project Review:

This proposed Project is: Exempt from the ALUCP Consistent Consistent with Conditions Inconsistent

Reviewed By:

Date:

Contact Info:

Project Planner:

CD No.:

PALU No.:

The project is impacted by the following ONT ALUCP Compatibility Zones: 

Safety Noise Impact Airspace Protection

Zone 1

Zone 1A

Zone 2

Zone 3

Zone 4

Zone 5

75+ dB CNEL

70 - 75 dB CNEL

65 - 70 dB CNEL

60 - 65 dB CNEL

High Terrain Zone Avigation Easement 
Dedication

Real Estate Transaction

Zone 1 Zone 2 Zone 3 Zone 4 Zone 5

CONSISTENCY DETERMINATION

Airspace Avigation 
Easement Area

Allowable 
Height:

The project is impacted by the following Chino ALUCP Safety Zones: 

Form Updated: March 3, 2016Page 1

Zone 6

Allowable Height:

PDEV19-022

1650 South Vineyard Ave

0113-394-31

Vacant

Development Plan to construct 37 SF homes; TTM to subdivide 4.79 acres into 37 no.
lots an 1 lettered lot; Countryside SPA to establish LU & development standards

4.79 acres

Yes

ONT

The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport (ONT) and was
evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP)
for ONT.

Lorena Mejia

909-395-2276

Henry Noh

7/25/19

2019-033
30 FT

200 ft +

Item C - 63 of 79



CD No.:

PALU No.:

PROJECT CONDITIONS

AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLANNING 

Form Updated: March 3, 2016Page 2

The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport (ONT) and was
evaluated and found to be consistent with the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP) for ONT. The applicant
is required to meet the Real Estate Transaction Disclosure in accordance with California Codes (Business and
Professions Code Section 11010-11024). New residential subdivisions within an Airport Influence Area are required to
file an application for a Public Report consisting of a Notice of Intention (NOI) and a completed questionnaire with the
Department of Real Estate and include the following language within the NOI:

NOTICE OF AIRPORT IN VICINITY: This property is presently located in the vicinity of an airport, within what is
known as an airport influence area. For that reason, the property may be subject to some of the annoyances or
inconveniences associated with proximity to airport operations (for example: noise, vibration, or odors). Individual
sensitivities to those annoyances can vary from person to person. You may wish to consider what airport annoyances,
if any, are associated with the property before you complete your purchase and determine whether they are acceptable
to you.

2019-033

Item C - 64 of 79



Item C - 65 of 79



Item C - 66 of 79



Item C - 67 of 79



Item C - 68 of 79



Item C - 69 of 79



Item C - 70 of 79



Item C - 71 of 79



Item C - 72 of 79



Item C - 73 of 79



Item C - 74 of 79



Item C - 75 of 79



Item C - 76 of 79



Item C - 77 of 79



Item C - 78 of 79



Item C - 79 of 79



Page 1 

Development Advisory Board Decision 
October 18, 2021 

DECISION NO.: [insert #] 

FILE NO.: PDEV20-020 

DESCRIPTION: A Development Plan (File No. PDEV20-020) to construct a mixed-use 
development consisting of 144 residential apartment units and approximately 4,500 square feet of ground 
floor retail on 1.66 acres of land bordered by D Street to the north, C Street to the south, Euclid Avenue to 
the west, and Lemon Avenue to the east, within the C1 block of the Downtown Civic Center Planned Unit 
Development (“DCCPUD”) and the MU-1 (Downtown Mixed Use) and Euclid Avenue Overlay zoning 
districts; (APNs: 1048-551-10, 1048-551-11, and 1048-551-12) submitted by Hutton Development. 
Planning Commission action is required. 

Part I—BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS 

HUTTON DEVELOPMENT, (herein after referred to as “Applicant”) has filed an application 
requesting Development Plan approval, File No. PDEV20-020, as described in the subject of this Decision 
(herein after referred to as "Application" or "Project"). 

(1) Project Setting: The Project site is comprised of 1.66-acres of land located within the C1
block of the Downtown Civic Center Planned Unit Development (“DCCPUD”) and within the proposed 
Downtown Historic District. The site is comprised of 2 parcels of land that front onto Euclid Avenue and 1 
parcel of land that fronts onto D Street and is depicted in Exhibit A—Project Location Map, attached. The 
southern portion of the Project site is developed with a paved surface parking lot. A new 5-level public 
parking structure is currently under construction at the northwest corner of C Street and Lemon Avenue 
adjacent to the Project site. Existing land uses and General Plan and zoning designations, on and 
surrounding the Project site are as follows: 

Existing Land Use General Plan Designation Zoning Designation 

Site Undeveloped/Paved surface 
parking lot Downtown Mixed-Use DCCPUD 

North Commercial, Retail and Office Downtown Mixed-Use MU-1 Mixed Use Downtown 

South Commercial & Public Park Downtown Mixed-Use and Open Space-
Recreation DCCPUD 

East Civic Center Public Facility Civic 

West Euclid Avenue Median and 
Commercial Downtown Mixed-Use MU-1 Mixed Use Downtown 

(2) Project Description:

(a) Background — In June 2006, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 2829
approving the Downtown Civic Center Planned Unit Development (“DCCPUD”), which governs land use 
and development within the 6-block area immediately adjacent to the Civic Center complex and is depicted 
in Exhibit B—DCCPUD Area, attached. The land uses designated for each block are as follows: 

Item D - 1 of 53



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV20-020 
October 18, 2021 
 
 

Page 2 

 A1 and C1 Blocks (Commercial/Residential Mixed-Use) — The A1 and C1 blocks are designated 
for vertically-mixed commercial and residential uses (apartments or condominiums) in a mid-rise 
configuration, with commercial uses on the ground floor and residential units on the 3 upper floors. 
A total of 36,000 square feet of commercial floor area is permitted for each block and residential 
units may be developed at a density of 45 to 50 dwelling units per acre, not to exceed 100 to 110 
dwellings per block. The maximum floor area ratio is 2.7 for all uses. 
 

 A2 Block (Apartments) — The A2 block is designated for multiple-family dwellings at a density 
range of up to 65 dwelling units per acre, not to exceed 160 housing units, constructed in a stacked-
flat configuration over subterranean parking facilities. 
 

 A3 and A4 Blocks (Townhomes) — The A3 and A4 blocks are designated for attached multiple-
family townhouse dwellings with tuck-under parking, constructed within a density range of 25 to 35 
dwelling units per acre, not to exceed 140 housing units. 
 

 B1 Block (Civic Plaza) — The B1 block is designated for development with a public plaza to provide 
passive recreation opportunities for the downtown area. Commercial uses are also allowed in this 
block, not to exceed 10,000 square feet in total area and 2-stories in height. The commercial uses 
would be housed within the historically significant Bank of Italy building, located at the southwest 
corner of the block, and a new building that may be constructed at the northwest corner of the 
block. 

 
Along with the adoption of the DCCPUD in 2006, the Planning/Historic Preservation Commission approved 
a Certificate of Appropriateness (File No. PHP06-007) to demolish 2 historic buildings located on the C1 
block, at 310 and 318 North Euclid Avenue, and a Development Plan (File No. PDEV06-009) for the 
development of the A2, A3 and A4 blocks with multiple-family residential units and the C1 block with a 
commercial and residential mixed-use project. Prior to demolition, the 2 historic buildings were fully 
documented and cataloged, and mitigation fees were paid as required by the Mitigation Measures 
Monitoring Table in the Certified DCCPUD Environmental Impact Report. The A2, A3, and A4 blocks have 
since been developed by the JH Snyder Company and have been fully occupied since 2009. The C1 block, 
however, was not constructed due to the economic downturn of 2008 through 2012. 
 
In June 2011, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 2937, approving an amendment to the DCCPUD to 
increase the maximum density range for residential development within the Commercial/Residential Mixed-
Use District of the C1 block, from 45-50 dwelling units per acre to 45-65 dwelling units per acre, and 
provided an allowance of “for sale” and “for rent” housing within the A1 and C1 blocks. 
 
In June 2012, the Planning/Historic Preservation Commission, approved a Certificate of Appropriateness 
(File No. PHP12-005) to facilitate the development of the B1 block with a 1.7-acre park. The Ontario Town 
Square has been fully developed by the City of Ontario and the historic Bank of Italy landmark building is 
currently being rehabilitated and adaptively reused for up to 3 restaurants. 
 
On March 23, 2021, the Planning Commission approved a Development Plan (File No. PDEV20-031) to 
construct a 5-level public parking structure at the northwest corner of C Street and Lemon Avenue within 
the C1 block and recommended approval of an Amendment to the DCCPUD (File No. PUD20-002) to the 
City Council. On April 6, 2021, City Council approved the Amendment to facilitate the development plan. 
 

(b) Site Design/Building Layout — The Application proposes the construction of one 
mixed-use building consisting of 144 residential apartment units, at a density of 60.2 dwelling units per acre 
across the C1 block (2.39 acres), with approximately 4,500 square feet of ground floor commercial uses, 
as depicted in Exhibit C: Site Plan, attached. The proposed L-shaped building will have 4-stories, with an 
overall average height of 54 feet, and constructed with an approximate 3-foot setback from Euclid Avenue, 
an average 7-foot setback from C Street, 2-foot setback from D street, 5.5 to 13-foot setback from Lemon 
Avenue, and a 10 to 15-foot setback from the adjacent parking structure. The stacked-flat residential unit 

Item D - 2 of 53



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV20-020 
October 18, 2021 
 
 

Page 3 

configuration will provide one and 2-bedroom apartments centered around 3 green courtyards and one 
outdoor recreation area. Oriented towards Euclid Avenue, the ground floor commercial units are divided by 
a mid-block recessed plaza that leads to a gated landscaped green courtyard area. Residential units, as 
described in the table below, will be accessible from interior hallways, one on-site elevator, and 5 stairwells. 
Each unit will have private deck or patio 90 square feet in size that will be enclosed with a decorative metal 
railing. Five commercial units, ranging in size from approximately 800 to 1,100 square feet, will have Euclid 
Avenue frontage. The remaining commercial units on the block, also designed as a traditional storefront, 
will house the administrative operations and provide space for indoor amenities, storage, and mailboxes for 
residential tenants. 
 

Residential Floor Plan  

Plan No. Area 
(in SF) 

No. Bedrooms No. Baths No. of Units 

P1-0 632 1 bedroom 1 bath 15 

P1-1  674 1bedroom 1 bath 45 

P1-2 694 1 bedroom  1 bath 28 

P2-0 864 2 bedrooms 2 baths 13 

P2-1 959 2 bedrooms 2 baths 11 

P2-2 986 2 bedrooms 2 baths 32 

TOTAL RESIDENTIAL UNITS 144 
 

(c) Site Access/Circulation — The Project will be limited to pedestrian access at 
multiple locations throughout the site. All commercial units will have direct access from Euclid Avenue. 
Residents will have secured and gated access to their units, amenity areas, and green courtyards from 
Euclid Avenue, C Street, D Street, Lemon Avenue, and the adjacent public parking structure. 
 

(d) Parking — The Project requires 259 vehicle parking spaces as specified in the 
DCCPUD and shown in the table below. In order to achieve the preferred Project density, parking will not 
be provided on-site. However, the Project will utilize the adjacent public parking facility to provide the 
required off-street parking spaces through an approved shared parking agreement with the City. Residential 
parking spaces will be designated on the top 3 levels of the public parking facility, behind a security gate, 
and designated commercial parking spaces will be provided at ground level. Access to the units and site 
will be from secured doors and gates located on the ground floor or by pedestrian bridges located on the 
second, third and fourth levels of the public parking structure.  
 

Land Use Parking Ratio Spaces Required Spaces Provided 

200 total 
bedrooms 

1.2 spaces per bedroom 
(includes visitor) 240 240 

4,250 SF 
commercial 1 per 250 SF GFA 19 19 

TOTAL 259 259 
 

(e) Architecture — The building will be designed in a contemporary architectural style, 
as depicted in Exhibit D: Floor Plans, Exhibit E: Exterior Elevations, and Exhibit F: Project Renderings, 
attached. Ground floor commercial units are designed as a traditional storefront with a bulkhead (base), 
display windows, transom windows above display windows and entry door, and a mid-panel floor to 
distinguish from the upper residential floors. Brick veneer, in a variety of color and texture, will emphasize 
the first story of the building and the upper stories will have a smooth trowel finish and scored horizontal 

Item D - 3 of 53



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV20-020 
October 18, 2021 
 
 

Page 4 

and vertical reveals. The residential units that are located on the recessed courtyards will have a 
combination of smooth stucco finish and horizontal cementous siding. Vertical panels with windows will be 
inset from the exterior wall face and metal awnings are strategically placed over first and fourth story 
windows to provide visual relief. The building has a parapet roof with decorative cornice.  
 
The Project illustrates the type of high-quality mixed-use development and architecture promoted by the 
DCCPUD, Downtown Design Guidelines, and the Secretary of Interior Standards for the Treatment of 
Historic Properties. This is exemplified through the use of: 
 

 Articulation in building footprint and in dipartite and tripartite divisions, creating breaks in horizontal 
massing; and 

 
 Articulation in storefront modulation through color and material changes, bulkhead/base, display 

windows, transom windows, glass entry doors with kickplates, and mid-floor panels; and  
 
 Articulation in the building parapet and roof lines, which serves to accentuate the building’s entries 

and openings, and breaks up large expanses of building wall; and 
 
 Variations in building massing by setting back the upper stories at strategic locations; and 
 
 Articulation of prominent building corner (C Street and Euclid Avenue), recessed corner first floor 

entrance with wrap around balconies on the upper residential floors providing views of Euclid Avenue and 
Town Square; and 

 
 Recessed and symmetrically arranged upper floor windows; and 
 
 A mix of exterior materials, finishes, fixtures, and color blocking. 

 
(f) Open Space/Landscaping —Approximately 28,828 square feet of common open 

space and recreation amenities is provided throughout the site, which includes landscaped courtyards, a 
pool court with seating and fireplace, outdoor lounge, plaza areas, and landscaped building setback areas 
meeting the minimum requirement of 28,800 square feet, at a ratio of 200 square feet per dwelling unit. 
Additional on-site amenities for residential tenants include a 960-square-foot indoor fitness room, long term 
bicycle parking, and storage area. Landscaping is provided for the full length of the Project street frontages, 
courtyards, and passage area from the public parking structure to the site. A variety of accent and shade 
trees in 24-inch, 36-inch, and 48-inch box and 15-gallon sizes have been provided. Decorative paving and 
lighting will be provided at entries, pedestrian walkways, and other key locations throughout the Project, as 
depicted in Exhibit G: Landscape Conceptual Plan, attached. 
 

(g) Utilities (drainage, sewer) —Public utilities (water and sewer) are available to serve 
the Project. Furthermore, the Applicant has submitted a Preliminary Water Quality Management Plan 
(“PWQMP”), which establishes the Project’s compliance with storm water discharge/water quality 
requirements. The PWQMP includes site design measures that capture runoff and pollutant transport by 
minimizing impervious surfaces and maximizes low impact development (“LID”) best management 
practices (“BMPs”), such as retention and infiltration, biotreatment, and evapotranspiration. 
 
 

Part II—RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (Public 
Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.) ("CEQA") and an initial study has been prepared to determine 
possible environmental impacts; and 

 

Item D - 4 of 53



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV20-020 
October 18, 2021 
 
 

Page 5 

WHEREAS, the Addendum to the Ontario Downtown Civic Center Environmental Impact Report 
(State Clearinghouse No. 200405115 certified on November 16, 2004) was adopted  by the City Council 
on June 21, 2011 (“Certified EIR”) in conjunction with an amendment to the Ontario Downtown Civic Center 
PUD, File No. PUD08-001, in which development and use of the Project site was discussed; and 
 

WHEREAS, the environmental impacts of this project were thoroughly analyzed in the Certified 
EIR, which concluded that implementation of the Project could result in a number of significant effects on 
the environment and identified mitigation measures that would reduce each of those significant effects to a 
less-than-significant level; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City's "Local Guidelines for the Implementation of the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA)" provide for the use of a single environmental assessment in situations where the 
impacts of subsequent projects are adequately analyzed; and 
 

WHEREAS, Ontario Development Code Table 2.02-1 (Review Matrix) grants the Development 
Advisory Board (hereinafter referred to as “DAB”) the responsibility and authority to review and make a 
recommendation to the Planning Commission on the subject Application; and 
 

WHEREAS, all members of the DAB of the City of Ontario were provided the opportunity to review 
and comment on the Application, and no comments were received opposing the proposed development; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project has been reviewed for consistency with the Housing Element of the Policy 
Plan component of The Ontario Plan, as State Housing Element law (as prescribed in Government Code 
Sections 65580 through 65589.8) requires that development projects must be consistent with the Housing 
Element, if upon consideration of all its aspects, it is found to further the purposes, principals, goals, and 
policies of the Housing Element; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, 
which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and is 
subject to, and must be consistent with, the policies and criteria set forth in the Ontario International Airport 
Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), which applies only to jurisdictions within San Bernardino County, 
and addresses the noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts of current and future airport 
activity; and 
 

WHEREAS, City of Ontario Development Code Division 2.03 (Public Hearings) prescribes the 
manner in which public notification shall be provided and hearing procedures to be followed, and all such 
notifications and procedures have been completed; and 
 

WHEREAS, on October 18, 2021, the DAB of the City of Ontario conducted a hearing on the 
Application and concluded said hearing on that date; and 
 

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Decision have occurred. 
 
 

Part III—THE DECISION 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND AND DETERMINED by the Development Advisory 
Board of the City of Ontario, as follows: 
 

SECTION 1: Environmental Determination and Findings. As the recommending body for the 
Project, the DAB has reviewed and considered the information contained in the previous Certified 
Downtown Civic Center EIR and supporting documentation. Based upon the facts and information 

Item D - 5 of 53



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV20-020 
October 18, 2021 
 
 

Page 6 

contained in the previous Certified Downtown Civic Center EIR and supporting documentation, the DAB 
finds as follows: 
 

(1) The environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction with an 
amendment to the Ontario Downtown Civic Center PUD, File No. PUD08-001, for which an Addendum to 
the Ontario Downtown Civic Center Environmental Impact Report (State Clearinghouse No. 200405115, 
certified on November 16, 2004), was adopted by the City Council on June 21, 2011. 
 

(2) The previous Certified Downtown Civic Center EIR contains a complete and accurate 
reporting of the environmental impacts associated with the Project; and 
 

(3) The previous Certified Downtown Civic Center EIR was completed in compliance with 
CEQA and the Guidelines promulgated thereunder, and the City of Ontario Local CEQA Guidelines; and 
 

(4) The previous Certified Downtown Civic Center EIR reflects the independent judgment of 
the Planning Commission; and 
 

(5) The proposed Project will introduce no new significant environmental impacts beyond 
those previously analyzed in the previous Certified Downtown Civic Center EIR, and all mitigation measures 
previously adopted with the Certified Downtown Civic Center EIR, are incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

SECTION 2: Subsequent or Supplemental Environmental Review Not Required. Based on 
the information presented to the DAB, and the specific findings set forth in Section 1, above, the DAB finds 
that the preparation of a subsequent or supplemental Certified EIR is not required for the Project, as the 
Project: 
 

(1) Does not constitute substantial changes to the Certified Downtown Civic Center EIR that 
will require major revisions to the Certified Downtown Civic Center EIR due to the involvement of new 
significant environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of previously identified significant 
effects; and 

 
(2) Does not constitute substantial changes with respect to the circumstances under which the 

Certified Downtown Civic Center EIR was prepared, that will require major revisions to the Certified 
Downtown Civic Center EIR due to the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a substantial 
increase in the severity of the previously identified significant effects; and. 

 
(3) Does not contain new information of substantial importance that was not known and could 

not have been known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the time the Downtown Civic Center EIR 
was certified/adopted, that shows any of the following: 
 

(a) The project will have one or more significant effects not discussed in the Certified 
Downtown Civic Center EIR; or 

 
(b) Significant effects previously examined will be substantially more severe than 

shown in the Certified Downtown Civic Center EIR; or 
 
(c) Mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be feasible would in 

fact be feasible and would substantially reduce one or more significant effects of the Project, but the City 
declined to adopt such measures; or  

 
(d) Mitigation measures or alternatives considerably different from those analyzed in 

the Certified Downtown Civic Center EIR would substantially reduce one or more significant effects on the 
environment, but which the City declined to adopt. 
 

Item D - 6 of 53



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV20-020 
October 18, 2021 
 
 

Page 7 

SECTION 3: Housing Element Compliance. Pursuant to the requirements of California 
Government Code Chapter 3, Article 10.6, commencing with Section 65580, as the recommending body 
for the Project, the DAB finds that based on the facts and information contained in the Application and 
supporting documentation, at the time of Project implementation, the proposed project is not consistent with 
the Housing Element of the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan. The project site is 
listed in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3 (Available Land by Planning Area) of the 
Housing Element Technical Report Appendix, and the proposed project is not consistent with the number 
of dwelling units or density specified in the Available Land Inventory; therefore, an Housing Element 
Available Land Inventory Amendment to remove the subject property from the Available Land Inventory is 
required. Removal of the subject property from the inventory will not impact the City’s Regional Housing 
Needs Allocation obligations, as there are an adequate number of sites in the inventory to meet the RHNA 
obligation. 

 
SECTION 4: ALUCP Compliance. The California State Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code 

Section 21670 et seq.) requires that an Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan be prepared for all public use 
airports in the State; and requires that local land use plans and individual development proposals must be 
consistent with the policies set forth in the adopted Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. On April 19, 2011, 
the City Council of the City of Ontario approved and adopted the Ontario International Airport Land use 
Compatibility Plan, establishing the Airport Influence Area for Ontario International Airport, which 
encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and limits future 
land uses and development within the Airport Influence Area, as they relate to noise, safety, airspace 
protection, and overflight impacts of current and future airport activity. As the recommending body for the 
Project, the DAB has reviewed and considered the facts and information contained in the Application and 
supporting documentation against the ALUCP compatibility factors, including [1] Safety Criteria (ALUCP 
Table 2-2) and Safety Zones (ALUCP Map 2-2), [2] Noise Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-3) and Noise Impact 
Zones (ALUCP Map 2-3), [3] Airspace protection Zones (ALUCP Map 2-4), and [4] Overflight Notification 
Zones (ALUCP Map 2-5). As a result, the DAB, therefore, finds and determines that the Project, when 
implemented in conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be consistent with the policies and criteria 
set forth within the ALUCP. 
 

SECTION 5: Concluding Facts and Reasons. Based upon the substantial evidence presented 
to the DAB during the above-referenced hearing and upon the facts and information set forth in Parts I 
(Background and Analysis) and II (Recitals), above, and the determinations set forth in Sections 1 through 
4, above, the DAB hereby concludes as follows: 
 

(1) The proposed development at the proposed location is consistent with the goals, 
policies, plans and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities 
components of The Ontario Plan. The proposed Project is located within the Downtown Mixed-Use land 
use district of the Policy Plan Land Use Map, and the MU-1 Mixed-Use Downtown zoning district. The 
development standards and conditions under which the proposed Project will be constructed and 
maintained, is consistent with the goals, policies, plans, and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General 
Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan; and 
 

(2) The proposed development is compatible with those on adjoining sites in relation to 
location of buildings, with particular attention to privacy, views, any physical constraint identified 
on the site and the characteristics of the area in which the site is located. The Project has been 
designed consistent with the requirements of the City of Ontario Development Code, MU-1 (Mixed-Use 
Downtown) zoning district, and the Downtown Civic Center Planned Unit Development, including standards 
relative to the particular land use proposed (Commercial and Residential Mixed-Use), as-well-as building 
intensity, building and parking setbacks, building height, number of off-street parking and loading spaces, 
on-site and off-site landscaping, and fences, walls and obstructions; and 
 

(3) The proposed development will complement and/or improve upon the quality of 
existing development in the vicinity of the project and the minimum safeguards necessary to protect 

Item D - 7 of 53



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV20-020 
October 18, 2021 
 
 

Page 8 

the public health, safety and general welfare have been required of the proposed project. The 
Development Advisory Board has required certain safeguards, and impose certain conditions of approval, 
which have been established to ensure that: [i] the purposes of the Downtown Civic Center Planned Unit 
Development are maintained; [ii] the project will not endanger the public health, safety or general welfare; 
[iii] the project will not result in any significant environmental impacts; [iv] the project will be in harmony with 
the area in which it is located; and [v] the project will be in full conformity with the Vision, City Council 
Priorities and Policy Plan components of The Ontario Plan, and the Downtown Civic Center Planned Unit 
Development; and 
 

(4) The proposed development is consistent with the development standards and 
design guidelines set forth in the Development Code, or applicable specific plan or planned unit 
development. The proposed Project has been reviewed for consistency with the general development 
standards and guidelines of the Downtown Civic Center Planned Unit Development that are applicable to 
the proposed Project, including building intensity, building and parking setbacks, building height, amount of 
off-street parking and loading spaces, parking lot dimensions, design and landscaping, bicycle parking, on-
site landscaping, and fences and walls, as-well-as those development standards and guidelines specifically 
related to the particular land use being proposed (Commercial and Residential Mixed-use). As a result of 
this review, the Development Advisory Board has determined that the Project, when implemented in 
conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be consistent with the development standards and 
guidelines described in the Downtown Civic Center Planned Unit Development. 
 

SECTION 6: Development Advisory Board Action. Based on the findings and conclusions 
set forth in Sections 1 through 5, above, the DAB hereby recommends the Planning Commission 
APPROVES the Application subject to each and every condition set forth in the Department reports included 
as Attachment A of this Decision and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

SECTION 7: Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify, and hold 
harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding 
against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul this 
approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, 
and the City of Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

SECTION 8: Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that constitute the record 
of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located at the City of Ontario City Hall, 303 
East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The custodian for these records is the City Clerk of the City of 
Ontario. The records are available for inspection by any interested person, upon request. 
 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 18th day of October 2021. 
 
 
 
 
 

Development Advisory Board Chairman 
 
 

Item D - 8 of 53



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV20-020 
October 18, 2021 
 
 

 Page 9 

Exhibit A—PROJECT LOCATION MAP 
 

  

Project Site 

Item D - 9 of 53



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV20-020 
October 18, 2021 
 
 

Page 10 

Exhibit B—DCCPUD Area 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item D - 10 of 53



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV20-020 
October 18, 2021 
 
 

Page 11 

 
Exhibit C—SITE PLAN 

 

 
  

Item D - 11 of 53



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV20-020 
October 18, 2021 
 
 

Page 12 

Exhibit D—FLOOR PLANS 

 
 
 First Floor 

Item D - 12 of 53



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV20-020 
October 18, 2021 
 
 

Page 13 

Exhibit D—FLOOR PLANS (Continued) 
 

 

  

Second- Fourth Floors (Typical) 

Item D - 13 of 53



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV20-020 
October 18, 2021 
 
 

Page 14 

Exhibit D—FLOOR PLANS (Continued) 
 

  

Roof Level 

Item D - 14 of 53



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV20-020 
October 18, 2021 
 
 

Page 15 

 
Exhibit D—FLOOR PLANS (Continued) 

 

  

Item D - 15 of 53



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV20-020 
October 18, 2021 
 
 

Page 16 

 
Exhibit E—EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS 

 

 

  

Item D - 16 of 53



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV20-020 
October 18, 2021 
 
 

Page 17 

Exhibit E—EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS (Continued) 
 
 

 

 
 

Item D - 17 of 53



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV20-020 
October 18, 2021 
 
 

Page 18 

Exhibit F—PROJECT RENDERING  
 

  

Euclid Avenue and C Street 

Item D - 18 of 53



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV20-020 
October 18, 2021 
 
 

Page 19 

 
Exhibit F—PROJECT RENDERING (Continued)  

 
 

 

  

Euclid Avenue (Recessed Plaza leading to Green Courtyard)  

Item D - 19 of 53



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV20-020 
October 18, 2021 
 
 

Page 20 

Exhibit F—PROJECT RENDERING (Continued)  
 

 
  

Pool Court  

Item D - 20 of 53



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV20-020 
October 18, 2021 
 
 

Page 21 

Exhibit G—CONCEPTUAL LANDSCAPE PLAN  
 

 

Item D - 21 of 53



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV20-020 
October 18, 2021 
 
 

 Page 22 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment A—Departmental Conditions of Approval 
 

(Departmental conditions of approval follow this page) 
 

Item D - 22 of 53



 

Page 1 of 6 

303 East B Street, Ontario, California 91764 Phone: 909.395.2036 / Fax: 909.395.2420 

LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

 
Date Prepared: 10/18/2021 
 
File No: PDEV20-020 
 
Related Files: PHP21-014 
 
Project Description: A Development Plan (File No. PDEV20-020) to construct a mixed-use 
development consisting of 144 residential apartment units and approximately 4,500 square feet 
of ground floor retail on 1.66 acres of land, located and bound by D Street to the north, C Street 
to the south, Euclid Avenue to the west and Lemon Avenue to the east, within the C1 block of the 
Downtown Civic Center Planned Unit Development (“DCCPUD”) and the MU-1 (Downtown Mixed 
Use) and Euclid Avenue Overlay zoning districts.; (APN(s) 1048-551-10, 1048-551-11, and 1048-551-
12:); submitted by Hutton Development. 
 
Prepared By: Diane Ayala, Senior Planner 

Phone: 909.395.2428 (direct) 
Email: dayala@ontarioca.gov 

 
 

The Planning Department, Land Development Section, conditions of approval applicable 
to the above-described Project, are listed below. The Project shall comply with each condition of 
approval listed below: 
 
1.0 Standard Conditions of Approval. The Project shall comply with the Standard Conditions 
for New Development, adopted by City Council Resolution No. 2017-027 on April 18, 2017. A copy 
of the Standard Conditions for New Development may be obtained from the Planning 
Department or City Clerk/Records Management Department. 
 
2.0 Special Conditions of Approval. In addition to the Standard Conditions for New 
Development identified in condition no. 1.0, above, the Project shall comply with the following 
special conditions of approval: 
 

2.1 Time Limits. 
 

(a) Development Plan approval shall become null and void 2 years following 
the effective date of application approval, unless a building permit is issued and construction is 
commenced, and diligently pursued toward completion, or a time extension has been approved 
by the Planning Director. This condition does not supersede any individual time limits specified 
herein, or any other departmental conditions of approval applicable to the Project, for the 
performance of specific conditions or improvements. 
 

2.2 General Requirements. The Project shall comply with the following general 
requirements: 

 

Item D - 23 of 53



Planning Department – Land Development Division 
Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV20-020 
 
 

Page 2 of 6 

(a) All construction documentation shall be coordinated for consistency, 
including, but not limited to, architectural, structural, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, landscape 
and irrigation, grading, utility, and street improvement plans. All such plans shall be consistent with 
the approved entitlement plans on file with the Planning Department. 
 

(b) The project site shall be developed in conformance with the approved 
plans on file with the City. Any variation from the approved plans must be reviewed and approved 
by the Planning Department, prior to building permit issuance. 
 

(c) The herein-listed conditions of approval from all City departments shall be 
included in the construction plan set for the Project, which shall be maintained on site during 
project construction. 
 

2.3 Landscaping.  
 

(a) The Project shall provide and continuously maintain landscaping and 
irrigation systems in compliance with the provisions of Ontario Development Code Division 6.05 
(Landscaping) and the DCCPUD. 
  

(b) Plazas, green courtyards, and pool area shall incorporate pavers designed 
in a layout to match adjacent Town Square and parking structure for maximum compatibility. 
 

(c) Comply with the conditions of approval of the Planning Department; 
Landscape Planning Division. 
 

(d) Landscaping shall not be installed until the Landscape and Irrigation 
Construction Documentation Plans required by Ontario Development Code Division 6.05 
(Landscaping) have been approved by the Landscape Planning Division. 
 

(e) Changes to approved Landscape and Irrigation Construction 
Documentation Plans, which affect the character or quantity of the plant material or irrigation 
system design, shall be resubmitted for approval of the revision by the Landscape Planning 
Division, prior to the commencement of the changes. 
 

2.4 Walls and Fences.  
 

(a) All Project walls and fences shall comply with the requirements of Ontario 
Development Code Division 6.02 (Walls, Fences and Obstructions). 

 
(b) Solid walls and pilasters shall be treated with a decorative cap. 

 
(c) Tube steel fence along the Project perimeter at Green Courtyards 2 and 3 

shall be placed a minimum of 1 Foot setback from the building wall face to break. 
 

2.5 Parking, Circulation and Access. 
 

(a) The Project shall comply with the applicable off-street parking, loading, and 
lighting requirements of City of Ontario Development Code Division 6.03 (Off-Street Parking and 
Loading) and the Downtown Civic Center Planned Unit Development.  
 

Item D - 24 of 53



Planning Department – Land Development Division 
Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV20-020 
 
 

Page 3 of 6 

(b) Areas provided to meet the City’s parking requirements, including off-street 
parking and loading spaces, access drives, and maneuvering areas, shall not be used for the 
outdoor storage of materials and equipment, nor shall it be used for any other purpose than 
parking. 

 
(c) The required number of off-street parking spaces and/or loading spaces 

shall be provided at the time of site and/or building occupancy. All parking and loading spaces 
shall be maintained in good condition for the duration of the building or use. 

 
(d) Parking spaces specifically designated and conveniently located for use 

by the physically disabled shall be provided pursuant to current accessibility regulations 
contained in State law (CCR Title 24, Part 2, Chapters 2B71, and CVC Section 22507.8). 

 
(e) Bicycle parking facilities, including bicycle racks, lockers, and other secure 

facilities, shall be provided in conjunction with development projects pursuant to current 
regulations contained in CALGreen (CAC Title 24, Part 11). 

 
(f) A total of 259 parking spaces are required for the Project and will be 

provided off-site. The Project will utilize a City-owned parking facility, located at the northwest 
corner of C Street and Lemon Avenue, to provide the required off-street parking spaces. The 
Applicant shall enter into a lease agreement with the City to designate 200 residential parking 
spaces and 21 visitor parking spaces on the top 3 levels of the public parking facility, behind a 
security gate, and designate 10 commercial parking spaces at the ground level. The remaining 
28 visitor parking spaces will be unassigned, but there is adequate parking supply within the 
parking facility and surrounding public streets.  Access to the residential units and site will be from 
secured doors and gates located on the ground floor or by pedestrian bridges located on the 
second, third and fourth levels of the public parking structure.  
 

2.6 Architectural Treatment. 
 

(a) Construct storefronts in an extruded aluminum frame to provide a definitive 
cross section profile between frame or face of sash and the glass.  
 

(b) Storefronts shall have a bulkhead (base) 12 to 15 inches in height and shall 
be finished with a solid decorative material such as tile, stucco, or veneer to match building. The 
bulkhead shall be topped with a bullnose to delineate the change of material to the storefront.  

 
(c) Storefront display windows may be composed of single pane of glass or be 

divided into smaller lights by glazing bars or muntins.  
 

(d) Transom windows above the display windows shall be provided. The 
window heights should range from 2 to 3 feet, depending on overall floor height.  

 
(e) Storefront entrance doors should be kept simple and be aluminum framed 

with clear glass and may have a kickplate. Sidelights and transom windows above doors are 
encouraged. Reflective or “black out” window tinting is prohibited.  

 
(f) Entrances located along Euclid Avenue shall be located every 50 Feet, to 

a maximum separation of 100 feet, depending on ground floor use.   
 

Item D - 25 of 53



Planning Department – Land Development Division 
Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV20-020 
 
 

Page 4 of 6 

(g) Spaces such as lobbies, common amenity spaces, leasing offices, or similar 
spaces shall have transparent window storefronts. These spaces should have direct access to the 
adjacent street, patio, or open space. 

 
(h) Windows on residential units shall avoid large and bulky frames with little to 

no reveal on the window profile. Aluminum or fiberglass frame windows with adequate profile 
reveals in a medium to dark color shall be used. White or light beige colors shall be avoided. Vinyl 
framed windows, which are typically bulky, have little to no reveal on window profile and give a 
flat appearance. At the Planning Director’s discretion, special consideration may be made for 
vinyl framed windows that can demonstrate characteristics of the required window profile.  

 
(i) The use of grids, grilles, or muntins on residential windows shall be sculpted 

and on the exterior of the glass. Simulated divided lites (between glass) shall be avoided. 
 

(j) Windows and panels with windows located on exterior building walls 
adjacent to Euclid Avenue, C Street, D Street, and Lemon Avenue shall be recessed a minimum 
of 1 to 2 feet from building wall face. All other residential windows shall have a minimum recess of 
2 inches from building wall face. 

 
(k) Brick veneer, in a variety of color and texture, shall wrap the exterior 

building wall corners and terminate at the next wall that runs perpendicular. Veneer shall have a 
bull nose edge where the finished wall material changes (stucco) and around windows to provide 
an adequate recess and reveal.  
 

(l) Horizontal siding shall be a Cementous material or similar. Stucco shall have 
a smooth finish, such as a “medium sand float,” where applied on exterior walls of the residential 
units. Stucco applied to first floor exterior building walls and mid-panel floor along Euclid Avenue 
shall have a smooth finish applied with techniques which include steel trowel, Santa Barbara, Cat 
Faces, or California. Lace and Dash stucco finishes should be avoided. 

 
(m) Metal awning and railing shall have a powder coated or anodized finish. 

Paint application on metal should be avoided. 
 

(n) Color blocking shall be applied to Project to differentiate modulation and 
accentuate varying building wall projection. 

 
(o) Mid-panel floor should be 2 to 3 feet to delineate between the first floor 

commercial and the upper residential floors and provide a sign band area. 
 

(p) Applicant shall work with staff to ensure appropriate sizes of building 
cornice treatment at key locations. 

 
2.7 Site Lighting. 

 
(a) All off-street parking facilities shall be provided with nighttime security 

lighting pursuant to Ontario Municipal Code Section 4-11.08 (Special Residential Building 
Provisions) and Section 4-11.09 (Special Commercial/Industrial Building Provisions), designed to 
confine emitted light to the parking areas. Parking facilities shall be lighted from sunset until sunrise, 
daily, and shall be operated by a photocell switch. 
 

Item D - 26 of 53



Planning Department – Land Development Division 
Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV20-020 
 
 

Page 5 of 6 

(b) Unless intended as part of a master lighting program, no operation, activity, 
or lighting fixture shall create illumination on any adjacent property. 
 

2.8 Mechanical and Rooftop Equipment. 
 

(a) All exterior roof-mounted mechanical, heating and air conditioning 
equipment, and all appurtenances thereto, shall be completely screened from public view by 
parapet walls or roof screens that are architecturally treated so as to be consistent with the 
building architecture. 
 

(b) All ground-mounted utility equipment and structures, such as tanks, 
transformers, HVAC equipment, and backflow prevention devices, shall be located out of view 
from a public street, or adequately screened through the use of landscaping and/or decorative 
low garden walls. 
 

2.9 Security Standards.  
 

(a) The Project shall comply with all applicable requirements of Ontario 
Municipal Code Title 4 (Public Safety), Chapter 11 (Security Standards for Buildings). 

 
(b) A site security management plan shall be reviewed and approved by the 

Ontario Police and Planning Departments, prior to issuance of Building Occupancy.     
 

2.10 Signs.  
 

(a) All Project signage shall comply with the requirements of Ontario 
Development Code Division 8.1 (Sign Regulations) and the Downtown Design Guidelines. 

 
(b) A sign program application and plans shall be submitted and approved for 

the site prior to the installation of any signs.  
 

2.11 Sound Attenuation. The Project shall be constructed and operated in a manner so 
as not to exceed the maximum interior and exterior noised levels set forth in Ontario Municipal 
Code Title 5 (Public Welfare, Morals, and Conduct), Chapter 29 (Noise). 
 

2.12 Environmental Review.  
 

(a) The environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in 
conjunction with an Amendment to the Ontario Downtown Civic Center PUD, File No. PUD08-001, 
for which an Addendum to Ontario Downtown Civic Center Environmental Impact Report (State 
Clearinghouse No. 200405115, certified on November 16, 2004), was adopted by the City Council 
on June 21, 2011. This application introduces no new significant environmental impacts. The City's 
"Guidelines for the Implementation of the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”)" provide 
for the use of a single environmental assessment in situations where the impacts of subsequent 
projects are adequately analyzed. The previously adopted mitigation measures shall be a 
condition of project approval and are incorporated herein by this reference. 

 
(b) If human remains are found during project 

grading/excavation/construction activities, the area shall not be disturbed until any required 

Item D - 27 of 53



Planning Department – Land Development Division 
Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV20-020 
 
 

Page 6 of 6 

investigation is completed by the County Coroner and Native American consultation has been 
completed (if deemed applicable). 
 

(c) If any archeological or paleontological resources are found during project 
grading/excavation/construction, the area shall not be disturbed until the significance of the 
resource is determined. If determined to be significant, the resource shall be recovered by a 
qualified archeologist or paleontologist consistent with current standards and guidelines, or other 
appropriate measures implemented. 
 

2.13 Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold harmless, 
the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding 
against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul 
any approval of the City of Ontario, whether by its City Council, Planning Commission or other 
authorized board or officer. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the Applicant of any such 
claim, action or proceeding, and the City of Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

2.14 Additional Fees. After the Project’s entitlement approval, and prior to issuance of 
final building permits, the Planning Department’s Plan Check and Inspection fees shall be paid at 
the rate established by resolution of the City Council. 
 

2.15 Additional Requirements. 
 

(a) If deemed necessary by the City Engineer, in collaboration with OmniTrans, 
a bus shelter shall be constructed along Project’s frontage on D Street. Design and finished 
materials shall be consistent with the existing decorative bus shelters on Euclid Avenue within the 
Downtown. 
 

(b) Public art should be placed throughout the Project site that create a sense 
of place and visual interest. Wall art should be placed within plaza or pedestrian areas and 
displays are strongly encouraged within outdoor plaza areas. 
 

Item D - 28 of 53



Item D - 29 of 53



Item D - 30 of 53



Item D - 31 of 53



Item D - 32 of 53



Item D - 33 of 53



Item D - 34 of 53



Item D - 35 of 53



Item D - 36 of 53



Item D - 37 of 53



Item D - 38 of 53



Item D - 39 of 53



Item D - 40 of 53



Item D - 41 of 53



Item D - 42 of 53



CITY OF ONTARIO 
LANDSCAPE PLANNING DIVISION 

303 East “B” Street, Ontario, CA 91764 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
Sign Off 

 09/16/2021 
Jamie Richardson, Sr. Landscape Planner Date 

Reviewer’s Name:  
Jamie Richardson, Sr. Landscape Planner 

Phone: 
(909) 395-2615 

 D.A.B. File No.:                                           
PDEV20-020 

Case Planner: 
Diane Ayala 

Project Name and Location:  
Mixed-use Development  
C Block 
Applicant/Representative: 
Hutton Companies 
2520 N Saratoga Blvd 
Orange, CA 92867 
 
 
 

 
 
Preliminary Plans (dated 08/25/21) meets the Standard Conditions for New 
Development. It is approved considering the following conditions below be met 
upon submittal of the landscape construction documents. 

 
 
Preliminary Plans (dated) have not been approved. Corrections noted below are 
required before Preliminary Landscape Plan approval. 

A RESPONSE SHEET IS REQUIRED WITH RESUBMITTAL OR PLANS WILL BE RETURNED AS INCOMPLETE. 
Email Landscape plans to landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov 
DIGITAL SUBMITTALS MUST BE 10MB OR LESS. 

 
Civil/ Site Plans 

1. Before permit issuance, stormwater infiltration devices in landscape areas shall be reviewed 
and plans approved by the Landscape Planning Division. Show locations of maintenance 
areas, access manholes, etc., for stormwater chambers. These areas shall be designed to 
avoid interruption in the decorative pavement and areas dedicated to enhanced landscape.  

2. The pedestrian walkways between the parking structure and the development shall be 
designed to incorporate the enhanced paving pattern at the entrances and courtyards of the 
site and adjacent sites. Show the herringbone pattern with a wide border – brick in stacked 
pattern, 2’, this banding shall also be used at regular intervals where necessary to break up the 
pattern along the walkway. Eliminate the rounded edges of the planters and use 90-degree 
angles for a more formal walkway. 

3. Coordinate the landscape and grading plans with the dry utility plan for the location of the 
transformer; set back 5’ from paving all sides.  

4. Show irrigation, domestic, and fire water point of connections. Show backflow devices set back 
4’ from paving all sides. Locate on level grade 

5. Locate utilities, including light standards, fire hydrants, water, drain, and sewer lines to not 
conflict with required tree locations—coordinate civil plans with landscape plans. 

6. Note for compaction to be no greater than 85% in landscape areas. All finished grades at 1 ½” 
below finished surfaces. Slopes to be maximum 3:1. 

7. Add Note to Grading and Landscape Plans: Landscape areas where compaction has occurred 
due to grading activities and where trees or stormwater infiltration areas are located shall be 
loosened by soil fracturing. For trees, a 12’x12’x18” deep area; for stormwater infiltration, the 

Item D - 43 of 53

mailto:landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov


entire area shall be loosened. Add the following information on the plans: The backhoe method 
of soil fracturing shall be used to break up compaction. A 4” layer of Compost is spread over 
the soil surface before fracturing is begun. The backhoe shall dig into the soil lifting and then 
drop the soil immediately back into the hole. The bucket then moves to the adjacent soil and 
repeats. The Compost falls into the spaces between the soil chunks created. Fracturing shall 
leave the soil surface quite rough with large soil clods. These must be broken by additional 
tilling. Tilling in more Compost to the surface after fracturing per the soil report will help create 
an A horizon soil. Imported or reused Topsoil can be added on top of the fractured soil as 
needed for grading. The Landscape Architect shall be present during this process and provide 
certification of the soil fracturing. For additional reference, see Urban Tree Foundation – 
Planting Soil Specifications. 

Landscape Plans 
8. Show backflow devices with 36” high strappy leaf shrub screening and trash enclosures and 

transformers, a 4’-5’ high evergreen hedge screening. Do not encircle utility, show as masses, 
and duplicate groups in other locations at regular intervals. 

9. Locate light standards, fire hydrants, water, and sewer lines to not conflict with required tree 
locations. Coordinate civil plans with landscape plans 

10. Show all utilities on the landscape plans. Coordinate, so utilities are clear of tree locations. 
11. Show minimum on-site tree sizes per the Landscape Development standards; see the 

Landscape Planning website. 5% 48” box, 10% 36 box, 30% 24” box, 55% 15 gallon. 
12. Landscape construction plans shall meet the requirements of the Landscape Development 

Guidelines. See http://www.ontarioca.gov/landscape-planning/standards 
 

Item D - 44 of 53

http://www.ontarioca.gov/landscape-planning/standards


 

CITY OF ONTARIO 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 
 
TO:  Diane Ayala, Planner 
  Planning Department 
 
FROM:  Paul Ehrman, Deputy Fire Chief/Fire Marshal 
  Fire Department 
 
DATE:  September 29, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: FILE #: PDEV20-020 A Development Plan to construct a mixed-use 

development consisting of 145 residential apartment units and 6,000 
square feet of ground floor retail for 1.66 acres of land, within the MU-1 
(Downtown mixed-Use) zoning district, located and bounded by D Street 
to the north, C Street to the south, Euclid Avenue to the east and Lemon 
Avenue to the west. APN: 1048-551-10,11 and 12. 

 
 

   The plan does adequately address Fire Department requirements at this time.  

   Standard Conditions of Approval apply, as stated below. 

 
 
SITE AND BUILDING FEATURES: 
 

A. 2016 CBC Type of Construction:  Not listed, assumed Type V 
 

B. Type of Roof Materials:  Ordinary 
 

C. Ground Floor Area(s):  Not listed 
 

D. Number of Stories:  4 
 

E. Total Square Footage:  Not listed 
 

F. 2016 CBC Occupancy Classification(s):  R2 
 

 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: 
 

1.0 GENERAL 

Item D - 45 of 53



 
2 of 4  

 

 
  1.1 The following are the Ontario Fire Department (“Fire Department”) requirements for this 

development project, based on the current edition of the California Fire Code (CFC), and the 
current versions of the Fire Prevention Standards (“Standards.”) It is recommended that the 
applicant or developer transmit a copy of these requirements to the on-site contractor(s) and 
that all questions or concerns be directed to the Bureau of Fire Prevention, at (909) 395-2029. 
For copies of Ontario Fire Department Standards please access the City of Ontario web site at 
www.ontarioca.gov, click on “Fire Department” and then on “Standards and Forms.” 

 
  1.2 These Fire Department conditions of approval are to be included on any and all construction 

drawings.  
 
2.0 FIRE DEPARTMENT ACCESS 
 

  2.1 Fire Department vehicle access roadways shall be provided to within 150 ft. of all portions of 
the exterior walls of the first story of any building, unless specifically approved. Roadways 
shall be paved with an all-weather surface and shall be a minimum of twenty-four (24) ft. wide. 
See Standard #B-004.   

 
  2.2 In order to allow for adequate turning radius for emergency fire apparatus, all turns shall be 

designed to meet the minimum twenty five feet (25’) inside and forty-five feet (45’) outside 
turning radius per Standard #B-005.   

 
  2.3 Fire Department access roadways that exceed one hundred and fifty feet (150’) in length shall 

have an approved turn-around per Standard #B-002.   
 

  2.4 Access drive aisles which cross property lines shall be provided with CC&Rs, access 
easements, or reciprocating agreements, and shall be recorded on the titles of affected 
properties, and copies of same shall be provided at the time of building plan check. 

 
  2.5 "No Parking-Fire Lane" signs and /or red painted curbs with lettering are required to be instal-

led in interior access roadways, in locations where vehicle parking would obstruct the 
minimum clear width requirement. Installation shall be per Standard #B-001.  

 
  2.6 Security gates or other barriers on fire access roadways shall be provided with a Knox brand 

key switch or padlock to allow Fire Department access.  See Standards #B-003, B-004 and H-
001. 

 
  2.7 Any time PRIOR to on-site combustible construction and/or storage, a minimum twenty-four 

(24) ft. wide circulating all weather access roads shall be provided to within 150 ft. of all 
portions of the exterior walls of the first story of any building, unless specifically approved by 
fire department and other emergency services. 
 

 
3.0 WATER SUPPLY 
 

  3.1 Do not have building square footage totals. Fire flow will be calculated at a later date. 
 

Item D - 46 of 53

file://ont-chfs02/Shared/Fire/Fire%20Prevention/Development/DAB%20Comments/www.ontarioca.gov


 
3 of 4  

 

  3.2 Off-site (public) fire hydrants are required to be installed on all frontage streets, at a minimum 
spacing of three hundred foot (300’) apart, per Engineering Department specifications.  
 

  3.4 The water supply, including water mains and fire hydrants, shall be tested and approved by the 
Engineering Department and Fire Department prior to combustible construction to assure 
availability and reliability for firefighting purposes.  

 
4.0 FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEMS 

 
  4.2 Underground fire mains which cross property lines shall be provided with CC & R, easements, 

or reciprocating agreements, and shall be recorded on the titles of affected properties, and 
copies of same shall be provided at the time of fire department plan check. The shared use of 
private fire mains or fire pumps is allowable only between immediately adjacent properties 
and shall not cross any public street. 

 
  4.3 An automatic fire sprinkler system is required.  The system design shall be in accordance with 

National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) Standard Choose an item.. All new fire sprinkler 
systems, except those in single family dwellings, which contain twenty (20) sprinkler heads or 
more shall be monitored by an approved listed supervising station. An application along with 
detailed plans shall be submitted, and a construction permit shall be issued by the Fire 
Department, prior to any work being done.   

 
  4.4 Wood frame buildings that are to be sprinkled shall have these systems in service (but not 

necessarily finaled) before the building is enclosed.  
 

  4.5 Fire Department Connections (FDC) shall be located on the address side of the building within 
one hundred fifty feet (150’) of a public fire hydrant on the same side of the street.  Provide 
identification for all fire sprinkler control valves and fire department connections per Standard 
#D-007. Raised curbs adjacent to Fire Department connection(s) shall be painted red, five feet 
either side, per City standards. 

 
  4.6 A fire alarm system is required.  The system design shall be in accordance with National Fire 

Protection Association (NFPA) Standard 72. An application along with detailed plans shall be 
submitted, and a construction permit shall be issued by the Fire Department, prior to any work 
being done.  

 
  4.7 Portable fire extinguishers are required to be installed prior to occupancy per Standard #C-001.  

Please contact the Fire Prevention Bureau to determine the exact number, type and placement 
required. 
   

5.0 BUILDING CONSTRUCTION FEATURES 
 

  5.1 The developer/general contractor is to be responsible for reasonable periodic cleanup of the 
development during construction to avoid hazardous accumulations of combustible trash and 
debris both on and off the site. 

 
  5.2 Approved numbers or addresses shall be placed on all new and existing buildings in such a 

position as to be plainly visible and legible from the street or road fronting the property.  Multi-

Item D - 47 of 53



 
4 of 4  

 

tenant or building projects shall have addresses and/or suite numbers provided on the rear of 
the building.  Address numbers shall contrast with their background. See Section 9-1 6.06 of 
the Ontario Municipal Code and Standards #H-003 and #H-002.  
 

  5.3 Single station smoke alarms and carbon monoxide alarms are required to be installed per the 
California Building Code and the California Fire Code.  
 

  5.4 Multiple unit building complexes shall have building directories provided at the main 
entrances.  The directories shall be designed to the requirements of the Fire Department, see 
Section 9-1 6.06 of the Ontario Municipal Code and Standard #H-003. .  
 

  5.5  All residential chimneys shall be equipped with an approved spark arrester meeting the 
requirements of the California Building Code. 

 
  5.6 Knox ® brand key-box(es) shall be installed in location(s) acceptable to the Fire Department. 

All Knox boxes shall be monitored for tamper by the building fire alarm system. See Standard 
#H-001 for specific requirements. 

 
<END.> 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item D - 48 of 53



 

CITY OF ONTARIO 
MEMORANDUM 

 

 

TO:  Diane Ayala, Senior Planner 

 

FROM:  Detective Gabe Gutierrez, Police Department 

 

DATE:  October 1, 2020 

 

SUBJECT: PDEV20-020: A DEVELOPMENT PLAN TO A CONSTRUCT A MIXED-

USE PROJECT CONSISTING OF 145 RESIDENTIAL APARTMENT 

UNITS AND 6,000 SQUARE FEET OF GROUND FLOOR RETAIL 

SPACE LOCATED AND BOUNDED BY D STREET TO THE NORTH, C 

STREET TO THE SOUTH, EUCLID AVENUE TO THE EAST, AND 

LEMON AVENUE TO THE WEST. 

 

 

The “Standard Conditions of Approval” contained in Resolution No. 2017-027 apply. The 

applicant shall read and be thoroughly familiar with these conditions, including but not limited to, 

the requirements listed below. 

 

 Areas outside apartments, duplexes, and condominiums, are to be provided with a 

photocell operated exterior lighting system, which switches on at sunset and switches off 

at sunrise. This is to include walkways, doorways, drive aisles and other areas accessible 

by the public and common areas. Minimum 0.5 foot-candle of light shall be maintained in 

all common areas. Planned landscaping shall not obstruct lighting. 

 During hours of darkness, all parking lots and carports shall be provided with 

minimum one foot-candle of light, measured on the parking surface. Lighting devices 

shall be fully protected with weather and vandalism resistant covers. 

 First floor and all common stairwells shall be constructed to either allow for visibility 

through the stairwell risers or to prohibit public access to the areas behind stairwells. 

Prevention of public access shall not be constructed to allow for easy disregard of barrier 

and shall fully prohibit access to area.  

 Parking garages, stairwells, blind spots and any hidden areas shall have Convex mirrors 

to allow for visibility to the areas.  

 The Applicant shall comply with all construction site security requirements as stated in the 

Standard Conditions. This includes the provisions for perimeter lighting, site lighting, 

fencing and/or uniformed security.   

 Rooftop addresses shall be installed on the buildings as stated in the Standard Conditions. 

The numbers shall be at a minimum 3 feet tall and 1 foot wide, in reflective white paint on 

a flat black background, and oriented with the bottom of the numbers towards the addressed 

Item D - 49 of 53



street. Each building and/ or suite shall be labeled with the corresponding address and letter 

if applicable. 

 Common areas for residents shall not be accessible or open to the public and shall be clearly 

marked restricted. Entry into these areas shall require an individual code, key, fob or remote 

access.  

 Trash Enclosures shall prohibit public access. Trash enclosures shall remain locked and 

require code, key, fob or remote access. 

  

The Applicant is invited to call Detective Gabe Gutierrez at (909) 408-1632 with any questions 

regarding these conditions.  
 

Item D - 50 of 53



    

           TO:                  PLANNING DEPARTMENT, Diane Ayala  

     FROM:                 BUILDING DEPARTMENT, Kevin Shear 

 DATE: August 17, 2020 

 SUBJECT: PDEV20-020 

 

      

   The plan does adequately address the departmental concerns at this time. 

   No comments 

   Report below. 

               

Conditions of Approval 

 

1. Standard Conditions of Approval apply. 

2. Address to be: 346 N. Euclid Ave 

 
 

KS:lr 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                  CITY OF ONTARIO 
                                             MEMORANDUM 

Item D - 51 of 53



AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLANNING 

Project File No.:

Address:

APN:

Existing Land 
Use:

Proposed Land 
Use:

Site Acreage:

ONT-IAC Project Review:

This proposed Project is: Exempt from the ALUCP Consistent Consistent with Conditions Inconsistent

Reviewed By:

Date:

Contact Info:

Project Planner:

CD No.:

PALU No.:

The project is impacted by the following ONT ALUCP Compatibility Zones: 

Safety Noise Impact Airspace Protection

Zone 1

Zone 1A

Zone 2

Zone 3

Zone 4

Zone 5

75+ dB CNEL

70 - 75 dB CNEL

65 - 70 dB CNEL

60 - 65 dB CNEL

High Terrain Zone Avigation Easement 
Dedication

Real Estate Transaction

Zone 1 Zone 2 Zone 3 Zone 4 Zone 5

CONSISTENCY DETERMINATION

Airspace Avigation 
Easement Area

Allowable 
Height:

The project is impacted by the following Chino ALUCP Safety Zones: 

Form Updated: March 3, 2016Page 1

Zone 6

Allowable Height:

PDEV20-020

North East Corner of "C" Street and Euclid Avenue

1048-551-10, 11 & 12

Vacant/Parking Lot

Development Plan to construct 145 multi-family units and 6,000 SF of retail

1.66

n/a

ONT

The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport (ONT) and was
evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP)
for ONT.

Lorena Mejia

909-395-2276

Diane Ayala

12/23/2020

2020-024

n/a

55 FT

70 FT

Item D - 52 of 53



CD No.:

PALU No.:

PROJECT CONDITIONS

AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLANNING 

Form Updated: March 3, 2016Page 2

1. The maximum height limit for the project site is 70 feet and as such, any construction equipment such as cranes or
any other equipment exceeding 70 feet in height will need a determination of "No Hazard" from the FAA. An FAA
Form 7460-1 for any temporary objects will need be filed and approved by the FAA prior to operating such equipment
on the project site during construction.

2020-024

Item D - 53 of 53



Page 1 

Development Advisory Board Decision 
October 18, 2021 

DECISION NO.: [insert #] 

FILE NO.: PMTT21-006 

DESCRIPTION: A Tentative Parcel Map (TPM 20335) to subdivide 5.73 acres of land into two 
parcels located at the northeast corner of Inland Empire Boulevard and Haven Avenue, at 800 North Haven 
Avenue, within the Urban Commercial land use district of the Ontario Center Specific Plan (APN: 0210-204-
03); submitted by Fuscoe Engineering. Planning Commission action is required. 

Part I—BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS 

FUSCOE ENGINEERING, (herein after referred to as “Applicant”) has filed an application 
requesting Tentative Parcel Map approval, File No. PMTT21-006, as described in the subject of this 
Decision (herein after referred to as "Application" or "Project"). 

(1) Project Setting: The Project site is comprised of 5.73 acres of land located at 800 North
Haven Avenue and is depicted in Exhibit A—Project Location Map, attached. The property is comprised of 
a single parcel that is currently improved with an 81,163-square-foot, four-story office building and 
associated parking lot and mature landscaped areas. Existing land uses, General Plan and zoning 
designations, and specific plan land uses on and surrounding the Project site are as follows: 

Existing Land Use General Plan 
Designation Zoning Designation Specific Plan 

Land Use 

Site: Office Mixed Use 
(Ontario Center) 

Ontario Center 
Specific Plan Urban Commercial 

North: Office, Vacant Mixed Use 
(Ontario Center) 

Ontario Center 
Specific Plan Urban Commercial 

South: Hotel Mixed Use 
(Ontario Center) 

Ontario Center 
Specific Plan Urban Commercial 

East: Office Mixed Use 
(Ontario Center) 

Ontario Center 
Specific Plan Urban Commercial 

West: Vacant Office Commercial Ontario Center 
Specific Plan Urban Commercial 

(2) Project Description: The Applicant is requesting approval of a Tentative Parcel Map to
subdivide the subject site into two parcels. The Applicant is proposing the subdivision for conveyance 
purposes and no development or site modifications are proposed in association with the Tentative Parcel 
Map. 

The existing office building is located in the southwest corner of the Project site and was constructed in 
1988. The Tentative Parcel Map will subdivide the site into two parcels, with Parcel 1 being the larger of 
the two parcels at 4.49 acres and containing the existing office building. The proposed Parcel 2 is located 
on the east side of the Project site and will be 1.24 acres in size, containing a portion of the existing parking 
lot and landscape areas. According to Policy Plan Exhibit LU-02, Land Use Designations Summary Table, 

Item E - 1 of 30



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT21-006 (TPM 20335) 
October 18, 2021 
 
 

Page 2 

office developments within the Ontario Center Mixed Use Area shall have a maximum floor area ratio of 
2.0. The proposed Parcel 1 will have a floor area ratio of 0.41, in compliance with the maximum floor area 
ratio requirement. 
 
Access to the Project site is provided via existing driveways along Haven Avenue, Concours Street, and a 
private drive. As proposed, access to Parcel 1 will be from Concourse Street to the south, Haven Avenue 
on the west (via access easement in the property to the north), and from private drives to the northeast. 
Parcel 2 will be accessed from the private drive to the northeast and the existing parking lot on Parcel 1. 
 
The existing office building is required to provide 271 parking spaces based on the established parking ratio 
of one space for each 300 square feet of gross floor area (Ontario Center Specific Plan Section 
4.1.6.2(c)(2)). The Project site has 396 parking spaces and complies with the minimum parking 
requirements. Given the existing parking lot configuration and proposed lot lines, Parcel 1 will contain 271 
parking spaces, maintaining the minimum number of parking spaces required, and Parcel 2 will have 125 
parking spaces. Any future development on either parcel shall be required to comply with the parking 
requirements of the Ontario Center Specific Plan. 
 
 

Part II—RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act, 
commencing with Public Resources Code Section 21000 (hereinafter referred to as "CEQA"); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project is exempt from CEQA pursuant to a categorical exemption (listed in CEQA 
Guidelines Article 19, commencing with Section 15300) and the application of that categorical exemption 
is not barred by one of the exceptions set forth in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and 
 

WHEREAS, Ontario Development Code Table 2.02-1 (Review Matrix) grants the Development 
Advisory Board (“DAB”) the responsibility and authority to review and make recommendation to the 
Planning Commission on the subject Application; and 
 

WHEREAS, all members of the DAB of the City of Ontario were provided the opportunity to review 
and comment on the Application, and no comments were received opposing the proposed development; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project has been reviewed for consistency with the Housing Element of the Policy 
Plan component of The Ontario Plan, as State Housing Element law (as prescribed in Government Code 
Sections 65580 through 65589.8) requires that development projects must be consistent with the Housing 
Element, if upon consideration of all its aspects, it is found to further the purposes, principals, goals, and 
policies of the Housing Element; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, 
which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and is 
subject to, and must be consistent with, the policies and criteria set forth in the Ontario International Airport 
Land Use Compatibility Plan (hereinafter referred to as “ALUCP”), which applies only to jurisdictions within 
San Bernardino County, and addresses the noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts of 
current and future airport activity; and 
 

WHEREAS, City of Ontario Development Code Division 2.03 (Public Hearings) prescribes the 
manner in which public notification shall be provided and hearing procedures to be followed, and all such 
notifications and procedures have been completed; and 
 

WHEREAS, on October 18, 2021, the DAB of the City of Ontario conducted a hearing on the 
Application and concluded said hearing on that date; and 

Item E - 2 of 30



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT21-006 (TPM 20335) 
October 18, 2021 
 
 

Page 3 

 
WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Decision have occurred. 

 
 

Part III—THE DECISION 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND AND DETERMINED by the Development Advisory 
Board of the City of Ontario, as follows: 
 

SECTION 1: Environmental Determination and Findings. As the recommending body for the 
Project, the DAB has reviewed and considered the information contained in the administrative record for 
the Project. Based upon the facts and information contained in the administrative record, including all written 
and oral evidence presented to the DAB, the DAB finds as follows: 
 

(1) The Project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15315 (Minor Land Divisions) of the CEQA Guidelines, which 
consists of the division of property in urbanized areas zoned for residential, commercial, or industrial use 
into four or fewer parcels when the division is in conformance with the General Plan and zoning, no 
variances or exceptions are required, all services and access to the proposed parcels to local standards 
are available, the parcel was not involved in a division of a larger parcel within the previous 2 years, and 
the parcel does not have an average slope greater than 20 percent. 
 

(2) The application of the categorical exemption is not barred by one of the exceptions set 
forth in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and 
 

(3) The determination of CEQA exemption reflects the independent judgment of the DAB. 
 

SECTION 2: Housing Element Compliance. Pursuant to the requirements of California 
Government Code Chapter 3, Article 10.6, commencing with Section 65580, as the recommending body 
for the Project, the DAB finds that based on the facts and information contained in the Application and 
supporting documentation, at the time of Project implementation, the Project is consistent with the Housing 
Element of the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan, as the Project site is not one of 
the properties in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3 (Available Land by Planning Area) of 
the Housing Element Technical Report Appendix. 
 

SECTION 3: ALUCP Compliance. The California State Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code 
Section 21670 et seq.) requires that an Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan be prepared for all public use 
airports in the State; and requires that local land use plans and individual development proposals must be 
consistent with the policies set forth in the adopted Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. On April 19, 2011, 
the City Council of the City of Ontario approved and adopted the Ontario International Airport Land use 
Compatibility Plan, establishing the Airport Influence Area for Ontario International Airport, which 
encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and limits future 
land uses and development within the Airport Influence Area, as they relate to noise, safety, airspace 
protection, and overflight impacts of current and future airport activity. As the recommending body for the 
Project, the DAB has reviewed and considered the facts and information contained in the Application and 
supporting documentation against the ALUCP compatibility factors, including [1] Safety Criteria (ALUCP 
Table 2-2) and Safety Zones (ALUCP Map 2-2), [2] Noise Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-3) and Noise Impact 
Zones (ALUCP Map 2-3), [3] Airspace protection Zones (ALUCP Map 2-4), and [4] Overflight Notification 
Zones (ALUCP Map 2-5). As a result, the DAB, therefore, finds and determines that the Project, when 
implemented in conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be consistent with the policies and criteria 
set forth within the ALUCP. 
 

SECTION 4: Concluding Facts and Reasons. Based upon the substantial evidence presented 
to the DAB during the above-referenced hearing and upon the facts and information set forth in Parts I 

Item E - 3 of 30



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT21-006 (TPM 20335) 
October 18, 2021 
 
 

Page 4 

(Background and Analysis) and II (Recitals), above, and the specific findings set forth in Sections 1 through 
3, above, the DAB hereby concludes as follows: 
 

(1) The proposed Tentative Parcel Map is consistent with the goals, policies, plans, and 
exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The 
Ontario Plan, and applicable area and specific plans, and planned unit developments. The proposed 
Tentative Parcel Map is located within the Mixed Use (Ontario Center) land use district of the Policy Plan 
Land Use Map, and the Ontario Center Specific Plan zoning district. The proposed subdivision is consistent 
with the goals, policies, plans, and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council 
Priorities components of The Ontario Plan, as the Project will contribute to the establishment of “[a] 
dynamic, progressive city containing distinct neighborhoods and commercial districts that foster a positive 
sense of identity and belonging among residents, visitors, and businesses” (Goal CD1). Furthermore, the 
Project will promote the City’s policy to “take actions that are consistent with the City being a leading urban 
center in Southern California while recognizing the diverse character of our existing viable neighborhoods” 
(Policy CD1-1 City Identity). 
 

(2) The design or improvement of the proposed Tentative Tract/Parcel Map is consistent 
with the goals, policies, plans and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council 
Priorities components of The Ontario Plan, and applicable specific plans and planned unit 
developments. The proposed Tentative Tract/Parcel Map is located within the Mixed Use (Ontario Center) 
land use district of the Policy Plan Land Use Map, and the Ontario Center Specific Plan zoning district. The 
proposed design or improvement of the subdivision is consistent with the goals, policies, plans, and exhibits 
of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan, as 
the Project will provide “[a] high level of design quality resulting in public spaces, streetscapes, and 
developments that are attractive, safe, functional and distinct (Goal CD2). Furthermore, the Project will 
promote the City’s policy to “collaborate with the development community to design and build 
neighborhoods, streetscapes, sites, outdoor spaces, landscaping and buildings to reduce energy demand 
through solar orientation, maximum use of natural daylight, passive solar and natural ventilation, building 
form, mechanical and structural systems, building materials and construction techniques” (Policy CD2-7 
Sustainability). 
 

(3) The site is physically suitable for the type of development proposed. The Project site 
meets the minimum lot area and dimensions of the Ontario Center Specific Plan: Urban Commercial zoning 
district and is physically suitable for the type of commercial development proposed in terms of zoning, land 
use and development activity proposed, and existing and proposed site conditions. 
 

(4) The site is physically suitable for the density/intensity of development proposed. 
The Project site is proposed for commercial development at a floor area ratio of 0.41 for Parcel 1. The 
Project site meets the minimum lot area and dimensions of the Ontario Center Specific Plan: Urban 
Commercial zoning district and is physically suitable for this proposed intensity of development. 
 

(5) The design of the subdivision or the proposed improvements thereon, are not likely 
to cause substantial environmental damage, or substantially and avoidably injure fish or wildlife, or 
their habitat. The Project site is not located in an area that has been identified as containing species 
identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special status species in local or regional plans, policies or 
regulations or by the California Department of Fish and Wildlife or the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, nor 
does the site contain any riparian habitat or other sensitive natural community, and no wetland habitat is 
present on site; therefore, the design of the subdivision, or improvements proposed thereon, are not likely 
to cause substantial environmental damage, or substantially and avoidably injure fish or wildlife, or their 
habitat. 
 

(6) The design of the subdivision, or the type of improvements thereon, are not likely to 
cause serious public health problems. The design of the proposed subdivision, and the commercial 
improvements existing on the Project site, are not likely to cause serious public health problems, as the 

Item E - 4 of 30



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT21-006 (TPM 20335) 
October 18, 2021 
 
 

Page 5 

Project is not anticipated to involve the transport, use, or disposal of hazardous materials during either 
construction or Project implementation, include the use of hazardous materials or volatile fuels, nor are 
there any known stationary commercial or industrial land uses within close proximity to the subject site that 
use/store hazardous materials to the extent that they would pose a significant hazard to visitors or 
occupants to the Project site. 
 

(7) The design of the subdivision, or the type of improvements thereon, will not conflict 
with easements acquired by the public at large for access through, or use of property within, the 
proposed subdivision. The proposed subdivision has provided for all necessary public easements and 
dedications for access through, or use of property within, the proposed subdivision. Furthermore, all such 
public easements and dedications have been designed pursuant to: (a) the requirements of the Policy Plan 
component of The Ontario Plan and applicable area plans; (b) applicable specific plans or planned unit 
developments; (c) applicable provisions of the City of Ontario Development Code; (d) applicable master 
plans and design guidelines of the City; and (e) applicable Standard Drawings of the City. 
 

SECTION 5: Development Advisory Board Action. Based on the findings and conclusions 
set forth in Sections 1 through 4, above, the DAB hereby recommends the Planning Commission 
APPROVES the Application subject to each and every condition set forth in the Department reports included 
as Attachment A of this Decision, and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

SECTION 6: Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding 
against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul this 
approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the Applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, 
and the City of Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

SECTION 7: Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that constitute the record 
of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located at the City of Ontario City Hall, 303 
East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The custodian for these records is the City Clerk of the City of 
Ontario. The records are available for inspection by any interested person, upon request. 
 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 18th day of October 2021. 
 
 
 
 

Development Advisory Board Chairman 
 
 

Item E - 5 of 30



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT21-006 (TPM 20335) 
October 18, 2021 
 
 

Page 6 

Exhibit A—PROJECT LOCATION MAP 

  

Item E - 6 of 30



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT21-006 (TPM 20335) 
October 18, 2021 
 
 

Page 7 

Exhibit B—TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP 

 

Item E - 7 of 30



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT21-006 (TPM 20335) 
October 18, 2021 
 
 

Page 8 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment A—Departmental Conditions of Approval 
 

(Departmental conditions of approval follow this page) 

Item E - 8 of 30



 

Page 1 of 4 

303 East B Street, Ontario, California 91764 Phone: 909.395.2036 / Fax: 909.395.2420 

LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

 
Date Prepared: 10/18/2021 
 
File No: PMTT21-006  
 
Related Files: N/A 
 
Project Description: A Tentative Parcel Map (TPM 20335) to subdivide 5.77 acres of land into two 
parcels located at the northeast corner of Inland Empire Boulevard and Haven Avenue, at 800 
North Haven Avenue, within the Urban Commercial land use district of the Ontario Center Specific 
Plan; (APN: 0210-204-03); submitted by Fuscoe Engineering. 
 
Prepared By: Edmelynne V. Hutter, AICP, Senior Planner 

Phone: 909.395.2429 (direct) 
Email: ehutter@ontarioca.gov 

 
 

The Planning Department, Land Development Section, conditions of approval applicable 
to the above-described Project, are listed below. The Project shall comply with each condition of 
approval listed below: 
 
1.0 Standard Conditions of Approval. The project shall comply with the Standard Conditions 
for New Development, adopted by City Council Resolution No. 2017-027 on April 18, 2017. A copy 
of the Standard Conditions for New Development may be obtained from the Planning 
Department or City Clerk/Records Management Department. 
 
2.0 Special Conditions of Approval. In addition to the Standard Conditions for New 
Development identified in condition no. 1.0, above, the project shall comply with the following 
special conditions of approval: 
 

2.1 Time Limits. 
 

(a) Tentative Parcel Map approval shall become null and void 2 years following 
the effective date of application approval, unless the final parcel map has been recorded, or a 
time extension has been approved by the Planning Commission pursuant to Development Code 
Section 2.02.025 (Time Limits and Extensions). This Permit does not supersede any individual time 
limits specified herein for performance of specific conditions or improvements. 
 

2.2 Subdivision Map. 
 

(a) The Final Parcel Map shall be in conformance with the approved Tentative 
Parcel Map on file with the City. Variations rom the approved Tentative Parcel Map may be 
reviewed and approved by the Planning Department. A substantial variation from the approved 
Tentative Parcel Map may require review and approval by the Planning Commission, as 
determined by the Planning Director. 
 

Item E - 9 of 30



Planning Department – Land Development Division 
Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PMTT21-006 (TPM 20335) 
 
 

Page 2 of 4 

(b) Tentative Parcel Map approval shall be subject to all conditions, 
requirements and recommendations from all other departments/agencies provided on the 
attached reports/memorandums. 
 

(c) Pursuant to California Government Section 66474.9, the subdivider agrees 
that it will defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the City of Ontario or its agents, officers and 
employees from any claim, action or proceeding against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers 
or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul any approval of the City of Ontario, whether by 
its City Council, Planning Commission or other authorized board or officer of this subdivision, which 
action is brought within the time period provided for in Government Code Section 66499.37. The 
City of Ontario shall promptly notify the subdivider of any such claim, action or proceeding and 
the City of Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

2.3 Landscaping.  
 

(a) The existing landscaping and irrigation systems shall be continuously 
maintained in compliance with the provisions of Ontario Development Code Division 6.05 
(Landscaping). 
 

(b) Comply with the conditions of approval of the Planning Department; 
Landscape Planning Division. 
 

2.4 Parking, Circulation and Access. 
 

(a) The Project shall comply with the applicable off-street parking, loading and 
lighting requirements of City of Ontario Development Code Division 6.03 (Off-Street Parking and 
Loading). 

 
(b) Areas provided to meet the City’s parking requirements, including off-street 

parking and loading spaces, access drives, and maneuvering areas, shall not be used for the 
outdoor storage of materials and equipment, nor shall it be used for any other purpose than 
parking. 

 
(c) All parking and loading spaces shall be maintained in good condition for 

the duration of the building or use. 
 

(d) Parking spaces specifically designated and conveniently located for use 
by the physically disabled shall be provided pursuant to current accessibility regulations 
contained in State law (CCR Title 24, Part 2, Chapters 2B71, and CVC Section 22507.8). 
 

2.5 Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (CC&Rs)/Mutual Access and Maintenance 
Agreements. 
 

(a) CC&Rs shall be prepared for the Project and shall be recorded concurrent 
with the recordation of the approved Final Parcel Map. 
 

(b) The CC&Rs shall be in a form and contain provisions satisfactory to the City. 
The articles of incorporation for the property owners association and the CC&Rs shall be reviewed 
and approved by the City. 
 

Item E - 10 of 30



Planning Department – Land Development Division 
Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PMTT21-006 (TPM 20335) 
 
 

Page 3 of 4 

(c) CC&Rs shall ensure reciprocal parking and access between parcels, and 
common maintenance of: 
 

(i) Landscaping and irrigation systems within common areas; 
(ii) Landscaping and irrigation systems within parkways adjacent to the 

project site, including that portion of any public highway right-of-way between the property line 
or right-of-way boundary line and the curb line and also the area enclosed within the curb lines 
of a median divider (Ontario Municipal Code Section 7-3.03), pursuant to Ontario Municipal Code 
Section 5-22-02; 

(iii) Shared parking facilities and access drives; and 
(iv) Utility and drainage easements. 

 
(d) CC&Rs shall include provisions that establish maintenance obligations for 

each parcel within the project area and provisions that ensure compliance with property 
maintenance standards. 

 
(e) CC&Rs shall include authorization for the City’s local law enforcement 

officers to enforce City and State traffic and penal codes within the project area. 
 

(f) The CC&Rs shall grant the City of Ontario the right of enforcement of the 
CC&R provisions. 
 

(g) A specific methodology/procedure shall be established within the CC&Rs 
for enforcement of its provisions by the City of Ontario, if adequate maintenance of the 
development does not occur, such as, but not limited to, provisions that would grant the City the 
right of access to correct maintenance issues and assess the property owners association for all 
costs incurred. 
 

2.6 Environmental Review.  
 

(a) The proposed project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the 
California Environmental Quality Act of 1970 (CEQA), as amended, and the Guidelines 
promulgated thereunder, pursuant to Section 15315 (Class 15, Minor Land Divisions) of the CEQA 
Guidelines. 
 

2.7 Indemnification. The applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold harmless, 
the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding 
against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul 
any approval of the City of Ontario, whether by its City Council, Planning Commission or other 
authorized board or officer. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such 
claim, action or proceeding, and the City of Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

2.8 Additional Fees. 
 

(a) Within 5 days following final application approval, the Notice of Exemption 
(“NOE”) filing fee shall be provided to the Planning Department. The fee shall be paid by check, 
made payable to the "Clerk of the Board of Supervisors", which shall be forwarded to the San 
Bernardino County Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, along with all applicable environmental 
forms/notices, pursuant to the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”). 

Item E - 11 of 30



Planning Department – Land Development Division 
Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PMTT21-006 (TPM 20335) 
 
 

Page 4 of 4 

Failure to provide said fee within the time specified may result in a 180-day extension to the statute 
of limitations for the filing of a CEQA lawsuit. 
 

Item E - 12 of 30



Item E - 13 of 30



CITY OF ONTARIO 
LANDSCAPE PLANNING 

DIVISION 
303 East “B” Street, Ontario, CA 91764 

DAB CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
Sign Off 

 3/31/2021 
Jamie Richardson, Sr. Landscape Planner Date 

Reviewer’s Name:  
Jamie Richardson, Sr. Landscape Planner 

Phone: 
(909) 395-2615 

 
D.A.B. File No.:                                          Related Files: 
PMTT21-006 

Case Planner: 
Edmelynne Hutter 

Project Name and Location:  
Subdivide 5.77 into two parcels 
NE Corner of Inland Empire Blvd and Haven Ave (20335) 
 Applicant/Representative: 
Fusco Engineering 
2850 Inland Empire Blvd, Suite B 
Ontario, CA 91764 

 
 
A Tentative Tract Map (dated 3/9/21) has been approved with the consideration that the 
following conditions below be met upon submittal of the landscape construction 
documents. 

 
 
A Tentative Tract Map (dated) has not been approved. Corrections noted below are 
required prior to DAB approval. 

CORRECTIONS REQUIRED   
 

On Grading or Utility Construction Plans: 
1. Storm water infiltration devices located in parkways or other landscape areas shall be routed to 

this department to be reviewed and approved prior to permit approval or installation. 
2. Note for compaction to not be greater than 85% at landscape areas; all finished grades 1 ½” 

below finished surfaces; landscaped slopes to be max 3:1. 
3. Show or note transformers shall be located in planter areas, and set back 3’ from paving for 

small transformers less than 4’ high and 5’ setback for large transformer greater than 4’ high. 
Locate on level grade. Coordinate with landscape plans. 

4. Show or note backflow devices shall be located in planter areas, and set back min 3’ from 
paving Locate on level grade. Coordinate with landscape plans. 

5. Show light standards 15’ away from required tree locations. 
6. Wall footings shall not restrict landscape; max 12” in front of footing with of 12” of cover. 
7. Show on plans step outs at parking spaces adjacent to planters; 12” wide monolithic curb, 12” 

compacted decomposed granite or pavers adjacent to the 6” curb.   
8. Storm water infiltration devices located in landscape areas shall be reviewed and approved by 

the Landscape Planning Division prior to installation. 
9. Provide a tree inventory for existing trees include genus, species, trunk diameter, canopy 

width and condition. Show and note existing trees in good condition to remain and note trees 
proposed to be removed. Include existing trees within 15’ of adjacent property that would be 
affected by new walls, footings or on-site tree planting. Add tree protection notes on 
construction and demo plans.   

10. Add notes for any tree removal to occur outside of typical nesting season (February 1 through 
August 31) or per the specific plan EIR mitigation Measures. 

Once items are complete you may email an electronic set to: 
landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov 

Item E - 14 of 30

mailto:landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov


 

CITY OF ONTARIO 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 
 
TO:  Edmelynne Hutter, Senior Planner 
  Planning Department 
 
FROM:  Mike Gerken, Deputy Fire Chief/Fire Marshal 
  Fire Department 
 
DATE:  March 29, 2021 
 
SUBJECT: PMTT21-006 - A Tentative Parcel Map (TPM 20335) to subdivide a 5.77 

acre parcel into two parcels, located at the northeast corner of Inland 
Empire Blvd and Haven Ave., at 800 N. Haven Ave., within the Urban 
Commercial land use designation of the Ontario Center Specific Plan 
(APN:  0210-204-03).  

 
 

   The plan does adequately address Fire Department requirements at this time.  

   No comments. 

 

Item E - 15 of 30



Item E - 16 of 30



Item E - 17 of 30



Item E - 18 of 30



Item E - 19 of 30



Item E - 20 of 30



Item E - 21 of 30



Item E - 22 of 30



Item E - 23 of 30



Item E - 24 of 30



Item E - 25 of 30



Item E - 26 of 30



Item E - 27 of 30



Item E - 28 of 30



Item E - 29 of 30



AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLANNING 

Project File No.:

Address:

APN:

Existing Land 
Use:

Proposed Land 
Use:

Site Acreage:

ONT-IAC Project Review:

This proposed Project is: Exempt from the ALUCP Consistent Consistent with Conditions Inconsistent

Reviewed By:

Date:

Contact Info:

Project Planner:

CD No.:

PALU No.:

The project is impacted by the following ONT ALUCP Compatibility Zones: 

Safety Noise Impact Airspace Protection

Zone 1

Zone 1A

Zone 2

Zone 3

Zone 4

Zone 5

75+ dB CNEL

70 - 75 dB CNEL

65 - 70 dB CNEL

60 - 65 dB CNEL

High Terrain Zone Avigation Easement 
Dedication

Real Estate Transaction

Zone 1 Zone 2 Zone 3 Zone 4 Zone 5

CONSISTENCY DETERMINATION

Airspace Avigation 
Easement Area

Allowable 
Height:

The project is impacted by the following Chino ALUCP Safety Zones: 

Form Updated: March 3, 2016Page 1

Zone 6

Allowable Height:

PMTT21-006

NEC Inland Empire Blvd. & Haven Avenue

0210-204-03

Office Building and parking

Tentative Parcel Map to subdivide 5.77 acres into 2 parcels

5.77

n/a

ONT

The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport (ONT) and was
evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP)
for ONT.

✔

Lorena Mejia

909-395-2276

Edmelynne Hutter

5/11/2021

2021-018

n/a

Existing Building

80 FT

✔

Item E - 30 of 30


	20211018 DAB Agenda
	AGENDA
	October 18, 2021
	Scott Murphy, Executive Director, Community Development Agency
	Jennifer McLain Hiramoto, Economic Development Director
	Fire Marshal Mike Gerken, Fire Department


	20211018 Item A DAB Minutes
	BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT
	BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT
	STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT
	PUBLIC COMMENTS
	CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS

	20211018 Item B PDEV20-027
	20211018 File No. PDEV20-027_NFI Trucking Yard ^01 AR
	20211018 File No. PDEV20-027_NFI Trucking Yard ^02 COAs

	20211018 Item C PMTT19-008 (TTM 20281)_PDEV19-023
	20211018 File Nos. PMTT19-008_PDEV19-023_^01 AR
	20211018 File Nos. PMTT19-008_PDEV19-023_^02 PLNG COA-PMTT
	20211018 File Nos. PMTT19-008_PDEV19-023_^03 DEPT COA Final
	20211018 File Nos. PMTT19-008_PDEV19-023_^03 DEPT COA-Needs Eng COA
	FIRE COA PDEV19-023 Fire Conditions 19-05-08
	BLD COA PDEV19-023 BS
	PD COA PDEV19-023 PD Conditions - Countryside
	LANDSC COA PDEV19-023 Rev4
	ALUCP COA CD2019-033_PDEV19-023_PMTT19-008_PSPA19-001

	TM 20281 (PMTT19-008) Eng COA signed - DAB 10-18-20

	20211018 File Nos. PMTT19-008_PDEV19-023_^04 PLN COA-PDEV
	20211018 File Nos. PMTT19-008_PDEV19-023_^05 DEPT COA-PDEV Final
	20211018 File Nos. PMTT19-008_PDEV19-023_^05 DEPT COA-PDEV-Needs Eng COA
	FIRE COA PDEV19-023 Fire Conditions 19-05-08
	BLD COA PDEV19-023 BS
	PD COA PDEV19-023 PD Conditions - Countryside
	LANDSC COA PDEV19-023 Rev4
	ALUCP COA CD2019-033_PDEV19-023_PMTT19-008_PSPA19-001

	TM 20281 (PMTT19-008) Eng COA signed - DAB 10-18-20


	20211018 Item D PDEV20-020
	20211018 Item E PMTT21-006 (TPM 20335)
	20211018 File No. PMTT21-006^01 AR
	20211018 File No. PMTT21-006^02 Pln COA
	20211018 File No. PMTT21-006^03 Other Dept COAs




